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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEFHEHE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for ANEBPBENEAMRFENEEREERE
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated B E& 70T ik B KL EZE A PR
financial statements and the Prospectus, is set out below. KEEBRER-

RESULTS ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=+t—HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

—E-C B ZEZFF —ZT-hEF ZT-N\F
(RMB’'000) (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)
(AR¥Tm) (ARETT) (ARETT) (ARETRT) (AREFIT)

Revenue Wz 222,801 257,043 205,392 133,664 102,281
Gross profit EAH 144,015 166,614 123,894 82,185 57,719
Profit before income tax R P15 3 A1 ) 103,763 117,144 96,489 63,413 40,236
Profit and total KNEHER AEEF

comprehensive income for PRI & 2

the year, attributable to Fk

owners of the Company 81,565 85,613 72,865 48,477 30,696

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December
R+t=HA=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

—E-C B ZEFF —T-NF ZT-N\F
(RMB'000) (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)
(AB%Tr) (ARETIT) (ARETT) (AREFIT) (AREFIT)

Total assets BEBRR 757,787 622,664 434,506 481,715 311,750
Total liabilities BEBER 304,170 234,480 328,382 415,345 293,857
Total equity RS 4EEE 453,617 388,184 106,124 66,370 17,893

2022 53 | BARRMBZARAT 5 ’



AAIRMAN"
STATEMEN’f

Eﬁ%ﬁi

LIU ZEMING 228
CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
EEHNTESE

Dear Shareholders, B IR

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report for HAAZRREFTEMARE2HE T - —
the year ended 31 December 2022. TZ A+ —HLEFEZFERE -
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S A N

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

REVIEW

In 2022, the international environment was complex and changeable,
the world economic growth slowed down, overseas inflation pressure
continued to rise, and the global COVID-19 pandemic continued to
recur, and the adverse effects and uncertainties increased significantly.
In the face of many difficulties and challenges, the Group strived for
progress while maintaining stability, closely followed the
comprehensive promotion of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, overcame
difficulties, took a foothold in the new development stage, and
accelerated the layout of circular economy development. Revenue and
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 were approximately
RMB222.8 million and RMB80.2 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 13.3% and 6.3%, respectively.

In 2022, the Group maintained its strategic focus, invested in
tomorrow, and made plans for the future. In order to further develop
the circular economy, the Group actively explored the road of
development, promoted the extension of the industry chain, optimised
the industrial layout, and expanded a production line involving
sulphuric acid production during the Reporting Period, further
enriched the product portfolio to achieve the stability of the Group’s
profitability on the basis of giving full play to its own advantages,
focused on long-term and more sustainable business development,
promoted the overall development of circular economy, and helped
green development.

In 2022, the Group actively conducted research and development,
explored new technologies, and fully promoted the commissioning of
new projects. In order to further promote the improvement of industry
competitiveness and structure optimisation, and effectively improve
the development level of circular economy, during the Reporting
Period, the Group continued to promote the development of “high-
silicon flotation tailings recycling technology” and accelerated the
pace of production. Such research and development innovation will
promote business development, provide growth momentum, build
long-term competitiveness, deepen the development of circular
economy, and comprehensively improve the efficiency of resource
utilisation in the industry.

E)]

—EoF EHBRREEMHSE  HRLEE
Bl BINBIRBROBEES B2
WRBRFERE T &2 R HEE RN
RoEHHELREBMKE REBBHRE B
BI+MHAEIFENE2EHEE RETH T2
FEREER NERBEREEERMR - HEZ
T —F+-AZ+—HULFEERIKAR4
AR ABHARE2228AETMARES.2H
BT R DBIT$13.3% f6.3% °

TR CF AEBRBEE N IRERKX
HmRRK - BE-—PEBBRLEE AKEE
BHRSERIK HEEXBREMR BLLEXE
HE EREHANRRT KPP REEEED
FES ERNDEEGFELHER L #—
PEEERAGUERASEAFEE N &
RREEMFAASEENELSER HSBERE
BREBEERRD BWHEBER-

“ECF AKEEGRE RRIRMN 2
NEEFBERRE - RE—FHETERFD
RAREREL DERSEEEERRKE:
ERSHAREEY (W IERRERLED
Wit | BB IR IR EE 201K - B% BT 3% BT S
BEBER REERS N TERBBEF
RIEEREPFER 2HRSTEERMNAX
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

YN, YN

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2023, the Group will closely focus on the “14th
Five-Year” circular economy development plan, firmly grasp the period
of major strategic opportunities, and move forward courageously.
Focusing on its resource strategy, the Group will continue to open up
new ideas, plan and build comprehensive solid waste utilisation
projects, increase investment in scientific and technological research
and development, create a circular economic industry chain for gold
and hazardous waste resources, and explore a sustainable business
model.

The Group will focus on the following aspects: the first is to speed up
the promotion and development of projects, and improve the level of
refined management of projects; the second is to strengthen the two-
wheel drive of scientific and technological innovation, increase the
intensity of technological innovation, promote the high-value
development of comprehensive utilisation of solid waste resources,
and transform it into the driving force for enterprise development; the
third is to strictly control and compact safety management, strengthen
safety management, and make steady efforts to lay a solid foundation;
the fourth is to improve management and cultural construction to
facilitate rapid business expansion. The Group will persist in
developing the circular economy in depth, realise efficient utilisation
and recycling of resources, make the circular economy industry
stronger, better and bigger, and become a leading enterprise in the
circular economy field with market competitiveness.

APPRECIATION

The Group's continued success depends on all its staff's commitment,
dedication and professionalism. The Board would like to thank every
member of staff for their diligence and dedication and to express its
sincere appreciation to the Group’s shareholders, clients and suppliers
for their continuous and valuable support.

HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY
LIMITED

Liu Zeming

Chairman and Executive Director

31 March 2023
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- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S A N

BB WD T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Consolidating Industry Position Through Robust
Management

The Group, based in Shandong province, the PRC, has been focusing
on gold mine hazardous waste treatment and resource recovery, and
comprehensive utilisation of gold mine hazardous wastes. We collect
cyanide tailings, which is a kind of gold mine hazardous waste
resulting from smelting of gold, from the Group's upstream customers,
mainly comprised of gold smelting companies under gold mining
companies with mine operations in Shandong province and in
particular, in Yantai city, which we, leveraging on our experience and
expertise, detoxify the cyanide tailings and recover therefrom
resources with economic value such as pyrite concentrate and gold-
bearing pyrite concentrate. We then sell the recycled products to our
downstream customers, mainly comprised of chemical manufacturing
companies and trading companies of chemicals in the PRC to attain
comprehensive utilisation of gold mine hazardous wastes. The Group
is the only company in Laizhou city, Shandong province that has
obtained the Hazardous Waste Business Licence issued by Yantai
Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau.

Currently, the Group has production facilities strategically located in
Laizhou city, Shandong province, where the quantity of gold reserves
is ranked first among the county-level cities in the PRC.

In 2022, the average procurement cost of raw materials increased in
the face of the resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic, high inflation
and interest rates, and international geopolitical tensions. Meanwhile,
the hazardous waste treatment industry in the PRC was undergoing
an accelerated transformation. The increase of production capacity in
some regions has led to intensified competition in the industry and a
downward trend of price of hazardous waste treatment. The global
economy was still facing a contraction in demand and supply shock,
and the upstream and downstream players along the value chain
where the Company operates were affected to varying degrees.
During the Reporting Period, the Company’s principal activities were
also impacted by industry and market competition.

Revenue and net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately RMB222.8 million and RMB80.2
million, respectively, representing a decrease of 13.3% and 6.3% as
compared to the same during the year ended 31 December 2021,
respectively.

£ 301)
HERE BETHEMN

AEEERRPBELURE EINEBEAEE
VBRI M SRR EEYHERLEK ARG R
B LREFPREELEE ERERESA
RBETPEEN-BEBREZTEY LHEP
TERRAELRE(LEREEM)KERE
EBNREARETHNERIARAA RFIF
RESNEBRNEZNR REILEESHE
X URFPERBEELSEMERERSFAAL
BEEMNER 2& RFSBLEERHEET
ThEFP BEREBREZTEVNEENA T
BEPIZEEPENMCIREARMETE
SR e NEBE R ILRE FM T — —FHEE
EMARRERELECREMELFAFND
ale

BRI A EER A ERBRE RN ILRAE R
M EMNECHELE2RBRATZE -

E-F_—_F mHUHERERE BRMNF
Xeh BERMEEERZER BRI TFHRE
BRABFIGM-RE BANEERETEER
MBIEAE - BBy RIHAEREIE N T B F AL
EREREERZRNTEREY CEREITESR
RELRBRRERR RN M B - 2 REED
AHERF YA HEGEE RBREITEL:
THEXHRITRREEZE -EREHRA
RATEREBTXBNTERTGHFEROE
£,

AEBHE T - —F+_A=+—HItFE
WARGFI DB AN ANRE22285 & LM A
REsO2EE L REEZE-_ZE-_—F+=A
= t+—HIEFEDHTFE13.3% F16.3% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS | o

EEE WD T

A N

Meanwhile, the Group’s gross profit decreased from approximately
RMB166.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB144.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to the decrease in
revenue. The Group’s gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2022 was 64.6%, which was comparable to the gross
profit margin of 64.8% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was widely recognised by
various sectors with its solid operating results, excellent management
team and hands-on management style, as evidenced by the “Excellent
Enterprise in the Solid Waste Industry of Shandong Province 2021"
(ZEZ—FFELRELEEEFEEXES B ZE) awarded by the
Shandong Association of Solid Waste Industry (1L 5 B EEE ¥ ).
In addition, in November 2022, the Group was selected as one of the
2021 Top 100 Enterprises of Shandong Province in Ecological and
Environmental Protection Industry” ( =&~ —FFEZ I RE £ IR
RE % A % %) by the Shandong Department of Ecology and
Environment for its technological capability and comprehensive
strength in integrated utilisation of resources.

Promoting the Expansion of Product Portfolio to Enhance
the Overall Competitiveness of the Group

The Group actively explored the integrated utilisation of resources and
the extension of value chain. To optimise resource utilisation, the
Group is devoted to diversifying product offering in its sale of recycled
products business and strengthening the recycling efficiency of
resources to enhance its core competitiveness.

Currently, the Group’s main recycled product is pyrite concentrate. To
further leverage on the Group’s technological advantage in resource
utilisation and recycling, the Group intends to use pyrite concentrate
as raw materials to produce more diversified recycled products and
extend the recycling cycle of resource utilisation. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was actively developing a production line in relation
to the production of sulphuric acid (the “New Product”) (the “New
Product Line") to enrich its product portfolio and expand its current
business. Pyrite concentrate is the main raw material used in the
production of the New Products, and the New Product Line is located
next to the Group's current manufacturing plant of pyrite concentrate,
therefore providing the Group with geographical and cost advantages
for operating the New Product Line.

HYEEN AEBEMNEFNREE_S=-_—F
T A=+ BLEFENHARKI6.66S
TR ERE T __F+-_A=1+—BIF
EHHAREI144088TT TN TREEZR
HRWARN TR - BE-_T - —F+_- A
=+ —HIEFE AEEEMNE46% BHE
TR —F+-A=+—HBIFEN64.8%
40

EHREHRN AEEUAAENELXEMES
MEEEBGMESRNEEERRS T SRANR
ACREALRBEBEEXRHERENI-F
—FFEUREBBEEXESLE] I

—E-_F TR AKREREEEREA
MARKMENMEEE N WILREERIR
BRIYERI T FHFEURBLERERR
EXEBERPE] -

EHHEERESLER REAEEER

BED

AL BB EIRER S ) A0 E ST -
REREFAMNERNA NEBRIRAGH
BAEMNBEMNRE RN A E WK A
RIARBNZLHEFES -

ARl ARENTIZBLEERSMBE  SE
—HHAAREEEERN AL RHRMES
AEERMNBARBESRL FEHRESHEN
M) B AR EE dn - FE (R R A O [ OB B - AR5
BAERESHEBERR —HF RRBRAEE (TH
EmDNEER((HEREER]) NEEE
mA G MERER R - HNRBEENE M
EETHIER MATEREERBIMLI
AEBBEAMMBRELNRE ESELEE
EREMEMEEGTZEMIBARAES -
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- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S A N

BB WD T

The New Product Line will be developed with the land use right
owned by the Group in Yinhai Chemical Industrial Park, Laizhou city,
Shandong province, the PRC, with a total site area of approximately
533,300 sqg.m. (the “Land”), and the Group had allocated no more
than 10% area of the Land for the construction of the New Product
Line. For further details of the Land, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 6 January 2022.

The Group expects that the New Product Line will commence
production in or around the second quarter of 2023, with a maximum
annual production capacity of the New Product of approximately
240,000 tonnes. As of the date of this annual report, the Group is in
the process of obtaining the licence for the production of sulphuric
acid. We will comply with the applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules and make necessary announcements when there are further
developments in the operation of the New Product Line.

Committing to Technological Innovation to Accelerate
the Sustainable and High-quality Development of the
Group

The Group is deeply committed to the concept of innovation,
harmonisation and eco-friendliness. During the Reporting Period, the
Group’s research project, namely the “Gold Tailings Sulfur and Iron
Resources Recycling Project” (B & EEH#H ERBT A ER),
was awarded the Second Prize of Science and Technology Progress
Award of All-China Environment Federation (F #R{R B & @RI
# #8 — £ #8) by the All-China Environment Federation. With this
project, the Group had achieved a new substantial breakthrough in
the research and development of gold tailings disposal and resource
recycling technology, leveraging on technological innovation to
actively promote the integrated utilisation of solid waste resources
recovered towards high-value and in-depth development, and
contributing to the Group'’s patent and technological innovation base.

In the area of technology research and development, the Group
focused on the research of relevant technologies for recycling gold
tailings. During the Reporting Period, the Group and Yantai University
(fE= K 2) jointly conducted research on low-carbon recycling
technologies for high-silica residues, including the analysis of
properties of different cyanidation tailings and high-silica residues,
and the establishment of a database, which has achieved progressive
results for the low carbon recycling technology roadmap of high-
silicon residues.

TEGEESBREEEASBIFEN IR F
BlILEREHRMAEEC TEEXE @G0 EE
#)533,300F KM L E A ([ ]) - &
SEE DR T HBBEZMIEN10% AENERE
ERNEZ - EEZMRELERE F2HAE
NEE-ZE-—F—AHHRAE-

AEEEG FEREEGANE-_T_=F
FE_FELARBRE FEMRAFERLKR
WR24BWE- N AR EAE A EEHERF
MEREENEEFAIELNBIET  HHFEM
TESNERAE SRR RMASET LD
RAZERBRE FHAB RS-

BAORBREIR  MEAEETEHE-
m B #R

it

AEBRABEBARIF 9 FEES-ER
THR-AKERERBE [ESREREER
BURFRER| EFERRESGBERNWPE
RRBAGNMRESR_FH BEHTAKHE
EEdREREE N &R B U A 5 i 3% &
BEERY - RARMESN BEREDHEEER
tiraMBREEERERR EAKERK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS y

BEEERWED T

In respect of the research and development of gold tailings disposal
and resource recycling, the Group has cooperated with various
institutions and academies in recent years, including the All-China
Environment Federation, Shandong Association of Solid Waste
Industry and Yantai University, to provide strong technical research
and development support for the sustainable and high-quality
development of the Group.

Completing New Research and Development Pilot Line to
Promote Development of Demonstration Projects

The Group was actively pursuing the strategy of green and
sustainability, giving full play to promote the development of the local
gold industry, accelerating the construction of environmental
protection industries and enhancing the ecologicalisation of local
industries. During the Reporting Period, the launch of the Group's
new research and development pilot line enabled the further
development of “high-silica flotation tailings resource recovery
technology” (" m % /& EEER(LEUET "), the application of
which will help realise the nationwide utilisation of water slag
prepared through high-silica flotation tailings in building aggregates.
The technology breakthrough achieved three significant results: firstly,
it created a new method of utilising high-silica flotation tailings;
secondly, it achieved the comprehensive utilisation of all cyanide
tailings, solved the problems of low content of valuable components
in high-silica flotation tailings, poor engineering mechanism and low
resource recovery rate, and also offered a new perspective to the
industry; thirdly, it promoted the green development of the gold
industry. The breakthrough of this technology was conducive to the
sustainable development of the gold industry. By breaking through
the technical challenge of the large-scale utilisation of high-silica
flotation tailings, the launch of the project contributed to the efficient
use of high-silica flotation tailings.

EEERERENEREYA RS TESE
AEBIFRESERE PhEAMHENE
HPBRPERREA S WUWREEREEXRD
SNEEREBFRMEE RERAKENA
FE SmEBEREMHRTA DM EL
3 o
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EEEREEYWRM] (& - T ERE %A
BRER EHERE2BEBEASY /R
REREKEERESHNER - —2MET
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BRIEESENREE b RBETEFEE
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» | MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD T

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to 2023, as the Covid-19 pandemic is brought under
control and the situation gradually improves, China has largely
returned to normal and the domestic economy is gradually recovering,
albeit with some challenges remaining. The Chinese government will
further implement the sustainability strategy from its The Fourteenth
Five-Year Plan and the Outline of the Vision 2035 (& +PU{E 7 S 11
ZIF2035F & 5 B IZ41 ), green development, comprehensive
ecological transformation of economic and social development, and
the development of circular economy and environment protection
industries. In addition, in response to the increasing global focus on
environmental, social and corporate governance, companies will need
to pay more attentions to their social responsibility and environmental
protection. Leveraging its advantage in local resources, the Group will
continue to strengthen, optimise and expand its circular economy
activities, build a strong circular economy value chain of hazardous
and waste gold resources, construct a unique circular industry model,
and become a leader in the China’s comprehensive utilisation industry.
In 2023, the Group will focus on the following areas:

Continuously Promoting the Comprehensive Utilisation
of Solid Waste Resources Recovered towards High-value
and In-depth Development

Under the guidance of national policies and leveraging its resources,
the Group will increase its focus on improving resource utilisation
efficiency, vigorously promote the overall shift from the “low efficiency
and low value” model to the “high efficiency and high value” model
in hazardous waste disposal and recycling, further advance the
progress of the circular economy, realise the green and high-quality
development of hazardous waste disposal and recycling industry, and
carry out global planning based on the current development stage.

RE

RE-_ZT_=F BEHTEBESILEH K
RNEFTE PR EAMELE BRLE
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Continuing to Invest in Research and Development and
Seek New Breakthroughs

As China increasingly places emphasis on research and development
of solid waste resource recovery technology, the Group will intensify
its efforts in research and development, increase its support for
technological innovation, actively promote the research and
development of comprehensive utilisation of solid waste resources
recovered, accelerate the transformation of results, optimise existing
products, diversify our product offerings, and expand the reach of the
industry. At the same time, we will cooperate and exchange with
relevant institutions, academies and businesses. With a focus on reuse
and resource recovery, we will continue to push forward product
optimisation, upgrade product quality comprehensively, increase
resource recycling level, vigorously enhance resource utilisation
efficiency, and deepen the development of circular economy by
adhering to scientific research and innovation in order to strengthen
the ability to secure resources for economic and social development
and establish a sound economic system of green, low-carbon and
circular development.

Focusing on Projects and Keeping Promoting Refined
Management

The Group will continue to roll out solid waste resource recovery
projects to explore sustainability-related business opportunities. The
Group will further implement key circular economy technologies and
focus on key projects, refine project management to improve the cost-
effectiveness of production, guide the development of solid waste
comprehensive utilisation projects, strengthen support for the
implementation of circular economy projects, continue to extend the
reach of the value chain of the Group’s business, expand and enrich
its product offerings, and realise the organic combination of ecological
and economic benefits, so as to promote the development of
comprehensive utilisation of solid waste to a broader and deeper
extent. The Group will carry out systematic planning, achieve key
breakthroughs, push forward as a whole and make precise efforts. At
the same time, the Group will put safe production first, strictly control
and tighten safety management, enhance safety management efforts
and capacity, and ensure the safety of project production and
construction. The Group will closely follow the market and actively
plan in order to speed up the expansion of the resource recovery
business and continue to maintain its leadership in the industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Bt %5 [2] 8
i z8

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2022
—E-= —_F-
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR¥ TR AR®ETIT
Gold mine hazardous waste TREEEYRE
treatment services R 76,439 343 96,581 37.6
Sales of recycled products HEBEEM 131,855 59.2 145,955 56.8
Hazardous waste storage rental BEZEWEHEE
services RR 75 14,507 6.5 14,507 5.6
222,801 100.0 257,043 100.0

The Group principally collects cyanide tailings, which is a kind of gold
mine hazardous waste, from the Group’s upstream customers and
applied our technical know-how to (i) detoxify those wastes to meet
the required safety standards; and (ii) recover and recycle therefrom
resources with economic value for sale, such as pyrite concentrate and
gold- bearing pyrite concentrate. Therefore, revenue of the Group is
mainly derived from (i) gold mine hazardous waste treatment services;
and (ii) sale of recycled products.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from our gold mine
hazardous waste treatment services and sale of recycled products
accounted for approximately 93.5% (31 December 2021: 94.4%) of
our total revenue. The Group also derived revenue from the hazardous
waste storage rental services, which accounted for approximately
6.5% (31 December 2021: 5.6%) of our total revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's total revenue was
approximately RMB222.8 million, representing a decrease by
approximately 13.3% as compared to that of approximately
RMB257.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was mainly due to a 9.7% and a 20.9% decrease in revenue
from sales of recycled products and gold mine hazardous waste
treatment services, respectively, compared to the previous year. While
the market price of pyrite concentrate for 2022 remained high
compared to the previous year, our downstream customers had been
more conservative in their purchase of pyrite concentrate, resulting in
the decrease in the sale volume of pyrite concentrate for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Gold mine hazardous waste treatment
services for the year ended 31 December 2022 recorded decrease in
both treatment volumes and average treatment fees compared to the
previous year. The decrease was due to the fewer cyanide tailings
provided by upstream customers.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately RMB144.0 million, representing a decrease by
approximately 13.6% as compared to gross profit of approximately
RMB166.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was broadly in line with the decrease in the total revenue of
the Group.

The Group's gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December
2022 was 64.6%, which was comparable to the gross profit margin
of 64.8% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other income

Other income increased significantly from approximately RMB78,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB1.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The increase was
mainly due to (i) income of approximately RMBO.6 million for acting
as an agent from sales of magnesite; and (ii) certain tax refund and
employee personal income tax related handling fees of approximately
RMB1.2 million during the Reporting Period in accordance with the
relevant preferential policies. The agency service income was an one-
off transaction and the Group is not actively pursuing business
opportunities in such agency business.
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Selling expenses

Our selling expenses mainly consist of (i) entertainment expense; and
(i) employee salary and benefit expenses for our sales team. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's selling expenses was
approximately RMB2.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 20.8% as compared to that of approximately RMB2.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was
mainly due to the increase of approximately RMBO0.5 million in
entertainment expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group mainly represent (i)
employee benefit expenses, including salaries and wages and staff
welfare for administrative and management staff; (i) Listing expenses
incurred in connection with the Listing; (iii) taxes and levies which
primarily represented various kinds of government levies or taxes such
as real estate tax, urban construction tax, tenure tax and stamp duty;
(iv) depreciation and amortisation of right-of-use assets, administrative
facilities and technology research and development related facilities;
(v) office expenses; (vi) entertainment expenses; (vii) professional and
consultation fee; (viii) transportation and related expenses, including
those incurred in business travels of administrative and management
staff and business use of vehicles expenses; and (ix) other expenses of
similar nature. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
administrative expenses was approximately RMB32.6 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 18.1% as compared to
administrative expenses of approximately RMB39.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease was mainly due to (i)
the decrease of Listing expenses in connection with the Listing of
approximately RMB14.2 million; (ii) the new land use rights, resulting
in an increase of approximately RMB1.8 million in taxes and levies; (iii)
the new research and development pilot line equipment and new land
use rights, resulting in an increase of approximately RMB2.1 million in
total in depreciation and amortisation expenses; (iv) the new research
and development pilot line , which was put into operation during the
year, resulting in an increase of approximately RMB1.4 million in costs
incurred during the related research and development process; and (v)
the increase in other administrative expenses as a result of operational
development.
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Net finance costs

Our net finance costs reflected the sum of interest expenses on bank
borrowings, lease liabilities and other liabilities after offsetting interest
income and foreign exchange gain or loss we received from bank
balances. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s net
finance costs were approximately RMB5.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 16.7% as compared to the net finance
costs of approximately RMB6.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease in net finance costs was mainly due to
the net foreign exchange gain of approximately RMB1.2 million
incurred by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised a net foreign
exchange loss of approximately RMBO0.4 million.

Income tax expense

Our Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act
and accordingly is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. Our
Company’s direct wholly owned subsidiary was incorporated in the
BVI as a business company with limited liability under the BVI
Companies Act 2004 and accordingly is exempted from BVI income
tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group did not
generate any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The tax rate of our subsidiaries established in the PRC is 25%. HC
Environmental and HC Mining, engaging in comprehensive utilisation
of resources, are also entitled to a reduction of 10% revenue from
sales of recycled products from the taxable income of the companies
for the calculation of CIT.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s income tax
expense was approximately RMB23.5 million, representing a decrease
by approximately 25.4% as compared to income tax expenses of
approximately RMB31.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, reflecting effective tax rates (equivalent to income tax expense
divided by profit before income tax) of approximately 22.7% and
26.9% for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the year ended 31
December 2021, respectively.
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The decrease in the effective tax rate from approximately 26.9% for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 22.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly due to (i) the decrease in
tax losses incurred by certain of our Group companies in Hong Kong
and the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to
the previous year. No deferred income tax assets were recognised as it
was not probable for the Company to generate taxable income in the
foreseeable future; (ii) the PRC withholding tax of RMB1.8 million on
the earnings remitted by the PRC subsidiaries recognised by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021, but with no recognition of
such PRC withholding tax by the Group during the Reporting Period;
and (iii) revenue from sales of recycled products, entitled to a
reduction of 10% from the taxable income in the calculation of CIT,
accounting for a larger portion of the total revenue during the year
ended 31 December 2022 as compared to the previous year.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax on dividends
received/receivable will be levied on the PRC companies’ immediate
holding companies established out of the PRC. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty arrangement between
the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign immediate holding
companies and simultaneously certain conditions are satisfied.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditure mainly comprised of the acquisition of items
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, we incurred capital expenditure of
approximately RMB252.3 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB18.5 million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB9.3 million (31 December 2021: nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the total net book value of assets pledged
to secure the Group's bank borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB21.9 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB5.9 million)
for land use rights, approximately RMB54.4 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB68.7 million) for buildings and
approximately RMB124.7 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB67.8 million) for investment properties.
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As at 31 December 2022, land use rights with a total net book value
of approximately RMB15.6 million (31 December 2021: nil) and
buildings with a total net book value of approximately RMB40.8
million (31 December 2021: nil) of the Group were pledged as security
for short-term bank borrowings of RMB16.0 million, in aggregate
granted to two third parties.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a subsidiary of the Group
provided guarantees to the two third parties’ banking facilities
amounting to RMB6 million, which was repaid to the bank in March
2023, and RMB10 million repayable by October 2023, respectively.
The guarantees were supported by the pledge of the Group’s property
and land use rights to the banks. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
assessed the provisions based on the credit history of the third parties
and the current market condition and no significant provision is
noted.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury policies. To
manage the liquidity risk, the Group closely monitors its liquidity
position to ensure the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and commitments and to ensure the fulfilment of its funding
requirements for business development.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group carries out its business operations in the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in RMB save for certain fees
payable to professional parties and miscellaneous administrative
expenses that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Hence the
Group does not currently have a hedging policy on foreign exchange
risk as the Board does not consider the Group's exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations (primarily in HKD) to be significant, and that
any fluctuation thereof will not have any material impact on the
Group's business operations or its financial results. The management
will, however, closely monitor its foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

RZE - ZF+-A=+—8 XEBEFKEF
BEREYAANREIS6ABT(ZZE - —4F
TZA=T—BR &) FERAELERF
BREBENAARBIOSEE L (T - —F
TZA=FT—RH \B)NEFEERERART
WMAE=ZFNEEXARE16.05 B LA HE
ITIEFREEIR -

HREE

BHE-_Z-_—F+_A=+—HItFE A&XE&E
BB ARMMRE=ZFHRITHEAR
BeEEL(R-_ZE-_=ZF=ZAEEFETIK
ARBI0BETL(ERZE_=F+AEER)IE
HER ZEERAAFRTEBAEEDER
TR EREYFE - RS -_—F+—-A
—t+—H AEERBEE=-FTNEEZHERLE
AT AT (B Wi BB KBS -

B HR
AEEUHHEERRREONBREE - BEER

B MR - AN B P B AR B AR - DA TE
RAKEEE BEREFNORBIEEE 5
RMERGERNESHF K-

S L B o R

AEERFPEEEEL BRTENEXALH
=T EARMEETBAAETTHESN A8
DRBEYANAREFHERGEE - UL NEE
BRI EBLIMNERBR R I H PR NEES
SRR/AEEMEENINERE (ETZNET
AEYAER HEARPTIeHAERY

XGEELAMBREENEAZE - RN &
EESEL %%ﬁ?l\ﬁ@kﬁﬁ’lﬁébx%%%

BRSNS R

20 HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S N

EEE R WD T

Liquidity, Finance Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB7.9 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB242.7 million). As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio was
approximately 30.0% (31 December 2021: approximately 35.4%).
The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity at
the end of the relevant year and multiplying by 100%. Debt is defined
as amounts payable that are not incurred in the ordinary course of
business and includes bank borrowings, lease liabilities and other
liabilities relating to warehouse lease arrangements. The significant
decrease in the Group's net current assets was mainly due to the
decrease of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as a result of the
capital expenditure of approximately RMB252.3 million incurred by
the Group for land acquisition, and purchase of equipment and
construction during the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintained a strong financial
position with cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB59.2
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB235.6 million). The
Group met and expects to continue meeting its operating capital,
capital expenditure and other capital needs with cash generated from
operations and proceeds from the Listing.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no material change in
its capital structure. The capital of the Company comprised only
ordinary shares.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Zeming ( %/ #%) (formerly known as Liu Zeming
(21’28)), aged 47

Mr. Liu is an executive Director and chairman of the Board who is
responsible for the overall management of the business operations
and strategic and corporate development of the Group. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and chairman of the
Nomination Committee. He was appointed as Director on 12 January
2021 and re-designated as executive Director on 8 April 2021. Mr. Liu
is a founder of the Group and our Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Liu has
over 10 years of experience in operation and management business of
metal ore waste processing. Mr. Liu has been an executive director
and general manager of HC Mining since April 2011. He has obtained
the qualification of PRC Intermediate Assistant Economist (7 4% B) 3%
#FERD ) from Yantai Engineering & Technical Position Intermediate
Evaluation Committee (B2 M TR FMBBPRFTEZEE) in
February 2003. He was appointed as a member of the standing
committee of Shandong People’s Political Consultative Conference (¥
BEARBGAWEEHILEEZE D) in January 2013 and January
2018, respectively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked for Laizhou Jinshan Stone
Raw Materials Trading Co., Ltd. (M & L AM B E B R A F),
which principally engaged in the trading of stone raw materials, from
September 2003 to April 2011 holding his last position as sales
manager. He worked as a manager at Laizhou Property Development
Company Limited (3% MM 55 i Z F 2 B BR A 7)) from July 1997 to
August 2003. He also worked at the former People’s Government of
Xiyou Town, Laizhou City (%M ™ 78 B 3E A R BURT), and was
primarily responsible for clerical works from September 1995 to July
1997.

Mr. Liu has received various awards with social impact throughout the
years. He was awarded a certificate of honour for his personal
contribution in fighting the COVID-19 in Shandong Province [(1LE
EMENMEREMAEBRERAILEFZE) issued by the
Shandong Provincial Committee of the China Peasants’ and Workers’
Democratic Party (FEIR TR F EILEREZ B E) in December
2020; the title of “Model Worker of Yantai” (" [EEM A EhiE& ")
jointed issued by the Yantai Municipal Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the Yantai Municipal People’s Government ( # &

BEEMZMEZEMARBKMA) in April 2019; the “Economic
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Development Progress Award” for the year 2018 (20184 & [ 4% 7 %%
[RH#E 2] ) jointly issued by the Laizhou Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China and the Laizhou Municipal People’s
Government (FF EKF ML 8 € RF M ARBHAT) in February
2019; the 13th “Ten Outstanding Youth Nomination Award of Yantai
City ("EZE+REHFF")" jointly issued by the Yantai Municipal
Committee of the Communist Youth League and the Yantai Youth
Federation (REBEEMENEZM S FH S ) in October 2015;
and the honorary title of “Model Youth of Laizhou” (“ ZM T8 &5 &
") jointly issued by the Organisation Department of the Laizhou
Municipal Committee of the Communist Party of China (4 &M 1
Z B %%30) and other four departments in December 2012.

Mr. Liu completed the tertiary education program in business
administration from Shandong Agricultural Management College (L1
HEEEEREIER) (currently known as LI 2 % T2 E67) in
July 1999. He further completed a post-graduate education program
in modern Chinese history from Shandong Normal University (1L 3 &l
& A 2) in July 2000. Mr. Liu obtained a doctorate’s degree in
Business Administration at North Borneo University College in
Malaysia by way of distance learning in February 2022.

Mr. Zhan Yirong (& Z %) (formerly known as Zhan Dongtang
(B X %)) (“Mr. Zhan"), aged 33

Mr. Zhan is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company who is responsible for the overall administrative and
operational management of our Group. He was appointed as an
executive Director on 8 April 2021. Mr. Zhan has more than ten years
of experience in corporate management in the gold mine hazardous
waste treatment industry. He joined the Group in March 2012 and
worked as purchasing manager of HC Mining. During the years, he
worked as deputy manager and manager of business administration
department, general manager assistant and deputy general manager
of HC Mining and acquired experiences in sales and business
administration. Mr. Zhan has been the general manager of HC Mining
and HC Environmental concurrently since January 2017.

Mr. Zhan obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design,
manufacturing and automation from Qingdao Binhai University (5 &
/B EPT) in July 2012. He obtained the PRC Cartographer at Senior
Skill Level qualification from Shandong Vocational Skills Identification
and Guidance Center ( LI 5 & B 2 5 8 28 £ 1 0») in February 2011.
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Mr. Sheng Haiyan (B8 %) (“Mr. Sheng”), aged 56

Mr. Sheng is an executive Director and chief technical officer of our
Company who is responsible for the overall research and development
and technical management of the Group. He was appointed as an
executive Director on 8 April 2021. He has more than 30 years of
experience in chemical related industry. He joined the Group in
December 2012. Mr. Sheng was the technical research and
development engineer of HC Environmental from December 2012 to
December 2017. He has been the technical research and development
engineer of HC Mining since January 2018. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Sheng worked at Laizhou Jinxing Chemicals Co., Ltd. (3&/1 < &t
{E THRE 2 7), which principally engaged in, among other
things chemicals manufacturing and processing from August 1991 to
November 2012 holding his last position as chief engineer.

Mr. Sheng obtained a bachelor’s degree in organic chemistry from
Jiangxi University (LR 2) (currently known as Nanchang University
(FI B KXE)) in July 1991. He obtained the qualification of
intermediate engineer from Yantai Chemical Engineering and
Technical Evaluation Committee (/8 Z= Wb T T2 & 1B 75 o BT =
Z B®)in October 1998.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Shijun (3R =X &) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 57

Mr. Zhang is an independent non-executive Director who is
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to
the Board. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2021. Mr. Zhang has over 36 years
of experience in education and environmental management. He has
been teaching at Shandong University (Ll 5 KX 28) since July 2005
and has been working as a professor of law since October 2020. Mr.
Zhang served at Qingdao Municipal Bureau of Ecology and
Environment (5 & T A AR ), a government bureau located in
Qingdao, Shandong province, which principally engaged in the
environmental management and supervision of Qingdao city from July
1996 to August 2002, holding his last position as engineer of
environmental management. Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer at Normal
College of Qingdao University (&5 & A2 RN &2 f7) from April 1996
to June 1996. He also worked as a teacher at No. 3 Middle School of
Laoshan Qingdao (B &M ILEE = #F £) from July 1984 to
August 1993. Mr. Zhang has been working as an independent non-
executive director in Shandong Sunway Chemical Group CO., Ltd. (L4
R (LBEBRMBABR2AA), a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 002469), since April 2017.
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Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in geography from Shandong
Normal University (I EM%5 A E2) in June 1990. He then obtained a
master's degree in environmental chemistry from Zhejiang University
(HT KE8) in March 1996. Mr. Zhang further obtained a doctorate’s
degree in science of environment and natural resources protection law
from Wuhan University (/2 A 2) in June 2005.

Ms. Liu Ye (£IE#) ("Ms. Liu”), aged 48

Ms. Liu is an independent non-executive Director who is responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
She is also the chairlady of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.
She was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of our
Group on 23 October 2021. Ms. Liu has approximately 25 years of
teaching experience and approximately nine years of part-time
working experience in the legal industry. She has worked as a part-
time lawyer at Shandong Zhongcheng Renhe Law Firm (LI B SR A=
MR EFT) from March 2012 to May 2015 and Grandall Law
Firm (Ji Nan Office) (B2 AD (& Fa) E % FT) from May 2015 to
June 2016 respectively. She has been working as a senior partner at
Shandong Ray & Young Law Firm (LB & 5 EZE0FIEFT) since June
2016. Ms. Liu taught at Shandong Police Officer Training Institute ( 1L
HAZEEIEZ6) as a teacher from December 1997 to December
2013. She has been teaching at Shandong University of Political
Science and Law (Il B BUE EFR) since May 2014 and has been
working as an associate professor since November 2017.

Ms. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in international trading from
Yantai University (EZ K £) in July 1997. She further obtained a
master’s degree in political economies from Shandong University ( [
B K E) in December 2003. Ms. Liu obtained the qualification of PRC
Legal Professional Qualification Certificate in February 2009. She also
obtained the qualification of PRC Securities Practice Certificate in April
2017.
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Mr. Lau Chung Wai ( £ #&), aged 40

Mr. Lau is an independent non-executive Director who is responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2021. He is the independent non-
executive Director who has the qualifications and experience to meet
the requirements under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau has over 18 years of experience in accounting and finance. He
has been serving as company secretary of Kwung’s Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board (stock code: 1925), since March
2019. Mr. Lau has also been working as an independent non-
executive director of Fufeng Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board (stock code: 546), and Metropolis Capital Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8621), since June 2019 and November 2018, respectively. He
has been working as a company secretary of Omnibridge Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8462), Hygieia Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board (stock code: 1650) and IAG Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8513), since April
2022, December 2019 and August 2017, respectively. He worked as
chief financial officer of Kwung'’s Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board (stock code: 1925), from March 2019 to April
2022. Mr. Lau worked as company secretary and chief financial officer
of Da Sen Holdings Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board (stock code: 1580), from August 2015 to March 2019. He
worked as group financial controller of Passion Art International
Holdings Limited, a company primarily engaged in manufacture and
sale of furniture and home decoration products, from May 2013 to
July 2015. Mr. Lau worked as financial manager of Starcom
Worldwide, a media agency company which is a subsidiary of Publicis
Groupe SA, a company listed on the Euronext Paris (stock code: PUB),
from September 2011 to April 2013. He worked at the Hong Kong
office of Ernst & Young from September 2004 to September 2011,
holding his last position as manager in the assurance department.

Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a degree of bachelor of business administration in
accounting in November 2004. He was admitted as a certified public
accountant of HKICPA in January 2008 and a fellow member of
HKICPA in May 2015.

BIMPESE - 405

HEERBUFANTES AELEEEEN
ITHEYRMEZTSRHEBIHAG -BRITREZE
BEeTRLFHEEE@KE RN _F=-—
TAZTZREZERBIUFNTEEZ KA
BE/FE EWHRAIE310Q) 58 E R ER R
BEVBIIFNITES-

BEETGA VB TEEBBBISFLR-
RE_ZE-NF-AREEERETAGRELE
AR AR (BRI 1925) W ARIME-
ArEETE_E—NFAARZE—N\F+—
BEDBETER LETAGTELEEFR AR
(B& 5% : 546) K B 2 FF GEM £ 2 A
Metropolis Capital Holdings Limited ( B% {5 5%
8621 BY FFMITEF KRB T - —F /N
A ZE-NF+ZARZZE—tFN\AES
RIEEBZFGEIM L Aa R LR EEE
BRAR (B&HARSE:8462)  EiR EH A A
Hygieia Group Limited (A& 13 (X 5% : 1650) K Bt
LT GEM ET AR B ERIFERAB R QA (R KR
$i8SI3MARIME -KE-_T-—NF=RZE
TR _FNAEEFR ETARETIERE
RAF (BRORIF 1925 EFHBE 2%k
ER-ZFE—AFNAZRZZ—NAF=-AERE
RETMATARREREEERAR (RO
1580) M ARIMEREFTBEE - R _F
—=FRAE=FT—HF+t H¥EEPassion Art
International Holdings Limited &9 52 B4 75 48 25 »
ZARFEREFHRERFEREARREEME
BB EERZTE——FhLAEZZT—=FN
B ¥E (T 15 88 R 32 A A) Starcom Worldwide &9 8F
4% 38 - 3% /2 8] A Publicis Groupe SA ( —EIRE
RZBR S EmHAE - RO PUB) Y
MEBAG FR-_ZETENFNAE_T——F
NAELZKGMEBRAEANRERLIE &
BRI RERT RIS ACIR

&

FEENR_ZTOF+ - ARERTERRAK
B EREAEIRNEREEL BN - RN _-F
ENF-ARERRBEGIMAGHNAES
R YR —E-RAFRARRBEGIAQ

ENEXRGR-

26 HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



\\.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Weiping (3R & %) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 53

Mr. Zhang is the deputy general manager of HC Environmental who is
responsible for the overall daily operation of HC Environmental and
overall production safety of HC Environmental. Mr. Zhang has over 30
years of experience in production safety and operation. He joined our
Group in May 2017 working as the supervisor of production safety
and environmental protection at HC Environmental from May 2017 to
September 2018. He then worked at HC Mining as deputy general
manager for production safety and operation from September 2018
to February 2020. Mr. Zhang has been serving as the deputy general
manager of HC Environmental since February 2020. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhang worked at Shandong Tiancheng Biological
Golden Industry Co., Ltd. (IURKFEYE EHFR A F]) (“Shandong
Tiancheng”) which principally engages in metal processing from
February 1990 to May 2017 holding his last position as supervisor of
environmental protection safety.

Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma in mechatronics engineering from
Qingdao University of Technology (% & T K2 in July 2018 by
way of distance learning. He obtained the certificate of PRC senior
environmental protection safety engineer from AXKG Appraisal
Organisation (AXKG 2 Bl B 3 1 g & 5 22 78 7 0 ) in October 2020.

Mr. Zhu Guangping (& &) (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 51

Mr. Zhu is the deputy general manager of HC Mining who is
responsible for the overall daily operation of HC Mining and overall
environmental and safety operation of HC Mining. Mr. Zhu has over
34 years of experience in production and manufacturing industry. He
joined our Group in November 2017 working as the deputy general
manager for production safety and environmental protection of HC
Environmental from November 2017 to March 2020. He has been
serving as the deputy general manager of HC Mining since March
2020. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhu worked at Shandong
Tiancheng from December 1987 to July 2017 holding his last position
as workshop supervisor.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in metallurgical technology from
Northeastern University (1t X 22) in July 2015 by way of distance
learning. He obtained the certificate of PRC senior solid waste
processing engineer from China Association of Machinery Equipment
Maintenance and Renovation (P B4 % 2% f# 4 15 B s Rl i &)
in September 2020.
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Mr. Wong Yun Fai ( £ ##) ("Mr. Wong"), aged 35

Mr. Wong is the company secretary and chief financial officer of the
Group who is responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group. He joined the Group on 21 December 2020 and was
subsequently appointed as the chief financial officer of our Group on
23 April 2021. Mr. Wong has over 10 years of experience in audit and
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wong worked at certain
PRC subsidiaries of Shenzhen Huaruixin Asset Management Co., Ltd.
CRITMESEEEETEARAAF) ("HRX"), a company which
principally engaged in asset management from January 2018 to
December 2020, holding his last position as chief financial officer of
both HRX and EMP Capital Limited, a Hong Kong subsidiary of HRX.
He worked at the Xiamen office of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and the
Hong Kong office of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from January 2016 to
December 2017 and from February 2015 to January 2016,
respectively, holding his last position as a manager of the audit and
assurance department. Mr. Wong worked as senior operations
planning executive at Neo Derm (HK) Limited, a company which
principally engaged in providing medical aesthetics services, from April
2014 to January 2015. He worked at Moore Stephens Associates
Limited (currently know as Moore Stephens CPA Limited) from
October 2010 to April 2014, holding his last position as audit senior.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2010. He was
admitted as a certified public accountant of HKICPA in July 2014. Mr.
Wong was further admitted as a certified public accountant by the
Washington State Board of Accountancy in January 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company recognises the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
applicable code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Group is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The management is delegated with authorities and
responsibilities by the Board for the Company’s daily operations and
businesses management according to the Board’s instructions. The
Board has established various Board committees and has delegated
various duties to the Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”). All the Board
Committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect
of legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated, and should not be
performed by the same individual.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Liu, an executive Director,
was the chairman of the Board while Mr. Zhan, an executive Director,
was the chief executive officer of the Company.
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The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer remains
separated with a clear division of responsibilities performed by
different individuals to maintain their independence, accountability,
well-balanced power and authority.

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consists of six Directors,
comprising three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Zeming (Chairman)
Mr. Zhan Yirong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sheng Haiyan (Chief Technical Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Shijun
Ms. Liu Ye
Mr. Lau Chung Wai

The Company has entered into service agreement with each of the
executive Directors, and letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors. Further details of the term of
appointment of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Service Contracts” in Report of the Directors on pages 54
to 55 of this annual report.

The Directors’ respective biographical information is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to
28 of this annual report.

There is no personal relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive director
representing at least one-third of the Board. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has confirmed his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers each of
them has satisfied his independence to the Group.
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ANALYSIS OF THE DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s
performance.

We have adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of our Board that are
relevant to our Company's development. Our Board and senior
management team, have a balanced mix of experiences and
background, including but not limited to, experiences in metal ore
waste processing, business administration, corporate management,
manufacturing and processing, environmental management, legal,
education, and audit and accounting industries. Our Board and senior
management team obtained degrees in various majors including
business administration, mechanical design, manufacturing and
automation, chemistry, geography, environmental chemistry,
international trading, political economy, accounting, metallurgical
technology, and mechatronics. We have three independent non-
executive Directors with different industry backgrounds and of both
genders. Moreover, our Board members has a wide range of age,
ranging from 33 years old to 57 years old.

The Company will take into account factors relating to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated with the overall
responsibility for implementation, monitoring and periodic review of
our Board Diversity Policy. Any revisions to the policy as recommended
by the Nomination Committee will be submitted to the Board for
consideration and approval.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding transactions
of securities of the Company by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry with each of the Directors, and they
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards as set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements upon commencement of their directorship in
the Company.

To ensure that each Director's better understanding in respect of the
Company’s conduct and business activities to perform their
responsibilities as a Director, the Company will arrange appropriate
training, including arranging and funding suitable training and
professional development programme for the Directors.

According to the records kept by the Company, all the Directors (a)
attended seminars and/or trainings that are relevant to the Directors’
professional knowledge and skills and in performing their duties and
responsibilities as Directors; and (b) read materials that are relevant to
the Directors’ professional knowledge and skills and in performing
their duties and responsibilities as Directors.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated
and provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a director.

The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2022 is summarised below:
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Name of Director

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Zeming ZBEREE

Mr. Zhan Yirong B 8RE A

Mr. Sheng Haiyan BRI HEE A
Independent Non-executive BUFHITES

Directors

Mr. Zhang Shijun wRAELRE

Ms. Liu Ye BIrg 7 £

Mr. Lau Chung Wai g S A
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date which may be terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ written notice. The term of service contract shall be
renewed and extended automatically for successive terms of one year
upon expiry of the then current term until terminated by either party
by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been appointed
for an initial term of three years commencing from 23 October 2021
which may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ written notice. The term of appointment shall be renewed
and extended automatically for successive terms of two years upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ written notice to the other.

All the Directors are appointed for a specific term and subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

In accordance with article 83(2) of the Articles of Association, subject
to the articles and the law, the Company may by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.
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In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 83(7) of the Articles of Association, the
Company may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary
resolution increase or reduce the number of Directors but so that the
number of Directors shall never be less than two.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days will be given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend
and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or committee members seven days
(and in any event not less than three days) before the meetings to
ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised on the
matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will be
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and
committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The attendance of each Director for the Board meetings, board
committee meetings and general meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the following table:

Exeel ExERE9g8RR
RAENHELR
RBE-ZT-__F+-A=+—HIFEET
MEFERR EFEZBEIRABREKRE
TOREFHESRNVBEREN K

Meeting attended/meetings eligible to attend
HESRRY, SEREENES

Directors

Audit Remuneration
committee
ERZEY

General
Meeting
BRRA®

Nomination
committee

REZES

committee

¥HZES

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Zeming skt 55  N/A i 212 22 1”
Mr. Zhan Yirong B2 8%EE 55 NATEA  NATEA  NATEA 171
Mr. Sheng Haiyan BgMELE 55  NATEA NATER NATEAR 11
Independent Non- BYFHTES

executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Shijun RRAERE 5/5 33 NATER 212 1n
Ms. Liu Ye BlpE L+ 5/5 33 2/2 22 111
Mr. Lau Chung Wai 2L L 5/5 33 22 NATEAR 111
DELEGATION BY THE BOARD ESgmNRE

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors could
have resource to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management of the Group. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the senior management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and delegated various
responsibilities to these committees, which assist the Board in
overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s activities. Each of the
Board Committees has specific written terms of reference which
clearly specify their authority and duties.
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Audit Committee

We established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 23 October 2021. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include ensuring that an
effective financial reporting, internal control and risk management
systems are in place and compliance of the Listing Rules, controlling
the completeness of our Company’s financial statements, selecting
external auditors and assessing their independence and qualifications,
and ensuring the effective communication between our internal and
external auditors.

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Lau
Chung Wai, Mr. Zhang Shijun and Ms. Liu Ye, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Chung Wai is the
chairman of the Audit Committee who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to (i) review the annual consolidated financial
statements and annual results announcement of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 as well as the audit report prepared by
the Company’s auditor relating to accounting issues and major
findings in course of audit; (i) review the Company’s relationship with
the external auditor, discussed with the Company’s external auditor
on the tasks performed by them including the nature and scope of
their audit and reporting obligations, and reviewed the terms of
engagement and their remuneration; (iii) review the appropriateness
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and make relevant recommendations to the Board; (iv)
review the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group; (v)
review the adoption of the relevant accounting principles generally
accepted and made recommendations to the Board on the adoption
of accounting policies; and (vi) discuss the re-appointment
arrangement of the Company’s auditor and the Board had not
deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the Company’s
auditor.
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Remuneration Committee

We established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 23
October 2021. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include assisting our Board in determining the remuneration policy for
and structure of our Directors and senior management of our Group,
reviewing incentive schemes and service contracts of our Directors,
and ensuring the execution of the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management of our Group.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including
two independent non-executive directors, namely Ms. Liu Ye, Mr. Lau
Chung Wai and one executive Director, namely Mr. Liu Zeming. Ms.
Liu Ye is the chairlady of the Remuneration Committee.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
held two meeting to (i) discuss and make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration; (ii) review the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management of the
Company; and (iii) assess the performance of Directors and review the
terms of service agreements for the Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

We established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 23 October 2021. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee include assisting our Board in
identifying suitable candidates for our Directors and making
recommendations to our Board, assessing the structure and
composition of our Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group's corporate strategy, preparing, making
recommendations to and supervising the execution of the nomination
policy of the Company, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises three members, including one
executive Director, namely Mr. Liu Zeming, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Liu Ye and Mr. Zhang Shijun. Mr. Liu
Zeming is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to (i) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board; (ii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; (iii) review the policy on Board
diversity and measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy; (iv) review the policy on nomination of Directors; and
(v) review the re-appointment of Directors who are subject to retire by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedures to
nominate Board candidates. When making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of factors in assessing the suitability of the
proposed candidate, including but not limited to:

(i)  reputation for integrity;

(i) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the recycling,
environmental and other related industries;

(i) commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Group's business;

(iv)  diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(v)  the qualification and ability to assist and support management
and make significant contributions to the Group;

(vi)  the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;
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(vi)  compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment or re-
appointment of an independent non-executive Directors; and

(viii) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

Appointment of any proposed candidates to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing members of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Articles of Association and other applicable rules
and regulations. The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a
general meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of our Board that are relevant to our Company's
development. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, selection of our
Board candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to our Board.

Based on the Nomination Committee’s review for the year ended 31
December 2022, the Nomination Committee considered that these
measurable objectives have been satisfactorily implemented and that
there was sufficient diversity in the Board for the Company’s corporate
governance and business development needs. The Nomination
Committee will review the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. Remuneration paid to the top senior management (excluding
the Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2022 fell within the
following bands are as follows:

e HE

Emolument bands

BRERENBERATREERSREE
Bl —fEE - RBEE2_ZT-__F+_-A4
—t+—HLFE BENEaREEE (T8E
BER)NMENTATEHE:

No. of employees

BEAE

Nil to HKD 1,000,000

£% 1,000,000 %7 2

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 which give a true and fair view of operating results
and cash flow for the year. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 65 to 72 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The Board has reviewed and monitored: (i) the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, (ii) training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, (iii) the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, (iv) the Company’s code of
conduct manual applicable to employee and Directors and (v) the
Company’s compliance with the Code disclosures requirements. The
Company's corporate governance practices have complied with the
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
the Board Diversity Policy, the dividend policy, the Nomination Policy
and the shareholders communication policy of the Company.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The details and compliance of the are set out in the section headed
“Compliance With Non-competition Undertakings By Controlling
Shareholders” in Report of the Directors on page 62 of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, as the main body responsible for risk management and
internal control of the Company, have adopted a series of internal
control policies, procedures and programmes designed to provide
reasonable assurance for achieving objectives including effective and
efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an on-going basis and reports to the Board on, at least, an
annual basis.

Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to each employee our
values, acceptable criteria for decision-making and our ground rules
for behaviour. Our anti-corruption and anti-bribery policies provide
the tools and resources necessary to enable, monitor and enforce full
compliance with the anti-bribery and anti-corruption laws of the PRC
and other countries where we conduct our business operations. In
order to comply with the applicable laws and regulations in relation to
anti-corruption and anti-bribery, we have established and
implemented anti-corruption and anti-bribery policies and measures
to prohibit all forms of bribery and corruption acts or intention of
such acts. The policy also sets out the requirements of a company-
wide anti-bribery and corruption training and disciplinary actions to
be taken in situation of violation of the policy and/or relevant laws
and regulations, including termination of employment and bringing
forward to legal proceedings. We have also put in place a whistle-
blowing system which is overseen by the Audit Committee.

The Group regularly provides training to our Directors, senior
management and employees with respect to our internal control
policies and the duties and responsibilities of directors and
management of listed companies under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.

In addition, the Company has appointed First Shanghai Capital
Limited as our compliance adviser to advise on ongoing compliance
with the Listing Rules and other applicable securities laws and
regulations in Hong Kong.
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The Group established the internal audit team which regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure our
management that the internal control system is functioning as
intended. The Audit Committee is responsible for supervising our
internal audit function.

The Board confirms that it has conducted a review of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Board concludes, based on the result
of the review, that the risk management and internal control systems
currently in place are adequate and effective, in particular, for financial
reporting and Listing Rules compliance as well as for resolving internal
control defects (if any). In particular, the Board considered the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. The review was conducted through
discussions with the management of the Group, its external and
internal auditors and the assessment performed by the Audit
Committee. The Board expects that a review of the risk management
and internal control systems will be performed annually.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") as its
external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remunerations paid or
payable to PwC in respect of its statutory audit services and non-audit
services are RMB2,000,000 and RMB30,000, respectively.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has adopted an inside information policy in accordance
with the SFO and the Listing Rules, and made corresponding
information disclosures in a timely manner. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, any persons who possess the knowledge
of such information must ensure strict confidentiality, so as to ensure
effective protection of the rights and interests of investors and
stakeholders. Unauthorised access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited. Any potential inside information identified by senior
management will be assessed, and where appropriate, will be
escalated for the attention of the Board to resolve on further actions.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. The primary focus is to ensure that information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public to make informed
decisions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the chairman, the Board and the
Board committees by ensuring good information flow and the Board
policies and procedures are followed. The company secretary is
responsible for ensuring the proper convening and conducting of the
Board and Board Committees meetings, with the relevant notices,
agenda, and the Board’s and the Board Committees papers being
provided to the Directors and the relevant Board Committees
members respectively in a time manner before the meetings. The
company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all the Board
and the Board Committees meetings. The Board and the Board
Committees minutes are available for inspection by the Directors and
the relevant Board Committees members.

Mr. WONG Yun Fai (“Mr. Wong") has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company since 8 March 2021. Mr. Wong,
who possesses the requisite qualification and experience of a company
secretary as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, has assisted
on the company secretarial matters of the Company since the Listing,
and has duly complied with relevant training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
31 March 2022. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the dividend payout
ratio shall be determined by the Board from time to time. The
remaining net profit will be used for the Group’s operations and
development. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
among other things, the following factors:

1. Financial results of the Company;

2. Shareholders’ interests;
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3. General business conditions, strategies and future expansion
needs of the Company;

4. The Company’s capital requirements;

5.  Possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the
Company; and

6.  The amount of profit that can be distributed under applicable
accounting standards and other factors that the Board may
deem relevant and appropriate.

Any final dividends declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an annual general meeting
and must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The
Board may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such interim
and/or special dividends as it considers to be justified by the profits of
the Group.

Any dividend shall be declared by the Company in accordance with
the Companies Act, the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company and other applicable laws and
regulations, and shall not affect the normal operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The Board will review the Dividend Policy, as
appropriate, which will include an assessment of the effectiveness of
the Dividend Policy and approve any amendments thereto if necessary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of transparent and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables the Shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision. The Company
believes the effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies.

The Company maintains a website at www.sdhcgroup.cn as a
communication platform with Shareholders and investors, where
information on the Company’s announcements, financial information
and other up-to-date information are available for public access.
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Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders, Board
members, in particular, either the chairmen of Board Committees or
their delegates, appropriate management executives will be available
at the meeting to answer any questions raised by the Shareholders.
The Company’s auditor will also attend the AGM to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company has also established a shareholders communication
policy to ensure the shareholders are provided with timely information
about the Company. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

Procedures for the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting by shareholders and putting forward proposals

Under the Articles of Association, an extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") may be convened by the Board upon requisition of one or
more shareholders as at the date of deposit of the requisition holding
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. The
shareholder(s) shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder(s), his/her/their contact details and the proposal regarding
any specifying transaction/business and its supporting documents, to
require an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition.
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If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Making enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can at any time raise enquiries about the Company to
the Board. The enquiries must be in writing with contact information
of the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the principal place of business
of Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1304, 13/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai,
303 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary of the Company or at admin@sdhcgroup.cn.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 June
2022, a special resolution was passed to approve proposed
amendments to the amended and restated articles of association of
the Company and to adopt the second amended and restated articles
of association of the Company incorporating amendments made for
the purposes of, among others, reflecting the core shareholder
protection standards as set out in the revised Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 January
2021 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act.

The Company’s Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 November 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of gold mine hazardous waste
treatment services and recycling and extracting therefrom resources
with economic value for sale in the PRC. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, the outlook of future
development of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2022 and the material factors underlying its financial
performance and financial position as required by section 388(2) and
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) can be found in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 9 to 21 of this annual
report. The financial risk management of the Group are set out in
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM for the Reporting Period is scheduled to be held on 26 June
2023. A notice convening the AGM will be issued and dispatched to
the Shareholders in due course according to the applicable laws, the
Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

RESULTS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the Group's
audited financial statements on pages 73 to 75 of this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

No final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
recommended by the Board.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM is expected to be held on Monday, 26 June 2023. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 20
June 2023 to Monday, 26 June 2023, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, on 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 19 June 2023.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of gold mine
hazardous waste treatment services and recycling and extracting
therefrom resources with economic value for sale. The Group is
committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. The Group complies with applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations for its business
operations, and has implemented relevant environmental protection
measures in compliance with applicable laws and regulations of PRC.
The Company's 2022 environmental, social and governance report will
be available on our website no later 30 April 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the Prospectus, “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section of this annual report and the Transaction disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2022, the Group
does not have any other plans for material investments or capital
assets.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date by way of global offering,
250,000,000 shares were issued, raising the total net proceeds (after
deducting underwriting commissions and other related listing
expenses) of approximately RMB177.3 million (equivalent to

approximately HKD217.3 million).

Percentage to
total amount
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Planned use of
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as at
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Expected
timeline for
full utilisation
of the
unutilised
proceeds

LGS )
AYR 2B
FEZ A%

Establish the New Production Facility, 86.7% 188.4 153.7 98.6 55.1 Will be fully
comprising two production utilised by 2024
compartments, with a permitted
annual treatment capacity of
600,000 tonnes, and diversification
of our product offerings
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Strengthen our research and 3.9% 85 6.9 6.9 — N/A
development capabilities to enhance
existing products and diversify our
product offering
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EmEg

General working capital purpose 9.4% 20.4 16.7 16.7 — N/A
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100% 217.3 177.3 122.2 55.1 177.3
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As at 31 December 2022, the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately RMB55.1 million have been deposited as short-term
deposits in the bank account maintained by the Group. It is currently
expected that the unutilised net proceeds will continue to be used
according to the purpose and allocations as set out in the Prospectus.

Further details of the breakdown and description of the proceeds are
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the Prospectus. As at the date of this annual report, the Directors
were not aware of any material change to the planned use of
proceeds.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

On 6 January 2022, the Group successfully won the bid for the land
use rights of three parcels of industrial land in the Yinhai Chemical
Industrial Park (if/8{t TEZE) in Laizhou city, Shandong province,
the PRC with a total site area of approximately 533,300 sq.m., the
premises (including properties and warehouses) built thereon with a
gross floor area of approximately 89,300 sg.m. and other
infrastructure and machinery with total cost of the approximately
RMB86.5 million. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 January 2022 for further information. Except for this
transaction, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did
not hold any significant investments, nor did it have any material
acquisitions or disposals of any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures that would constitute a discloseable transaction under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied in all material aspects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2022, there was no material breach of, or non- compliance
with, applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group's primary stakeholder groups include its customers,
suppliers, and employees.

Customers

The Group maintains active relationship with its customers to explore
new business opportunities and is highly committed to delivering
superior quality of services and products to its customers on time.

Suppliers

The Group maintains a list of approved and qualified suppliers (based
on their prices, quality, past performance and capacity) and strives to
establish long term business relationship with them.

Employees

Employees are regarded as valuable assets of the Group. The objective
of the Group’s human resource management is to reward and
recognise well-performed staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives. In particular, the Group
promotes career development and advancement by providing
appropriate training and opportunities in order to enhance the
employees’ work performance.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the years ended 31 December 2022, our five largest customers
accounted for approximately 57.6% of our total revenue and our
largest customer accounted for approximately 23.1% of our total
revenue.

For the years ended 31 December 2022, our five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 38.5% of our total cost of sales and our
largest supplier accounted for approximately 10.3% of our total cost
of sales.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(whom, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s total issued share capital), had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

CHARITABLE DONATION

Charitable donation made by the Group during the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB52,000 (2021: approximately
RMB310,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for the
Reporting Period are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DEBENTURE

The Group did not issue any debenture during the Reporting Period
(2021: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There are no equity-linked agreements which were entered into or
remained subsisting during the Reporting Period or as of the end of
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Act which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and the
Company are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, Notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution as dividends, calculated in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations, amounted to approximately RMB172.1 million.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

BORROWINGS

The Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
RMB55.7 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB39.9 million).
Borrowings were denominated in RMB and interests on borrowings
were mainly charged at fixed rate.

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

M. Liu Zeming (Z1528%) (Chairman)
Mr. Zhan Yirong (8} Z.48) (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sheng Haiyan (5% & #%) (Chief Technical Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Shijun (3R 2\ &)

Ms. Liu Ye (% 8)
Mr. Lau Chung Wai (2 #2)
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In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
Directors to retire by rotation shall include any Director who wishes to
retire and not offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to
retire shall be those who have been longest in office since their last
re-election or appointment but as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire will
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by
lot.

In accordance with articles 84.(1) and 84.(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Sheng Haiyan and Mr. Lau Chung Wai will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all independent non-executive Directors regarding each of the
factors referred to in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of
this report, the Company still considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date which may be terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months' written notice. The term of service contract shall be
renewed and extended automatically for successive terms of one year
upon expiry of the then current term until terminated by either party
by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been appointed
for an initial term of three years commencing from 23 October 2021
which may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ written notice. The term of appointment shall be renewed
and extended automatically for successive terms of two years upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ written notice to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors has or is proposed to
have a service contract with our Company or any of our subsidiaries
other than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within
one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries entered into any contracts of significance with the
Controlling Shareholder(s) or any of its subsidiaries, nor was there any
contracts of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
in relation to provision of services for the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in Notes
38 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 195 employees. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the staff cost of the Group was
approximately RMB17.5 million.

The remuneration packages for our employees include salary, bonuses
and allowances. The Group participate in social insurance schemes
operated by the relevant local government authorities and maintain
mandatory pension contribution plans, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance, housing
accumulation funds and maternity insurance for some of our
employees. The Group has also participated in the mandatory
provident fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong.

The Group's employee remuneration policy is determined by reference
to factors such as remuneration standard of the local market, the
overall remuneration standard in the industry, market condition,
operating efficiency and employee performance. The Group provides
sufficient training to our employees depending on their roles.

The emoluments of the Directors are first reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and then approved by the Board, with
regard to the Directors’ skill, knowledge, involvement in the Group'’s
affairs and the performance of each Director, together with reference
to the profitability of the Group, remuneration benchmarks in the
industry, and prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) as an incentive to the Directors and eligible
employees, details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up to
the date of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not experienced any
significant problems with its employees due to labour disputes nor has
it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Details of retirement benefits plan of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in Note 2.22 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group and it remains in
force at the date of this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in the Directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules for the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 22 to 28 of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the Company
on 23 October 2021 and shall be valid until 23 October 2031. On and
subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the
requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall be entitled to, at its
absolute discretion and on such terms as it deems fit, grant any
employee (full-time or part-time), director, supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, shareholder, service provider of the Group or other
group or classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of us, options to
subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable us to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
us. Our Directors consider the Share Option Scheme, with its
broadened basis of participation, will enable us to reward the
employees, our Directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to us. A Summary of principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme is set out in the paragraph headed “14. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus.
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Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and in compliance
with the provisions in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the total
number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of us) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of us must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the
date of this annual report, being 100,000,000 Shares. As at 1 January
and 31 December 2022, 100,000,000 Share are available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
adopted by us must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital
of our Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of us (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue for the
time being (“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in
excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant must be separately approved
by our Shareholders in general meeting of our Company with such
grantee and his close associates (or his associates if the grantee is a
connected person) abstaining from voting.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer of grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by our Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of options is
made, but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. Unless otherwise determined by our Directors and stated in
the offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum
period required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an
option before it can be exercised.

Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of our Company or any of
their respective associates must be approved by independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive Director
who or whose associates is the proposed grantee of the options).
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Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their respective
associates would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and; (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of each offer for the grant, in excess of HK$5 million; such
further grant of options must be approved by Shareholders in general
meeting. Our Company must send a circular to our Shareholders,
within such time as may be specified in the Listing Rules.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by our Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots
of the Shares on the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no option has been
granted. Therefore, no option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed since
its adoption and up to the date of this annual report and there was
no option outstanding as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO") which were
required to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:

HAEERRIBLIFNTESHERARES
BB E AR LEMBRE TSN AR
RHEBR 12 A HE (8% E)  FHTEE
MABALTREIETFRENMERRE (&2
RETE - EEEEERTENBERE) M T
NETRBTETOHARBRD  EHRES
BTN E90.1% A £ R (N RBEEEOHELH A
HeltmnkmEFE LEBBSAEET: A
E-TEHBREANEERAE LRSRRDN
HEfE - AR B BZAR LT AR RIAR E &9 A BARR

BREEETRONBBESHESETE
BAREROBOROBRERR (LARE
EH)EBIANEHRERNA—FHIN LK
MEBEEMIIRH DK HE: (i) BEREOHR
HERER A R EE XA EB MO E AR
ERMHRBD FHUWHE : R kOBEE=%
PHREE

ERBREZ AT AERAR T RENRE
BITe

BERA BT AR MEEREERD -
it B R ARE EAF R A B E AR A
BT FHEIRB BR-_T-__F+-A
=t ABERITERBRE-

EERBRSTHRAERAQFREE
MAABEEN RS - AERDREE
HREANEERAR

AZE__F+-_A=1+—H ARAESEK
ERTBRAERAARKEBHEE (EER
BHMEEEMIEXV ) MG  BERD &
BREFFREELALNRAREES MPEK
B 53521577 B B & 50 sk 8 4R & _E 70 48 Bl B
BR10FTEVIZESTRIBAA R &) R B R TR 2
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(i) Interest in the Company (i) RAEQXTHESR

Approximate
shareholding

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares percentage (%)
B R IR

Ex=E8 B HntE IR 8B B2t (%)

Mr. Liu Interest of a controlled corporation? 589,500,000 58.95%

2% 4 R EE R

Ms. Li Liyan Interest of spouse® 589,500,000 58.95%

EX Y BB R ©

Mr. Zhan Yirong Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.1%

B RESE EmEAA

Mr. Sheng Haiyan Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.1%

2T e EmEiE A

1. Allinterests stated are long position. 1. FHFBEERBRTE -

2. 589,500,000 Shares are registered in the name of Zeming 2. 589,500,000% #% {7 A Zeming International
International Investment Co., Ltd., the entire issued capital of Investment Co., Ltd B & & & &0 :2 A 7
which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Liu. By virtue of the HEEEBHITRARITEE ZERE
SFO, Mr. Liu is taken to be interested in the Shares held by B RBES KBRS BIEEHRA
Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd. 7 Zeming International Investment Co.,

Ltd. 355 KO AR FR 5 M o

3. Ms. Li Liyan is the spouse of Mr. Liu. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Liyan 3. FREBLTARIASENRMB-REES
is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which MEBEGRD TBS LT WA ARNEI%
Mr. Liu is interested. EHBREENEREE ROPEERER -
(i) Interest in associated corporation (i) RAEBEZENEDR

Approximate
shareholding

Name of Director Name of associated corporation Capacity/Nature percentage (%)

BMAORR
B8 MR EE =B Bt MHE ERaAC))
Mr. Liu Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 100%
25 E Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd BB A
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, according to the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interest

EERBEROJEEZTNER

BEXHBEBEN R-T-—F+=A
S+ BEAAREFRESTRABR
ARTREAREEE (ER REER MRS
EXV ) HR 15 AR D B R R E B
RAKD AR BB SR 0S E0 B350 77 B
1% R R BT BB A AL A R R
PR ERE A A -

FERRRROREBERONVERR
KB

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H8 RBEARFK
BEMPEENEBEETHNELMEES
ERARAEEITERABRA ATAL (K
NRAEBXZEBITRABRINERQB RN
AR OPHEBIREFESRBEEMEXY
B E2 3D FRGE B TR RN ER SR E I
T

Approximate
shareholding

Number of Shares percentage (%)

BAOFR
BRER BB B EnitEg idvip gE| B oL (%)
Zeming International Investment Beneficial owner® 589,500,000 58.95%
Co., Ltd EmEBEAQ
Ms. Li Liyan Interest of spouse® 589,500,000 58.95%
TRELT Br (B
1. Allinterests stated are long position. 1. FrilFiBR=HE AR -

2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Liu is taken to be interested in the Shares held
by Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd.

3. Mes. Li Liyan is the spouse of Mr. Liu. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Liyan is taken
to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Liu is
interested.

2. RIE B S M AR E GG - 2% £ IR AR Zeming
International Investment Co., Ltd. 8 B )
AR

3. FREZIRIEENEB-BREESLHAE

fEP FBB LR AN R EEEA
HREE RO ES -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, according to the
register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so
far as were known to the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company, there was no other person (other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors is considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 23 October 2021, Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd and
Mr. Liu, each being a controlling shareholder of the Company, entered
into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”)
in favour of the Company, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders — Deed of
Non-Competition” in the Prospectus.

Each of Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd and Mr. Liu has
confirmed to the Company that it/he has complied with the Deed of
Non- competition as disclosed in the Prospectus for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by each of Zeming
International Investment Co., Ltd and Mr. Liu, and confirmed that
Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd and Mr. Liu have complied
with and implemented the Deed of Non-competition.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has not conducted any non-exempt continuing connected
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2022. There were no
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that is
subject to, among other things, the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, and the Company has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BREXHBEZEEN RZE__F+=A
=+ —B REAQRRELFLBEEENE
B MEEFNECMEBEERTRARA R
STTHBABFA: Y ETMREMA L (KRQF]
EZNHEETEABRIN EARR ARG AT
B HPEAERIEESFREE GG EXVIE2
N3P EMIEN BT IHBENESTAR -

R ERK
BE—_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIIFEREZE
ANERAH RELTHA HESSHRA
1 B 7 £ B 2 5 B 9 i T R R K B BT BE B AR R
FNEMESTRHEEER -

ERBRREFTIHRFEARNER

—Z = —%+ A=+ =H " Zeming International
Investment Co., Ltd B2 2 5E & (& BA A AlE K
PRER) FTSLAR R B R m AN THRFRIE ([F
BRERE|) FRBRANBREREIZERER
BER — TBRERE] —&e

Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd 5 215t
HAEEERAARARR REXRBE_T_—
F+ZA=+T—HILEFE BETRREEFN
BEH TR F LR -

¥ FEH T E F 2 W AR Zeming International
Investment Co., Ltd R 2| £ & B H T B FRIE
#) & ST 1B R I # # Zeming International
Investment Co., Ltd & 2 5o 4 B 38 57 1T N3t
B

BEXS
AEEHE-_T-__F+_A=+—HLEHFE
WEAETEAIEREIFERER S - HERE
RGIBFEBERSHAE (EFRE)RE LT
RABUAZETHRR AERBURELE
RE BARBBET EMARAEI4AZETH
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Details of the related party transactions carried out in the normal
course of business are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements
of this annual report. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules, and the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no management or
administration contract concerning the management of the whole or
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into, or
subsisted at the end of the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, there was at least 25% of the Company’s total issued shares,
being a minimum percentage of sufficient prescribed public float of
the issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 46 of this annual
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Except for the matters disclosed under the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section of this annual report, the Board is not aware of
any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the auditor of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY
LIMITED

LIU Zeming

Chairman and Executive Director

Shandong, PRC, 31 March 2023
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To the Shareholders of HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HONGCHENG
ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 73 to 172, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the [ESBA
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue from
provision of gold mine hazardous waste treatment services.
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Revenue from provision of gold mine hazardous waste
treatment services

teR D EH EEYEIE R < W

Refer to note 2.23 "Revenue recognition” in Summary of
significant accounting policies and note 5 "Revenue and
segment information” to the consolidated financial
Statements.

BRRIRE TS RER T E SR E BN 2,23
w BB RIaES [z R EEEHRL »

The Group recognised revenue from provision of gold
mine hazardous waste treatment services amounting to
RMB76.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group’s gold mine hazardous waste treatment
services are conducted in various detoxing processes and
integrated with the production processes of recycled
products such as pyritic concentrate which can be sold
for revenue. The Group recognises revenue of treatment
services on over time basis based on the completion
percentage of the treatment services performance
obligation which is in turn determined with reference to
the percentage of cost incurred up to date to the total
estimated cost of completion that are attributable to the
treatment services.
EEEREE T -_—_F 1+ _A=1+—HLFE®RRE
HEBEEEMEEREHN WG  2EA/ARKT648
Bre ESENSBEEEVERERBREZESE
DB ST - WERBAE m (A & AR &
MWIER) NEEBRREEES - BESXERBEERS
AV B E R TR B 9 Lo B 2 I R B R BRI AR 75 ) i 2
e B 73 L Bl R 2 R IR AR 1532 5 B A BB NG e
BTN B D LLETE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERNTEERRERSEE

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue from provision
of gold mine hazardous waste treatment services included
the following:
EERRHESBEE SEMEIE RS < Was IR E) EZI2
FEETHEE :

e Understood, evaluated and tested the Group's key
controls over revenue recognition of the provision of
gold mine hazardous waste treatment services and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the level of complexity and other inherent
risk factors;

o THE - FHMERAN BESEEUHRHSBREEEMRE
AR 75 B0 s 25 T SR )RR SR 15 | SR B RAE AR R I
fib AFE B R R AT ik R SR R AR LB

e Checked, on a sample basis, the contracts signed with
customers for provision of gold mine hazardous waste
treatment services, inter alia, unit price of treatment
fee, performance obligations of the Group;

e MEMEPEITNRUCERBREVMEERBHNE
Rl RhRREENEE KENEBOERS

e Discussed with management and with reference to
market available information, assessed the
reasonableness of management’s judgement on the
processes of fulfilling the performance obligations
related to treatment services;

s MEBENRULEMSHRARE  FHEREHE
THEEREEENBHZHRIZNHE NS IR

e Assessed management’s determination of costs
attributable to the processes for treatment services and
the processes for production of recycled products, and
also assessed the reasonableness of the basis for the
cost allocation of common costs by considering the
nature of cost incurred.

s MMEEREHRENEEREEENBEEREESR
BREKNANETE - TNBBE BTELMNKRE LS
HEARKASRERN SR -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERNTEERARERSEE

Revenue from provision of gold mine hazardous waste
treatment services

rERDEH EEYEIE IR < Was

We focused on this area due to the significant
management judgements and estimation involved in
determination of performance obligations, the
determination of costs attributable to different processes,
the allocation of common costs and also determination
of the completion percentage of performance obligation
attributable to treatment services.

EEFINMERY  RAEEERAOEME  BETRR
TGRS BL R DA R 5 E R IR AR TS IR (G Y
BABRTEHITTA B St S R E AR E IR AT K b5t o

e Tested, on a sample basis, the cost incurred during the
year to supporting documents, such as invoices,
payment slip, etc;

s MEFNELMEBEREZANY  ER - (NRESF

e Tested, on a sample basis, the cost allocation between

the treatment services and the production of recycled

products by tracing to the supporting documents of
costs incurred and checking the accuracy of calculation
of allocations;

RBEHPESERNIAXM RRE ST ENE

Y MERERERBEEREEZRNERSK

e Arranged stock take of the hazardous waste under
treatment processes at the end of the year;

s EFRERHHEILERETHNESEMETRE

e Performed recalculation of the percentage of cost for
treatment services incurred up to date to the total
estimated cost of waste treatment, and then the
recalculation of the revenue amount; and

s BN EBZEAEANEREREERGEYRIER
A BEANBESL - REEHMFTERARTE : &

e Arranged, on a sample basis, confirmations to
customers to confirm the quantity of the gold mine
hazardous waste collected from customers, the unit
price of treatment fees and treatment service fees
during the year.

o AHEMTEHERETRE IEIFARLERIK
EHNEREETEVNHEE REBNEGRERERY
o

Based on the procedures performed, we found the

significant management judgement and estimation

involved in the determination of the Group’s revenue from
provision of gold mine hazardous waste treatment services
was supported by available evidences.

RBEFAATHERER  EEERERT ESERMHIE

B EREEY BRI RIS H YA TS I 0 & KB IR R %

STE A AME RS -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the Company’s 2022 annual report (the “annual report”)
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. We have obtained some of the other information
including the management discussion and analysis prior to the date of
this auditor’s report. The remaining other information, including
corporate profile, chairman’s statement, environmental, social and
governance report, director’s report, profiles of directors and senior
management and the other sections to be included in the annual
report, is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit
Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights
and obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY B &

YN, TN

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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T INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY B &

v 4
g rm 1

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEZHEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z —_—F+ A =+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE

2022 2021
—E=E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREFIT
Revenue I &5 5 222,801 257,043
Cost of sales SHE XA 8 (78,786) (90,429)
Gross profit EF 144,015 166,614
Other income EH A 6 1,759 78
Other gains/(losses) — net Hiuhss/(B18) F58 7 37 (156)
Provision of impairment on financial BRVEERERE
assets (1,522) (1,219)
Selling expenses HERX 8 (2,880) (2,369)
Administrative expenses TR 8 (32,609) (39,783)
Operating profit ReERR 108,800 123,165
Finance income BEUWA 10 400 412
Finance costs BhE AR 10 (5.437) (6,433)
Finance costs — net RLE K AN F R 10 (5,037) (6,021)
Profit before income tax BRET SR AR 103,763 117,144
Income tax expense Frig®if 11 (23,547) (31,531)

Profit for the year, all attributable to Z~2 B A A L &£ R EF

owners of the Company 80,216 85,613
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2 mEUE :
ltem that may be reclassified to AEMHEEERAIER

profit or loss
Currency translation differences INEIR R 1,349 =
Total comprehensive income for AAREEAELEFEAZE

the year, all attributable to owners  UWX#E#%5

of the Company 81,565 85,613
Earnings per share for the year AAREEAEBEERER

attributable to owners of BEF

the Company
Basic and diluted (expressed in EAREE (AFRARE

RMB per share) TTEIR) 12 0.08 0.11

The notes on pages 79 to 172 are an integral part of the consolidated ~ 5579F 1725 M M 5t B4z & B 15 3R = RO 48 5k 30
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBIRR R

As at 31 December 2022 W —ZE - —F+-F=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2022 2021
—E-= B —F
RMB’'000 RMB‘'000
AR® T AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 14 79,942 25,569
Property, plant and equipment Y - B & 15 321,755 138,619
Investment properties B 16 125,205 129,591
Intangible assets B EE 17 7 14
Prepayment for non-current assets SEMBN B E TR KIE 18 6,401 1,167
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSHEE 30 1,733 99
535,043 295,059
Current assets REBEE
Inventories "E 19 18,482 22,611
Trade receivables Z 5 WA 21 71,473 55,110
Other receivables and prepayments H Ath pE W IE R TR BIA 22 71,279 7,161
Financial assets at fair value through RATE AR EE R
other comprehensive income REREE 23 2,350 7,130
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 24 59,160 235,593
Income tax expense TS 222,744 327,605
Total assets EEHAE 757,787 622,664
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE AEIERER
the Company
Share capital %N 25 8,208 8,208
Share premium I 5 = (8 25 517,965 534,097
Other reserves HAb{FE 26 (299,203) (300,552)
Retained earnings 1RE B F 226,647 146,431
Total equity RSB 453,617 388,184
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R R

As at 31 December 2022 R—Z - —#+—-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=-H=+—~H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Borrowings &R 29 - 37,780
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTEREE 30 3,913 2,966
Lease liabilities HEEE 14 - 320
Other liabilities HEthatE 31 85,453 108,509
89,366 149,575
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables S ENFIA 27 9,088 11,689
Other payables and accruals HAth fE (S IB R BT B A 28 77,858 25,030
Borrowings B 29 55,740 2,120
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTISHi & E 35,076 22,088
Contract liabilities AHEE 5 2,577 8,265
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 608 546
Other liabilities = 31 33,857 15,167
214,804 84,905
Total liabilities EEAE 304,170 234,480
Total equity and liabilities Eam Rk EERE 757,787 622,664

The notes on pages 79 to 172 are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

FI9RN1T2HE MM RS W5 8K /0 4 A B

4N o

7]

FEDBRERINENGEYERRER T _=F

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 172 were
approved by the board of directors of the Company on 31 March
2023 and were signed on its behalf.

ZRA=T-BARARARESTSHME IHER
REE-

Mr. Liu Zeming Mr. Zhan Yirong
BB ELE BIREE
Chairman Director
FE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

As at 31 December
W+=A=+-8
Share Share Other  Retained

capital  premium reserves  earnings Total

k&  KRoEE HtRE RERN At

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Balance at January 2021 R-B-—-5-A-AM
5 - - 42,920 63204 106,124

Comprehensive income EE
Profit for the year FREF = = = 85,613 85,613
Transactions with owners BEBANRS
Profit appropriation to statutory AR AT R

reserves 26 - - 2,386 (2,386) -
Shares issued pursuant to BEBEABROBETRR

capitalisation shares 25 6,159 (6,159) - - -
Issuance of shares during the BARETRR

Reorganisation 25,26 - 345,858 (345,858) - -
New shares issued pursuant to REZFEERTHRG

the global offering 25 2,049 194,398 - - 196,447
Total transactions with owners BERANRSER 8208 534,097  (343,472) (2,386) 196,447

Balance at 31 December 2021 RZE--%+ZH

=+ A&t 8208 534,097  (300552) 146431 383,184
Comprehensive income 2HEKE
Profit for the year FRET - - - 80,216 80,216
Other comprehensive income Hin2Eka
— Currency translation differences ~ — SMEHBE =% - - 1,349 - 1,349
Total comprehensive income 2ENRESE - - 1,349 80,216 81,565
Transactions with owners BREEANRS
Dividend distribution B Evalie - (16,132) - - (16,132)

Balance at 31 December 2022 R-BE-—f+=A
=+—AMEE 8,208 517,965  (299,203) 226,647 453,617

The notes on pages 79 to 172 are an integral part of the consolidated ~ 5579F 1728 ) Mf 5 A 47 & B 15 TR & &9 48 5k 28
financial statements. 7 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z —_—F+ A =+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE

2022

—E-=
RMB’000
AR®T R

2021

—E -
RMB'000
ARETF T

Cash flows from operating activities K& EFHEESHE
Cash generated from operations EIBETRIR G 32(@a) 56,023 83,175
Interest received BEYFIE 400 412
Interest paid ERFIE (2,123) (1,680)
Income tax paid EREREH (11,246) (23,741)
Net cash generated from operating KRBTSR S 558

activities 43,054 58,166
Cash flows from investing activities ®RETFHHRSHRE
Repayments from third parties FE=FER - 491
Loan to the Controlling Shareholder B FIERRARER 35(b) (2,891) (13,550)
Repayments from related parties B 77 = K - 33,579
Repayments from the Controlling PERR AR BB 5K

Shareholder 2,891 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  WEREHERE

plant and equipment and other assets  fh & EFTE A 32(b) 2,113 1,718
Purchase of land use rights EE TR (56,750) =
Purchases of property, plant and BEMZE  BEREERR

equipment and investment properties B (166,831) (37,501)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFTARE 55 (221,468) (15,263)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-HA=1t—HILLEE
2022 2021

—§== —z-—5

R =

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Cash flows from financing activities REZTEHRERE
A

Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEFKFTS A 32(0) 27,900 10,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BBIRTTIER 32(0) (12,060) (12,100)
Increase in amounts due to the JE <) 422 B B 3R SR IE I N

Controlling Shareholder 35(b) - 9,527
Repayments of amounts due to the EEEMERR R HKIE

Controlling Shareholder - (10,994)
Deemed distributions to shareholders in ~ E 4B AR MR ER AR R 2 &

relation to Reorganisation - (6,750)
Listing expenses paid BT EmAx - (11,442)
Principal and interest elements of lease ~ FAE KM A KA B35

payments (331) (661)
Dividends paid BERRE (16,132) (38,800)
Net proceeds of new shares issued RIBE 2 IR EBITHRG FT

pursuant to the global offering 1R IE R - 208,973
Net cash generated from financing BEEBFTSIR G TR

activities (623) 147,753
Net (decrease)/increase in cashand BERBELZEY RL)

cash equivalents R EE (179,037) 190,656
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E#ERE RIREEEY

of year 235,593 45,363
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 34 NI & S BY)E R &

and cash equivalents oh=7 2,604 (426)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of SXRNRERKRESZEEY

year 24 59,160 235,593

The notes on pages 79 to 172 are an integral part of the consolidated ~ 5579F 1728 ) Mf 5 A 47 & B 15 TR & &9 48 5k 28
financial statements. 7 e
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w.t_ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S N

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
January 2021 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the
“Companies Act”). The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company’s subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are engaged in
the provision of gold mine hazardous waste treatment services
and recycling and extracting therefrom resources with economic
value for sale, such as pyrite concentrate in Shandong province
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group’s
headquarter is in Laizhou city, Shandong province of the PRC.

The ultimate controlling party of the Company is Mr. Liu Zeming
(the “Controlling Shareholder” or “Mr. Liu”).

To prepare for the initial listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing”), the Group has undertaken a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) pursuant to which the Company became the
holdings company of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.
Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of
the Company dated 29 October 2021.

The shares of the Company have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 November 2021 by
way of initial public offering.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"”) and rounded to the nearest thousand RMB
("RMB'000"), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

e ISR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to the year ended 31
December 2022, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group has
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
issued by International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 New standards and interpretations adopted by
the Group

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period
commencing 1 January 2022. The Group did not
change its accounting policies or make retrospective
adjustments as a result of adopting these standards.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXRSHBEBE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
2.1.1 New standards and interpretations adopted by 2.1.1 XEBF RN HE R R 2
the Group (Continued) (%)

Effective for
annual financial

New standards and periods beginning

amendments on or after
RT3 BB

Z BRI

AT ER RASET & FEPHRABER

IAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022
before intended use
B ERIFE 1658 (BFTA) ME - BB NEE - ERERSEANNSA T _F—HA—H

SIE
IAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022
Contract
R ETERISE 37 5% (IBETA) BiEEAK — BITEA8BAR —E__%—H—H
IAS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
B ERIE 358 (BT ) BESIEZR RO FR A —T-=—%—HF—H
Annual Improvements to 1 January 2022
IFRS Standards 2018 — 2020
BB E A B — \FE —E-_—_%—HA—8

—FoTENTENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXRSTBERBE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
2.1.2 New standards and interpretations not yet 2.1.2 [ R FTEE R 2 FE

adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2022
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These new standards and interpretations are:

BT EREREEEM
BREE-_ZT_-_—_F+_-A
Zt+—BALEEEIRBHEAE
Mo BASEEWERTHEA
Z SR MR AT

Standards and amendments

B RIERT

IFRS 17

B i B TS ¥R 5 BRI SR 17 5%
IAS 8 (Amendments)

BUFR &5 2R3 8 5% (18FT AX)
IAS 12 (Amendments)

S EEHERIE 125 (2T A)
IAS 1 (Amendments)

BIFR &5 2ER)2E 198 (ISR AN)

IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement
2 (Amendments)

BIBR = e ERIZE 1 5% (1BFTA) &
BIFR B 53R S R B S
255 (BFTA)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments)

Insurance contracts

RigE 4

Definition of Accounting Estimates

BEHETER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HME-—HEENEERAEBBEN
EEFIR

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

BESBERARBIIERE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRR

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RUTHHARZ%
R FEREER
1 January 2023
—E-=F—HF—H
1 January 2023
—T_=F—H—H
1 January 2023

—E-_=%—AF—H

1 January 2023

—E-_=%—H—H
1 January 2023

—E-_=F—H—H

To be determined

W

als

BRI EHREENFI10REFTA) BREAREBERRHEGEELEZME F

82

KRB & EHERIE 285 (55T 4)

ZEEHESTE

Management is currently assessing the effects of
applying these new standards and amendments on
the Group's consolidated financial statements. None
of these is expected to have a significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
The Group does not expect to adopt these new
standards and amendments until their effective
dates.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill. Investments in subsidiaries are
also assessed for impairment and written down to their
recoverable amounts in accordance with note 2.10.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the
Company assesses the financial performance and position
of the Group, and makes strategic decisions. The chief
operating decision maker of the Group consists of the
executive directors and the chief financial officer.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘"RMB’), which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end/period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equity instrument
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) are recognised in other
comprehensive income. The Group does not have
non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency during the Track Record Period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBABHBEHE@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 V¥ BERSZE

86

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated at historical cost less depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting year/period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings including structures for storage of 3-30 years
cyanide tailings and pyritic concentrate

Machinery 5-10 years

Furniture fixtures and equipment 5 years

Vehicle 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents properties under
construction and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. This includes cost of construction and
other direct costs. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until such time as the assets are completed
and are ready for operational use.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising buildings,
are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group. Investment properties are initially recognised at
cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method to
allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives. The residual values and useful lives of
investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate, at each date of the consolidated statement
of financial position. The effects of any revision are
included in the income statement when the changes arise.
The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount at the date of disposal.

Investment properties are depreciated over the estimated
useful lives of 30 years.

Intangible assets
Software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring the
specific software into usage. These costs are amortised
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives of 6 years, which is estimated by the Group based on
the expected technical obsolescence and innovations and
the useful life of similar computer software estimated by
comparable companies in the market. Costs associated
with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as expense as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life for example,
goodwill or other non-amortising intangible assets are not
subject to depreciation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. The Group classifies its debt instruments as:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses), together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in profit or loss of the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBABHBEHE@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 TREE (8)
(i) Measurement (Continued) (i) 2 (&)

90

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in “other gains/(losses) — net”.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in “other gains/
(losses) — net” and impairment losses are
presented as a separate line item in profit or
loss of the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
exchanged in profit or loss and presented net
within “‘other gains/(losses) — net” in the
period in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAESTHEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 EREE (8)
(iv) Impairment (iv) HE

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at a amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimation of credit losses (i.e. the present value of
all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial assets.

The Group has the following types of assets that are
subject to IFRS 9's expected credit loss model:

o trade receivables
o other receivables
o cash and bank balances
o restricted bank balances

While cash and bank balances, restricted bank
balances and other receivables are also subject to
the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the assets. The provision
matrix is determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables with similar risk characteristics and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment (Continued)

Impairment on other receivables, cash and bank
balances and restricted bank balances are measured
as lifetime expected credit losses if a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition.

Impairment on other receivables and amounts due
from related parties is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the relevant company or the counterparty.

EXREHEEBE (@)

210 EWMEE (8)

(iv) wfE (&)

MRERRENEERR S
YA FERR A SR A 18 0 E\'JE
fib FE WK IR - IR & MIRTT4E
52 PR IR 17 45 BR AR (B 1R
EHEREEERE-

H i 8 5 3R IR K e W B B
FRIE B R E SA1218 B # 78 B
EEERAZHRHAGEER
B E - BURM B ¥R R A

KHNEERBREEEBER
A0 fis FE W AR IR BV 1E B B B

PR ERIAKRE BBE LN R
MEXEHERE S EER
EO

fiéh 1% 48 HA [ R (B 65 18 & B R
PRERLDERE FEFE
HREHEENSHER AR
a2 mls R AR LA
BEERAREEEED -

21N EEEMT A

EAKERAA R BIREHIMITHE
HHO RSB R R FREEES
EARAREREENEEEAR
TREENRABRELRE LWFEER
RIEAUBRNKRAE2HR BE%
HEMITETREBORN R EH H
VAR —REBBENRBRA
HE T RFRNEL B TEE E&
ENBR T

HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

»
v, V! e IR aR M EE
|
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE =T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAESTHEME (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments (Continued)

211 KHEMT A (&)

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

2.12 Financial guarantee contracts

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment.

2.13 Trade and other receivables and amounts due

from related parties

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for the
provision of gold mine hazardous waste treatment services
and sales of recycled products. Amounts due from related
parties are loans provided to related parties with interest,
and they are unsecured and repayable on demand. If
collection of trade and other receivables and amounts due
from related parties is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables and amounts due from related
parties are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
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POLICIES (Continued)

214 EHNEEREE

2.14 Contract assets and liabilities

94

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or
services to the customer. The combination of those rights
and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the
remaining rights and the performance obligations. The
contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if
the measure of the remaining conditional rights to
consideration exceeds the satisfied performance
obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability and
recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the
remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure
of the remaining rights.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labor
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash at bank and on hand and
short-term bank deposits with original maturities of three
months or less.
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2.17 Share capital 2.17 B A&

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 25).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company issued shares at a premium, whether
for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate
amount of the value of the premiums over share capital
shall be classified as share premium.

2.18 Trade and other payables and amounts due to

related parties

Trade payables represent liabilities for products and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of the
reporting year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables
and amounts due to related parties are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or within the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables and amounts due to related
parties are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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2.19 Borrowings (Continued) 2.19 B (&)

96

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting year/
period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the year/period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i)

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

221 EFRIEIEFTERH (&)
(i) EELFTEHE ()

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

98

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the statement of financial
position.

Pension obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which
the Group and the employees are required to make
monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries, subject to
certain ceiling. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation
for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in an independent fund managed by the PRC
government. The Group’s contributions to these
plans are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

The PRC employees of the Group are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurance and other
employee social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based
on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each period.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue from provision of gold mine
hazardous waste treatment services

Revenue from the provision of gold mine hazardous
waste treatment services is recognised over the
relevant period in which the services are rendered
based on the completion percentage of the
treatment services performance obligation which is
in turn determined with reference to the percentage
of cost incurred up to date to the total cost. Further
analysis of the estimates and judgements applied in
the recognition of revenue from provision of gold
mine hazardous waste treatment services is set out
in Note 4(a).

The portion of service revenue received from
customers but not earned is recorded as contract
liabilities on the consolidated statements of financial
position as at the date of the statement of financial
position. Amounts which will be earned within one
year is reflected as a current liability, and which will
be earned beyond one year is reflected as a non-
current liability.

Sales of recycled products

Revenue from sales of recycled products, namely the
pyritic concentrate, is recognised at the point in time
when control of the product is transferred to
customers, generally on delivery of the products.

Other revenue — rental income

The Group derives rental income from investment
properties. Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease (if
any) are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the
lease term on the same basis as lease income.
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2.24 Interest income 2.24 FIE WA

102

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income and finance income.

Interest income is presented as other income and finance
income and where it is earned from financial assets that
are held for cash management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred revenue and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

2.26 Leases

Lease of properties and equipment

The Group leases properties and equipment as a lessee.
Rental contracts for properties and equipment are typically
made for fixed periods of 2 to 3 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.
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2.26 Leases (Continued) 2.26 HE (&)

Lease of properties and equipment (Continued)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payments that are based on an index
or a rate are initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHHEEBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Leases (Continued) 2.26 HHE (&)

104

Lease of properties and equipment (Continued)

The Group's right-of-use assets consist of up-front the
initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability,
lease payments made at or before the commencement
day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct
costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land use rights

For land use rights, the cost comprise the payments to
acquire long-term interest in the usage of land, which are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land and other
direct related costs from the date when the respective
rights were granted.

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms of 50 years as
stated in the relevant land use right certificates granted
for usage by the Group in the PRC or the best estimate
based on the normal terms in the PRC and is charged to
profit or loss in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Leases where the Group is a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position based on their nature.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk, and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank
deposits and borrowings. Borrowings obtained
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset
by cash at bank with variable interest rates.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. During
the Track Record Period, the Group’s
borrowings bore interest both at variable rates
and fixed rates.

Bank deposits carried at prevailing market
interest rate expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group closely monitors
trend of interest rate and its impact on the
Group's interest rate risk exposure to ensure it
is within an acceptable level. The Group
currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, if interest rate on borrowings had
been higher/lower by 50 basis points of
current interest rate, with other variables held
constant, the Group's post — tax profit would
have been approximately RMB202,000 lower/
higher and RMB154,000 lower/higher,
respectively.
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(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the functional currency of the relevant
group entity. The Group operates mainly in
the PRC so it is not exposed to significant
foreign exchange risk arising from foreign
currency transactions.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to
a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations.

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, arises from potential default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

All of the Group's trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related parties
have no collateral. The Group assessed the credit
quality of the counterparties by taking into account
their financial position, credit history, forward
looking information and other factors. Management
also regularly reviews the recoverability of these
receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit risks of cash and bank balances,
including restricted bank balances

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
substantially all of the Group’s bank deposits
were deposited with major financial
institutions incorporated in the PRC, which
management believes are of high-credit-
quality without significant credit risk.

Credit risks of trade receivables

The Group is engaged in the provision of gold
mine hazardous waste treatment services and
sales of recycled products. The Group's
customers for the provision of gold mine
hazardous waste treatment services are mainly
gold smelting companies while customers for
the sale of recycled products are mainly
companies primarily engaged in the business
of production or trading of chemical products.
The credit terms grant to customers are
generally ranged from 30 to 60 days from the
invoice date.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to provide for expected credit losses,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the aging
of trade receivables. The expected credit losses
also incorporate forward looking information
affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.
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3.1 BEREBEE (&)
(b) EEERE (1)

(i)

(ii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERERE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BREREE (&)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREE (&)

108

(i)

Credit risks of trade receivables (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It

(i)

B SN R EERE
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considers available reasonable and supportive EZRTHRAHNEGEME
forwarding-looking information. Especially the FRUEMREEEE 5
following indicators are incorporated: RIRMAANT AT EZ:

o actual or expected significant adverse

© 7 BB EE

changes in business, financial or Hﬁiiﬂﬁéifﬁgﬁiﬁ
economic conditions that are expected to HIH) & R F &
cause a significant change to the fle - J’E.:JFH#%@Z%
customers’ ability to meet its obligations; FPRITEBHE
BHEERNE:

° actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of customers;

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of
customers, including changes in the
payment status.

Individually impaired trade receivable is related
to customers who are experiencing
unexpected economic difficulties.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group made
provision for certain trade receivables related
to sales of recycled products will have difficulty
to be recovered and has recognised
impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risks of trade receivables (Continued)

In respect of receivables from gold smelting
companies for treatment services, the
collection of trade receivables from gold
smelting companies slowed down gradually in
year 2021 because Shandong province further
strengthened the safety production
requirements for all gold smelting companies,
and the Group’s major customers were subject
to suspension of production for inspection
and improvement of production safety. In
2022, the inspection of production safety
conducted by Shandong province was
completed and the gold smelting companies
have resumed normal production and resumed
payment of trade receivables to the Group. As
such, the individual impairment losses for
trade receivables related to provision of gold
mine hazardous waste treatment services was
reversed.

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivable of
approximately RMB2,184,000 (2021:
RMB1,057,000) has been provided for loss
allowance for these individually assessed
receivables.

In determining the expected credit loss (“ECL")
of the remaining trade receivables, the Group
considered the business, customer profile,
credit rating of customers, historical cash flow
recovery, etc. In determining the expected loss
rate, the Group calculated the probability of
default ("PD") and potential loss given default
("LGD") for each class of trade receivables by
incorporating forward-looking adjustments,
taking into accounts the effect of
macroeconomic variables such as the gross
domestic product index (“GDP") of the PRC in
which the Group provides its services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Credit risks of trade receivables (Continued)

The Group considers that the expected credit
loss provided was sufficient for the year.

The following table shows the loss allowance
provision for the Group’s trade receivables as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

3 HEERRERE(E®)

3.1

91-180
days

91£180H
RMB'000

MEmEREE (E)

(b) FEEE (&)

181-270
days

(ii)

271-360
days

B SN R EERE
(%)

AEERR NRFARE
HWBHREEEENE
ISR

TRERTASERZ
T FRZFT—F
+TZA=+—HH®ES
FE USSR IR BT IR B RS 18 B
=K

361-450  451-540
days days Total

18122708 271%360H 361%450 8 451%540H st

RMB'000

RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

1-90
days
Track Record Period fed: 1] 1£90R
RMB’000
AR%TR
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZ#F+Zh
Sar=Fl

Combined impaired receivables: A GHRERMFE :
Related to provision of gold mine BRESBAZEIR
hazardous waste treatment services ~ ERFAEH

ARMTR

ARET R

ARET T

ARETR ARMTR ARMTR

Gross carrying amount EHEE 13,925 21,124 14,127 807 4,946 2,579 57,508
Expected loss rate BHERX 0.3% 0.5% 0.8% 1.4% 3.1% 6.3%

Loss allowance EiERE Q 106 113 " 153 162 587
Related to sales of recycled products EHEELERIRE

Gross carrying amount REAE 8,151 2,527 - - - - 10,678
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.7% 1.1% - - - -

Loss allowance ERAE 57 28 - - - - 85
Individually impaired receivables: {5l (B /8 A -

Related to sales of recycled products E#HEBLERITE

Gross carrying amount FEARE - - - - 6,143 - 6,143
Loss allowance BEAE - - - - 2,184 - 2,184
Total loss allowance ERAEESE 99 134 13 1 2337 162 2,856
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMEBERERE S
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEEREBER (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EREE (&)
(i) Credit risks of trade receivables (Continued) (i) B ZEKZENEERR
(&
1-90 91-180 181-270 271-360 361-450  451-540
days days days days days days
Track Record Period HEHE 12908 91E180H 1812700 271E3608 361%450H 451 %5408
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR AR%TR
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-%+=7
E=F
Combined impaired receivables: A #HAERENFE :
Gross carrying amount REAE 33,856 17,641 3,890 = = 55,387
Expected loss rate EHERX 05% 05% 0.5% - -
Loss allowance EREE 169 88 20 - - 277
Individually impaired receivables: B RIERELFE :
Related to sales of recycled products 2 $HEB L ERIAR
Gross carrying amount EREE - - 1,057 - - 1,057
Loss allowance BRAR - - 1,057 - - 1,057
Total loss allowance EiEREEE 169 83 1,077 = = 1,334

(i)

Credit risks of other receivables

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
such receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The directors
believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group's outstanding balance
of other receivables as the Group closely
monitors their repayment. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, management consider the
credit risks of other receivables and amounts
due from related parties as low since the
counterparties have a strong capacity to meet
the contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(o)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally
generated cash flows from operations and
borrowings from financial institutions. Management
believes that there is no significant liquidity risk in
view of the expected cash flow from operations and
continuous support from banks in the coming
twelve months.

The tables below analyse the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end of each
reporting period to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

MEERKRER (&)

MEmEREE (E)

(o)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9]

Liquidity risk (Continued)

BERRER (&)
3.1 BEREBEE (&)
() mEELREE (&)

Between  Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
SME 1228 2E5%  SENE Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
As at 31 December 2022 R=BZZ%+=A
=+-H
Trade payables BoRNTE 9,088 - - - 9,088
Other payables (excluding HAERFOE (T REHE
non-financial liabilities) =iy 56,971 - - - 56,971
Borrowings, including interest fE (BFEEAFE)
payables 57,235 - - - 57,235
Financial quarantee contracts () BIFHERA (i) 16,000 - - - 16,000
Lease liabilities HERE 616 - - - 616
Other liabilities — retention HthafE — EIREE
payable - 5,639 - - 5,639
Other liabilities — payable to it & — BN
1Z Assets EE 22,400 33,600 56,000 - 112,000
162,310 39,239 56,000 - 257,549
As at 31 December 2021 RZZ=—%+=F
=1+-H
Trade payables BoRNTE 11,689 = = - 11,689
Other payables (excluding Hip 508 (R B
non-financial liabilities) LRAaR) 5,769 = = = 5,769
Borrowings, including interest fE (BAERAFE)
payables 3,712 29,371 9,938 = 43,021
Lease liabilities HEAE 595 329 = = 924
Other liabilities — payable to Hi A& — BN
LZ Assets EE - 50,400 61,600 - 112,000
21765 80100 71,538 — 173403

(0

The balance presents guarantee given to the banks

in connection with banking facilities granted to third

parties (Note 14 and 15).

iy HEHARBRTE=Z MR
TRE M FEITRENER
(HsE14%15) °

113 ’
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBZEARER W)
3.2 Capital management 32 EXER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEEERERANEERREELR
safeqguard the ability to continue as a going concern, so BIeERE N NEREE A LA E
that the Group can continue to provide returns for BIRR RO R A H AR D&
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and A as - RAERFHEERERBR
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of REARKA o
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the REFKAEERNGEE KEE]
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to EERAEINTRENRESRE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new MRRBEEE S BETHREE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. BEEWRDER-
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing REBEREARNBEL X (BFE
ratio, being total net debt divided by total capital. Total BRERNEER)EREER - BE
capital is the total of net debts and total equity as shown REFEERARERSEMN (R4
on the consolidated statements of financial position. B FBIRRKRATR)
The gearing ratios during the years ended 31 December RBET_—_FRK-_FT=-—F
2022 and 2021 were as follow: TZA=T—HIEFENELREE

HeRp)EmT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=BA=+—8H

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT AREFTT

Borrowings (Note 29) &8 (M3E29) 55,740 39,900

Lease liabilities (Note 14) HEEE (FE14) 608 866
Other liabilities — payable to LZ Assets ~ H A & & — BIHMEE

(Note 31) (BfizE31) 101,292 96,790

Total debt RET 157,640 137,556

Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 24) & : R4 RIR1T45 84

(BftzE24) (59,160) (235,593)
Net debt/(asset) (a) FER, (BE) () 98,480 (98,037)
Total equity Mens HR 453,617 388,184
Total capital (b) HBE R (b) 552,097 290,147
Gearing ratio (a/b) BEAREBE(a/b) 18% N/A 73 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital management (Continued)

The increase in gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022
comparing with 31 December 2021 was mainly resulted
from the increase in borrowings to finance the purchases
of property, plant and equipment and land use rights in
2022.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of trade
receivables, deposits, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and other receivables and
payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.

MEEARER (8)
32 BAEE (&)

RZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—HHE
ERAGLER_ZET-_—F+_-A
=t+—HA#gMm TEHR T -
FIRET - BBEDE BE MK
BRI HFERAEREES -

3.3 AFEME

BHRNGIE  BE  BAFERA
HtembamnemEEARE M
R S R TR R R A RO B BR T B
BMERER SEAVFENGER
UE-RFEMS RABHORF
BNEBRERRENRATRELAR
SERUSRITARSHNRAEMS
M RBEIR 5

B S EH 5 I H i

B e M mRAER G RE
EE ZESHGAELERERERE
F-BEENARERAASE S RRE
1 i )l

Frg AP it R K - fh 5t R H i T ER
BECHRIMAMRAE BREATEHERE
EMBRELIRNEFER THESEE
ZARREMZEH - AEHARBBRFE
MEENMABNR@EEKRENHEN
EXRREBRH G RREHN T -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

(a)

(b)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Revenue recognition from provision of gold
mine hazardous waste treatment services

The Group’s gold mine hazardous waste treatment
services are conducted in various detoxing processes and
integrated with the production process of recycled
products such as pyrite concentrate and high-gold pyrite
concentrate which can be sold for sales revenue. The
Group recognises revenue based on the completion
percentage of the treatment services performance
obligation which is in turn determined with reference to
the percentage of cost incurred up to date to the total
cost. The determination of performance obligation and
the completion percentage of performance obligation
involves judgement, and the total cost of services involves
estimation.

Estimated lease term of warehouses

The Group leased two warehouses to LZ Assets (as defined
in Note 31). The lease term in the lease contracts is 20
years with a committed minimum lease period of 5 years
and with an option to both the Group and the lessee to
terminate the lease arrangement upon the expiry of the
committed 5 years lease period subject to a compensation
of one year rental. The Group considers that there is a
likelihood that the lessee will exercise the right to
terminate the lease arrangement upon the expiry of the
committed 5 years lease period and accordingly the Group
accounted for the leases as a five year lease contract, with
the remaining rental payment refundable to LZ Assets
being accounted for as Other liabilities — payable to LZ
Assets. The estimation of period involves judgement.

REe A RAR (@

(a)

(b)

RESBASEVERNKE
AR

AEENERA SEYRIERSGAE
BEEBES T FETTI R AR
=8 & B AR E H E AR
EWENBEEMNEEBRIZRGE
G AKEREBEERBENE T
MTERCGEE RS MABEE
NB2ELESEEERAIEKRANERE
MBS HEE - BEEBOEENRE
HWEERTRER S R FE - BR
BRBRA K fbat e

HEr R EAH

AEBRRMEE (E&RLMFE3)
HEMEAEE -HESLQAAEB
B0F ARREARRRF A&
B EABAREERAGZIFHB
EmRRIEHER S AN —
FHESEAME AKERSEH
AB A RE & s I T B E 1
TTEEMKEHER At ARE
BRZEHEERAFHES DS
fR-MESKAE@EMNEENES
NRAUMARIESEMEE — BN
HMN B EERRIR - IR EH A -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values and consequently the related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment, and reviews the useful lives and residual
values periodically to ensure that the method and rates of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
realisation of economic benefits from property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. If there are
significant changes from previously estimated useful lives
and residual values, the amount of depreciation expenses
may change.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of items of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy as disclosed in note 2.7 to the consolidated financial
statements. The recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, and
calculations of which involve the use of estimates. In
estimating the recoverable amounts of assets, various
assumptions, including future cash flows and discount
rates, are made. If future events do not correspond to
such assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to
be revised, and this may have an impact on the Group's
results of operations or financial position. The carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated statements of financial positions are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

4 BAREEEETRAE (5

(c)

(d)

M BERRBHMETTRE
MR ERE

AEEEEEREYE BEMR
BEERAAIAFARRE AE
HETERS Y ERRNTARE
HEsE BRITE AR XA
ME BEERELENZERD
BEHEA - b IREHER
UHERDENY X BFE RRE
MERAIBFHBEER ML
EERAF AT AFHERBREAEXN
B AT ERX SR e -

MEE BERRERE

RIFERA MBS RAM 2. 7T R EE Y
MR EFHABRAEIETR
REEAEEZROE Y
X BEARBEENEEERS
HEBERE - AIRESBEREQFE
BWHEERARERBERERNEK
=& BEES RERME - A
BEMAMKECER SFHERE
R BREARRSRERHRE-
HARREMFEZEBRZAN AIF
ERIAKRESE MEREHAE
B EEESIIBARNERTE
RAEVBRRERPIE BE KK
BHREERNRE M B RRME
15 ¢
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e) Impairment of financial assets

()

(9)

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the note 3.1(b).

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a few jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determinations are made.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities relating to certain
temporary differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities
and taxation in the periods in which such estimate is
changed.

Other income on a gross or net basis

The Group is involved in the trading of magnesite
between a third party State-owned enterprise supplier of
the magnesite and the customers that purchase the
magnesite. The Group bought the magnesite from the
supplier and sold to the customers. The Group does not
assume the inventory risk and also had no right to decide
the selling price therefore the Group recognised income
related to the agency business on a net basis.

REe A RAR (@

(e)

(f)

(9)

EMEERE

CREENBERBGEIHIEREED
Eb RTBHEEE ZBEMmED-
ERAEBZRERSE BEMS
R ARBIEEEGE AEBRF
WEARELZEBRRLEEFE
VERIERA DN €S s |-
AR EZ/\EREABBF BRI
FF3.1(b) 5B

BNHA R IR SE PR & Bt

AREBEARE T RVEERBAFRF
B-EBEMSHABRERFED
HIEN -2 T F RN ZKBHBER
HEEVRENESEIE LEERE
B &L TR ARG
MIREFTS B -

REEBRRRA S RKERY
AR REREEREERR X
SEEREETERMEZEFED
EXEFBHEERBE HEHE
REM G IR ZFEEZEKEF
EEBAEEHRMECHERE
ERAERBIARNER

BRERIFHEAENEMBA

AEBREZEEBEES E5%H
DRRF =T ESREEER (Bd)
MEEZSBNEL ANEEEH
ERBEZEBRBYLETEL X
SEY AAEFERR  FEER
TEHHE B AN B DA% R
REAERHEBEOWA -

HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



S N

w.t_ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities

The Group’s chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM")
has been identified as the executive directors of the Board
and the chief financial controller.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of gold
mine hazardous waste treatment services and sales of
recycled products such as pyrite concentrate in the PRC.
The process of the treatment services and production of
the resultant recycled products are in one integral process,
and the CODM assesses the performance of treatment
services and sales of recycled product as a whole. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
commenced the construction of sulfuric acid production
plant on the new land lot acquired. From a product
perspective, the CODM assesses the performance of
provision of gold mine hazardous waste treatment services
and sales of recycled product, production of sulfuric acid
and others and unallocated. Others mainly includes other
recycled products and the construction in progress.
Unallocated cost mainly includes administrative expenses
incurred by the Company and inter-mediate holding
companies of the Group. Management of the Group
assesses the performance of operating segments based on
segment profit or loss and assets.

Assets grouped under unallocated category comprise cash
and bank balances and other receivables held by the
Company and intermediate holding companies of the
Group.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprise
other payables and accruals of the Company and
intermediate holding companies of the Group.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets.

The Group's principal market, where majority of revenue
and operating profit and all operations and non-current
assets, are in Laizhou city of Shandong province of the
PRC. Accordingly, no geographical segment information is
presented.

5 SEHER

(a)

DEMHBREEEE
AEENTIELERRA ([EEE
BRBRADNCRIIREZENTE
=R RE -

AEBEXZRFENERHESES
EEYVEEREIEEFEER (I
g  RIEREMNBERERZE
EBLEMRE—HAZTENBRE M
FTELERRAERTHEERE
rFHAEERHEENKRBE -BHE_-Z
——#®+-—A=+—BLFE &K
£ E R T URBE M T b 1R A Bl
HEAEME - EZRLERRAR
EnBETHERESBESEYE
BRELEEBEER MBEEE
HERDEEMNRR - EMEE
PREEMBEERRERTR X
PEERAEZEBREARRRAEE
REER AR EEMITERAE S A&
SEEEERBEOSFBEREET
B D ERRIR

DEB/ARDPEEHNNEERREAR
CIPSEN Sl ki /NCTES R SR
B M ERTT 45 8% S Bt R MR IR -

DEB/ARIEEINABEREAR
A N 7N 52 1B R FR 4R AR 8 A B E A 8
NREREFER -

FRBDEEREBRAIEDNE K
FEh&E ERREENRENEE-

AEENEEMES Ko Uas &
REBNMRBXEBNIERBDEE
B RPBEILREFMNT - Btk I
EM I D BEHBRES
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZHERH)
(a) Description of segments and principal activities (a) PEBHAREEETEH (&)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December BEZZT-_—_FR-T=-_—F+=
2022 and 2021 is as follows: A=1T—HIEFENDHERDAT :
Provision of gold
mine hazardous
waste treatment
services and Production of
sales of recycled sulfuric acid
products and others Unallocated
RUSRES
BNEERER
HEBLER LERMRHM ROE H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR%TR ARETR
For the year ended BZ-%--F1CA
31 December 2022 =+-ALEE
Segment revenue Al 222,801 - - 222,801
Segment profit/(loss) AEEA /(5B 115,619 (3,756) (3,063) 108,800
Finance costs — net BENKFE (6,234) 1,221 (24) (5,037)
Profit before income tax BRETERATE A 103,763
Income tax expense FrishiR % (23,547)
Profit for the year EREF 80,216
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 15,138 1,269 351 16,758
Additions to non-current assets REFETRBEE 5,964 26,313 - 252,277
As at 31 December 2022 R=2==F+=A=+-H
Total assets EERE 488,239 269,016 532 757,787
Total liabilities ffERE 266,415 35,178 2,577 304,170
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE =T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEER (&)
(a) Description of segments and principal activities () PHHPBREEEH (&)

(Continued)
i —— Y G

The segment information for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 is as follows: (Continued)

A=t—HLFEENSEERT :

(#8)
Provision of gold
mine hazardous
waste treatment
services and Production of
sales of recycled sulfuric acid
products and others Unallocated
RESHEEE
BERE RS &
HEBLER AERBRRAM KR st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTL AREFTL AREFTL
For the year ended BE-B--%1ZA
31 December 2021 =+-ALEE
Segment revenue Pz 257,043 = = 257,043
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (B8 140,870 (93) (17,612) 123,165
Finance costs — net BEAKARTE (5,596) (215) (210) (6,021)
Profit before income tax BETETARF 117,144
Income tax expense FrERFEY (31,531)
Profit for the year FRa 85,613
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 14,512 = 13 14,525
Additions to non-current assets REFRPEE 17,892 = 639 18,531
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-Ft-f=+-A
Total assets EEEE 431422 97,316 93,926 622,664
Total liabilties REEE 231,535 28 2,917 234,480
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2WMER @
(b) Revenue during the years ended 31 December (b) REBEE-ZT-_—_FR-ZE-_—F§
2022 and 2021 tZA=+-BHLEFEHKRE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2022 2021
-2 —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFTT
Revenue from contract with B BR BF A 3R 5 2E ISR 15 5%
customers within the scope HEANETFaOKE
of IFRS 15
Revenue from provision of gold mine R SER EEYRIERT
hazardous waste treatment services F U 2% 76,439 96,581
Revenue from sales of recycled products  $5% B4 & m A W 131,855 145,955
208,294 242,536
Other revenue Hib Wi
Rental income (Note 31) HE WA (MEE31) 14,507 14,507
222,801 257,043
The analysis of revenue from contract with customers IRHR BB B s s 5 2RI SE 1557 R
within the scope of IFRS15 recognised over time and at a R B 7% i 5 4 R 551 557 %0 Bl (N BE
point in time as required by IFRS15 is set out below: KERNEFHIEBERNESEH
Was A ITEN T X :

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2022 AOYA
—E-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Recognised over time BERF R FERE
Revenue from provision of gold mine R SER ZEYRIERSE
hazardous waste treatment services olgy 76,439 96,581
Recognised at a point in time RERBEER
Revenue from sales of recycled products  $4% B4 & m ) W et 131,855 145,955

208,294 242,536
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE =T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZHER )
(c) Contract liabilities (0 &HEE
The Group recognised the following contract liabilities: REEBRATENEE:

As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—8”
2022 2021

= —E-

—_——— — =

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBETT

Contract liabilities related to provision of ERfR{t&HEA EREYIEEIEAR
gold mine hazardous waste treatment BRI AKEE

services 740 3,370
Contract liabilities related to sales of HEFEREEMBBENEG YD
recycled products =L 1,837 4,895
2,577 8,265
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINTRBEZZ_Z_FR=F
recognised during the years ended 31 December 2022 T+ A=T—HILFEER
and 2021 relates to carried-forward contract liabilities: WEHABSEHNAEBE@EN KRGS

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=1t—BLEE
2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T

Revenue recognised that was included in 5T AFHIA N BBEEHHE
the balance of contract liabilities at the R ES
beginning of the year

Provision of gold mine hazardous waste IR &1EHE EREY iR H RIS

treatment services 3,370 8,676
Sales of recycled products HEBEEm 3,173 2,151
6,543 10,827
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 o9HER(®
(d) Unsatisfied contracts (d) KETER
The following table shows unsatisfied performance TRINREREPEI LG HNFTES-
obligations resulting from contracts with customers: BWARBITRAOEE:

As at 31 December
Rt+t=B=+—H
2022 2021

—E__ —EF——4F

=

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T

Expected to be recognised within one  FAEIHS I —F AR
year

Provision of gold mine hazardous waste 12t & 1A EREWIER IE IR

treatment services 740 3,370

Sales of recycled products HEB4EEm 1,837 4,895

2,577 8,265

(e) Information about major customers (e) EHEEEEFFHNER
Revenue from individual customers which individually RKEFEBEFEBERERNEE
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue —E__FRZFE_—%+=H
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is =+—BIEFEAERER10% KA E
set out below: B S H S AT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—1F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Customer A EFA 51,368 40,301

Customer B EFB 23,186  N/A T@EA (i)

Customer C BFC N/A & A (i) 37,615
()  Contributed less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue iy REBEFERAIEEEAKZER

for the relevant year. D10% ©
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OTHER INCOME

H g A
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—HA=1t—BLEE
2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARMT T

Government grants T 4 B 986 =
Agency service income RIEERFEBA 572 =
Personal income tax refund A A FRASER T 201 47
Others HAh - 31

1,759 78

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
subsidiary, Shandong Hongcheng Resources Comprehensive
Utilization Co., Ltd. (“"HC Resources”) acted effectively as an
agent that facilitate the trading of magnesite materials between
a third party State-owned enterprise supplier of the magnesite
and the customers that purchase the magnesite. HC Resources
bought the magnesite from the supplier and sold to the
customers. The Group recognises income from these
transactions on net basis. As at 31 December 2022, other
receivable from the supplier and other payables to the
customers amounted to RMB28,025,000 (Note 22) and
RMB23,224,000 (Note 28), respectively. The Directors confirm
that the agency service income was one-off transaction and the
Group is not actively pursuing business opportunities in such
agency business.

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

BE-_ZE-_—F+=-A=1+—HItFEE"
NEEHNK B QR RBEAERES T
BARAF (BEAERIIEARE A
BN ESEREZES E5E DR A%
—HESEEER (BM)MEEEEE
MEF BEERAEENES ZHRBIW
HEFTEF - AKBRFHEELEERZS
TEHHWA - N E-—F+-_A=+—
B EMERHERREREMENRP
KBS R A A R%28,025,0007T (B 5
22) } AR #23,224,0007T (H{328) - &
ERRRERBUALE—XMERS M
AEETEEGSKABRREEBSNRE
1%0

Hphz~ (B518) B8
Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021

—E-_=F T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Foreign exchange gains b 5 e - 249
Net losses on disposal of property, plant and &% - BE M &E R EM

equipment and other assets (Note 32) BEMNEEFE(KE32) (38) (500)

Others Efb 75 95

37 (156)
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8

126

EXPENSES BY NATURE

The analysis of cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative

expenses is as follow:

RUEBESHAX
HEMAR HERX RITHRAX NS
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+=A=+—ALEE
2022 2021
—E-—4F
RMB'000
ARETIT

—sE=-=
RMB'000
AR®T

Raw materials and consumables used B R R R FEM 29,084 41,772
Changes in inventories of finished goods YAk fn R fE &L 17 & & )

and work-in-progress 3,572 (263)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EERFAASE (FMFE9) 17,473 16,658
Transportation expenses EiX 13,143 11,947
Electricity and water expenses KERZ 10,499 11,754
Amortisation of right-of-use assets F L s (FsE14)

(Note 14) 2,300 833
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREETE

equipment (Note 15) (Bt3E15) 10,065 9,299
Depreciation of investment properties WEMZEITE (MizE16)

(Note 16) 4,386 4,386
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) R & E# (HizE17) 7 7
Taxes and levies HIEREE 6,018 4,250
Consultation and professional fees BARBEER 3,880 3,796
Repair and maintenance fee HIERREER 1,542 3,482
Auditor’s remuneration — audit services 2 BREM = B — |AZ RS 2,083 1,627
Production safety cost FELZEKA 1,457 1,560
Listing expenses WX - 14,206
Donations BER 52 310
Others At 8,714 6,957
Total HEt 114,275 132,581
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERAEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2022 AOYA
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR%T AREFT
Salaries, wages and bonuses Fe  TERIEA 14,347 13,740
Contributions to pension plan, medical BRIREEE - BERRREA
insurance and other social insurance (a) MR (a) 2,639 2,532
Housing fund FEAES 487 386
17,473 16,658
(a) Contributions to pension plan (a) EBIARESFHEIHR
The PRC based employees of the Group participate in AEBNHREEL2EHF HIERA
various defined contribution retirement and social benefit T R & BT AR S TE R e #
plans organised by the relevant municipal and provincial FTRARRAE GRS - AEE R
governments in the PRC. The Group and the employees BEEGAMZEFEHA ¢
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans EREEIEMBDLHFTE RAR
calculated as a percentage of employees’ salaries, subject TE PR o T BT I & BT A e A HE
to certain ceiling. The municipal and provincial RIE st S EMOAIRE kA
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit FAR R B R B B R IR FIZE 7 -
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based ZEENEERASEBNEED
employees payable under the plans described above. The A BHFBEBRNEENBIESR
assets of these plans are held separately from those of the Ao BkEAHEIIN NEEWET
Group in an independent fund managed by the PRC EREERRREMBIRERFNAE
government. Other than the monthly contributions, the — S EE-AEBEZFTE A4
Group has no further obligation for the payment of FTRELERY AR -

retirement and other post-retirement benefits of its
employees. The Group's contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers on BECHEIRMNER (REER
behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to RERSSF B EAA RS
vesting fully in such contributions) to offset existing MEES) A EETHKITETH
contributions under the defined contribution schemes. A K
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include three (2021: three) directors for the
years ended 31 December 2022. Their emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 38. Details of
the remunerations of the remaining two (2021: two)
highest paid individuals during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

BERABX (4)
(b) EfUEREHMAL

HE_Z-_—_F#+-A=+—H1
FE - AEBRURSFMA LY
MBEE=%(ZE=_—F:=8)%
Fo B E RS B F M 5E38FT
oM - REBE_E-_—_Fx_-F
——Ff+-A=Z+—HLEFEES
FHAOBRTRE (ZEZ—F: M
) EARF BB ST

Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
2022 2021

—E__ —EF——4F

=

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T

Salaries, wages and bonuses e ITERELA 1,097 1,198
Contributions to pension plan, housing  ER&:E - AFES - BF
fund, medical insurance and other 1R M B b it 2 48 I 50
social benefits 96 71
1,193 1,269
The number of highest paid non-director individuals REZ2_ZE-_—FK_FT - —
whose remuneration for the years ended 31 December +ZA=+—RHLFEKBREZ ZI
2022 and 2021 fell within the following bands are as NESHMATHEBES S &
follows: g

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2022 2021

—_— — — —=—
= _

Emolument bands (Nil to HK$1,000,000) EM<&#8 5] (ZZ 1,000,000

BT)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
none of the five highest paid individuals waived or has
agreed to waive any emoluments, and none of the five
highest paid individuals received emoluments from the
Group as inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office.

REE-_TE-_—_FRER_T-—F
+—A=+—RHLEFE AuKS
A B E SR B REE M
e A& =EHMA T IRER K
& B U E BN 2 1E & N A AN & B 5o in
AN BB ) SE B ok BB F (5 o

128 HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRNE
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10 FINANCE COSTS — NET 10 BERARFEEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2022 AOYA
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBT T
Finance income R WA
— Interest income derived from bank — BRITEBRELENF EWA
balances (400) (412)
Finance costs A& R A
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings ~ — fR/TE KA BRI 2,123 1,680
— Interest expenses relating to warehouse — EigEHELHHFBFIE
lease arrangements (Note 31) s (F45E31) 4,502 4,301
— Interest expenses on lease liabilities — HEaENEMX
(Note 14) (M¥5E14) 28 26
— Other losses — HMEE (1,216) 426
5,437 6,433
Less: borrowing costs capitalised in property, & : R¥13E « BE M REE R
plant and equipment {EBIFE SR AR - -
5,437 6,433
Finance costs — net RLE R A HER 5,037 6,021
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FEHEAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—HLEE

2022 AOYA
=== —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR¥ T ARETIT

PRC income tax PR FTS
— Current income tax expense — BHEAFT SR X 24,234 28,025
— Deferred income tax expense (Note 30) — #EIEFTSHIF 2 (FizE30) (687) 3,506

23,547 31,531
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1

130

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The Group's principal applicable taxes and tax rates are as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and Hong Kong

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and is not liable for taxation in the
Cayman Islands.

The Group's subsidiary incorporated in the BVI is exempted
company and is not liable for taxation in the BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax was considered at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the years.
The Group did not have assessable profits in Hong Kong
for the years.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

Taxation on PRC income has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the Group's
subsidiaries operate. The Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in PRC are subject to CIT at the rate of 25%
(2021: 25%) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In accordance with the Announcement of the State
Taxation Administration and the Ministry of Finance on
Matters Concerning the Continued Deferral of Some Taxes
and Fees for Medium, Small and Micro Manufacturing
Enterprises [2022] No. 17 ( {BI R 7548 /B B B &6 B R
HEXT NI EEETEEHRLOHETR=IEN
N [2022] 17%%), from 1 September 2022, those
medium-sized manufacturing enterprises that have
enjoyed deferral in payment of 50% of taxes and fees and
small and micro manufacturing enterprises that have
deferred payment of all taxes and fees under the
Announcement of the State Taxation Administration and
the Ministry of Finance on Relevant Matters Concerning
Extending the Deferral of Some Taxes and Fees for
Medium, Small and Micro Manufacturing Enterprises, will
be granted another four months of grace period upon the
expiration of the previous deferment period.

11 A8

BB X ()

AEEHNERZERARALBELT :

(a)

(b)

RERE HABEEREE ([&
BHEBRERE)RER

ARBIRRFASESEMKIINE
Henm BAERSEESEN -

AEBENHBRAR RN REBERR
HEEMAINERRRAE HA
EEBERREHMR -

RER BENSHIZ G ERB
A H16.5% FF H o AR BRFERA
ERBLEERBEH

hEIEERER ([REREHR])

o B I A B B TR R ik 5t AR A
St AR AR AN = B B A RIS & FTTE
MR BERNRITHEAFE - RBEZ
S+ _A=+t—BLFE"
/NI Pl 5 gD A valE o = /NG

BIR25% (B = —4F:25% ) KB
RGN ZEFTISH -

BIE(BEREBH LR B BE R
BU 38 AP/ VR LD A A T AR AR B
PHBEBESTENAS) [2022] %
175 - BT —F A —HiE-
BIEERE SRR MBI ER
B FE R/ SRR T R AR R
TMEEBASEENLRE) Z=X
50% JE BRI AN TR B Y R AU U 1 3
ME 2 IEBHNT B/ NUEE
T FEAEHSmRE B4 T4
& A B ER AR -
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(9]

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax on
dividends received/receivable will be levied on the PRC
companies’ immediate holding companies established out
of the PRC. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty arrangement between the PRC and
the jurisdiction of the foreign immediate holding
companies and simultaneously certain conditions are
satisfied.

PRC withholding income tax has been provided for the
amounts the Group expect Mainland China subsidiaries to
distribute these profits in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2022, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB 1,800,000 (2021: RMB1,800,000) have been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable
on remitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries of the Group
amounting to RMB18,000,000 (2021: RMB18,000,000).

No PRC withholding income tax has been provided for the
remaining earnings which will be retained in Mainland
China for expansion of the Group’s operation. As at 31
December 2022, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB23,382,000 (2021: RMB14,732,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable
on unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries of the
Group amounting to RMB233,818,000 (2021:
RMB147,320,000).

11 &

(c)

BB (&)
PE A B

REBEEEMSTOE R BEIFEINK
MH P B AR ERERA RS E
BB W e IR B OA10% TR A
Biofih B ERINE HERER AR
AREBERZEARBENOLZEE
I [R5 i 2 A T 16 A - B A A
KE B K -

B AEEERRAIER KRR EH
A B R Al = 9 IR 5% 5 s A
CEFHIRTRENMEREE R
—E-_F+_A=+—H &%
& /9 A B B BB~ R B B A A TR
A AR #18,000,0005T (= F ——
F£: AR #18,000,0007T) - D HER
HHEEZMGEMREBEEARE
1,800,000t (ZE = —F: ARKE
1,800,0007T, °

BETL R T B FET IR BIFE AR 1S
MEE ZERINEREEPEA
HMASHEAEBRBETEE - R _F
¥+ A=+—H8 A5EH
FEBARELZMNNOENR S
A #233,818,0000 (=& = —
&£ AR#147,320,0007T) * ©HER
HEREREMGSRAEBEARK
23,382,000 (ZE=—F: AR
14,732,0007T °

2022 53 | BMARRMBZARAF 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FBHEX (&)
(c) PRC withholding income tax (Continued) () FEFEMNFAEBH (&)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs 7R & B B AT 15 B AT A B e B
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the HEERFEEBRNERNEE
statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the consolidated MEFENERESBBENATER:

entities as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1t—HLLEE
2022 2021

—_E__ —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB‘'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Profit before income tax B TS R A& Al 103,763 117,144

Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax 2P B2 TSR 25%

rate of 25% (2021:25%) AEARIE(ZR 5
25%) 25,941 29,286

Tax effects of: MBHE
— Impact of different tax rates at a — TRIFHI TR A 2= 7

different tax regime 7% 566 2,223
— Expenses not deductible forincome ~ — A HIFTEHIF S

tax purpose 604 465
— Income not subject to income tax — BABMFIETRA (3,296) (3,649)
— Tax losses for which no deferred — WA ERIELS

income tax asset was recognised HEEMTIAEE 550 1,406
— Additional deduction on research and — BLAT 2% B 2 B ZE SN

development expenses (443) -
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — B8 %t Bl R FER 2 Fi 1B

tax losses &1 (86) =
— Tax filing difference for prior year — FFEHmNER (289) =
— Withholding tax — TEHH - 1,800
Tax charge A 23,547 31,531
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(c) PRC withholding income tax (Continued)

(i)

In accordance with the Circular of the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on
Issues concerning Implementing the Enterprise
Income Tax Incentive Catalogue for Comprehensive
Utilization of Resources Cai Shui [2008] No. 47 ( {&#f
BE BERBBRBENRMITERGEaNMABLE
ST EBEE A BRENBM) B5i[2008] 47
%), an enterprise, which uses the raw materials
under the catalogue to produce recycled resource
products under the catalogue and the products
meet the national or industrial standards, is entitled
to incentive tax arrangement such that 90% of the
sales revenue of the products is subject to the
calculation of the taxable income. The Group's sales
of recycled products qualify for the incentive tax
arrangement and therefore 10% of the Group’s
revenue from sales of recycled products was
exempted from the taxable income of the Group in
the calculation of CIT during the years.

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the years.

11 FEFHEX (8
FREFEH TR (&)

(c)
(i)
12 BRER
(a) EX

BIE (B BRFHEER
BRATERGEFN B E
FIEHESEHEHEMERN
WA B H[2008]475% ¥
FIEBESANNERERMEEEB
BANBEBRER AEM
REBRRIZERITEZE 0]
ZZRMEERLTHE BE MH
E U ZEH90% 5 A FERR B Uk
A REEHENTEERRF
AEMBERMETH Bt E5
BEOEMSHRE  AEERE
WNIHE B AEEmMKERN10%
W ERF A HIBR -

GRAARTIIEBIGAD AREA
NHEAE 3 P A B0 B B 47 2
BRANE P BEE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+t—HLFE

2022

Profit attributable to owners of the PAN/NETEZ ¥ S DN X i
Company (RMB’000) (ARETFTT) 80,216 85,613
Weighted average number of ordinary & 217 & @ A% H0#E F 15 #1
shares in issue 1,000,000,000 784,246,575
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREARMN(ARETT) 0.08 0.11
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
diluted earnings per share presented is the same as the
basic earnings per share as there were no instruments
outstanding that could have a dilutive effect on the
Company’s ordinary shares.

13 DIVIDEND

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 June
2022, a final dividend of HKD0.0189 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.0162) per share was declared, amounting
to a total of HKD18.9 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB16.1 million) out of the Company’s share premium account
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

No final dividend was recommended for the year ended 31
December 2022.

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of financial position

12

13

14

BREF (&)
(b) #%

HE_Z-_—_FR-_ZT-—F+=
A=+—BLtFE 23HEKRE
BERMNEEREAZFNER BA
WEBEITEIN T AT HARF K
TREREETE -

iz 2

EARARR-—E-——&ExA=-+mALE
THRRBEFAE L RBE-_T——F
+=—A=+— Hﬁif‘*i}fﬂiﬁﬂﬁigi
f%0.01897% 7L (HHE R4 A R#0.0162
JT) :./\1895{%/%%(@”‘75’\\?’]/\&
¥16. 188 TT) °

MERRBE_T_—_F+-_A=1—
BIEFEZRBAKE -

EREEEREEARS
(i) REEMBRARRBERNETE

As at 31 December

B+=A=+—H
2022 AOYA
=== —E-—1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Land use rights T R 79,582 24,742
Leased properties HEMZE 360 827
79,942 25,569
Lease liabilities HESE
Leased properties HEWE
— Non-current — JEmE - (320)
— Current — RE (608) (546)
(608) (866)

134 HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 14 FRAEEERHEESS (8
(Continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated () REEVBRARBEIANESEHE
statements of financial position (Continued) (&)
Movements in right-of-use assets in 2022 and 2021 are RIBZZFRZZFZ—FHER
analysed as follows: BEEESHOMMT :
Land use Leased Leased
rights equipment properties Total
T E R HERE HENE Mt
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT ARBTT ARETRT
At 1 January 2021 R —%F
—H—H 25,336 1,867 1,096 28,299
Additions NE - - 639 639
Disposals HE = (432) = (432)
Transfer to fixed assets EBREETEEE
(Note 15) (PHEE15) - (1,380) - (1,380)
Termination of lease contracts #& IFFEA 4 - = (724) (724)
Depreciation (Note 8) & (e s) (594) (55) (184) (833)
As at 31 December 2021 RZT——4F
+=-—A=+—H 24,742 - 827 25,569
At 1 January 2022 i\
—H—H 24,742 - 827 25,569
Additions NE 56,750 - - 56,750
Exchange differences M E - - 44 44
Depreciation (Note 8) & (MisEs) (1,910) - (511) (2,421)
As at 31 December 2022 N-ZTE-—F
+=—A=+—"H 79,582 - 360 79,942
The Group's land use rights comprise leases of the factory AEEH LTI ERAERRELRSSE
sites of Shandong Jinjia, HC Mining and HC Environmental TBEHE S ROB IR RO A A B R
located at Laizhou city of Shandong Province, the PRC. BHRMTHRE AN EE
The estimated useful life of the Group’s land use rights is REE T ERENMGAIERAS
determined to be 50 years which is the best estimate of HTHETE RS0F HAREHE -
the useful life based on the normal terms of land use right HERERE —RERE A EAF
leases in the PRC. HAR B AT -
As at 31 December 2022, land use rights of the Group RZE__F#+-_A=+—HB K
with a total net book value of RMB5,696,000 (31 SEE®FE ,ﬁ@ %E /RARE
December 2021: RMB5,850,000) and RMB 16,238,000 (31 5,696,000 (ZE=-—F+=- A
December 2021: nil) were pledged as security for long- =+—H: /\EMS 850 0007T) &
term and short-term bank borrowings of the Group, AR #16,238,000t (Z&F = —4F
respectively. ‘f'_)EJ =+—H:&) E’Jiiﬂ@‘iﬁﬁ%
DREREAREERBARER
fETﬂﬂw\E’Jﬁ%‘ﬁ °
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14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

136

(i)

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of financial position (Continued)

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the group provided guarantee to the borrowings of third
parties and pledged land use rights of the Group with net
book value of RMB15,574,000 (31 December 2021: nil).
Further details are set out in Note 33.

The Group also leases office premises, warehouses and
equipment under operating leases for periods ranging
from 2 to 3 years.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income

14 FRAEEEREEESEE (B

(i)

(i)

(%)

o BE2_ZT-_—_F+ A
=t+—RHALtFE AXEEEE=FH
EBRREEER UEHBAEEERER
SFE A ANR#15,574,000c (= F
——Ft+-_A=+—H:E)NLit
R — PFIBEH R 33 -

EMBRRRERNEHE

AEBNMBBEECLHAEHRRAE
ME-BENMEKE BN T2E3
=

RESZEHKERBERANEHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEE

2022 2021
—EB-—F —EB-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARETT
Cost of sales HENA 393 566
Administrative expenses THAX 1,907 267
2,300 833

Interest expenses (included in finance FERAZ GTAMBEKA)
cost) (Note 10) (Btzx10) 28 26

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
depreciation on Land use rights amounting to
approximately RMB121,000 (year ended 31 December
2021: nil) was capitalised on qualifying assets.

The total cash outflow for leases during the years ended
31 December 2022 was RMB331,000 (2021:
RMB661,000).

HE_Z-_—_#+=-A=+—H1
FE - THEABRBTENARKE
121,000 (Bl ZE=—F=——F+ = A
=T—HIEFE:B)EREERE
EEXE-

HE-Z-_—_F+=-A=+—H1
FE-HENBEERHBAEAAR
#331,000 (ZZE = —F: ARM
661,0007T) °
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y BERKRE

Furniture
fixtures and Construction
Buildings Machineries equipment Vehicles in progress Total

i BE

BT HE KERRE RE ERIRE ast
RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT ARETE ARBTE ARETR ARERTRL

As at 1 January 2021 R=B=-f-A-H

Cost KA 111,546 28,790 3,720 5,669 = 149,725
Accumulated depreciation  Z&HHTE (9,487) (6,998) (1,632) (1,174) = (19,291)
Net book amount REFE 102,059 21,792 2,088 4,495 - 130,434

Year ended 31 December EHE-FB=-%£+=f8

2021 =t-HLFE
Opening net book amount  HI¥EREF(E 102,059 21,792 2,088 4,495 = 130,434
Additions RE 1,242 1,440 494 3,690 11,026 17,892
Transfer upon completion e R E R = 11,026 = = (11,026) =
Transfer from right-of-use ~ EEEEREEE

assets (Note 14) (BsE14) = 1,380 = = - 1,380
Disposals HE = (574) = (1,214) - (1,788)
Depreciation (Note 8) ik GET)) (4,468) (3,386) 611) (834) - (9,299)
Closing net book amount ~ HiRREFE 98,833 31,678 1,971 6,137 = 138,619
As at 31 December 2021  R=ZE=-—-%£+=R

Er=[

Cost A 112,788 42,398 4214 8,104 = 167,504
Accumulated depreciation  Z&HHTE (13,955) (10,720) (2,243) (1,967) = (28,885)
Net book amount BEFE 98,833 31,678 1,971 6,137 = 138,619
Year ended 31 December EHE-FB-—£+=f8

2022 =t-HIEEE
Opening net book amount  HI¥EREF(E 98,833 31,678 1,971 6,137 - 138,619
Additions AE 1,334 47 214 1,505 192,427 195,527
Transfer upon completion TR R B 22,440 - - - (22,440) -
Disposals hrl= - - - (2,151) - (2,151)
Depreciation (Note 8) & (MizEs) (5.238) (3.739) (586) (677) - (10,240)
Others Htfy 1,258 (1,258) - - - -
Closing net book amount AR 118,627 26,728 1,599 4814 169,987 321,755
As at 31 December 2022 R-B--#+=H

=+-H

Cost KA 137,820 41,187 4,428 6,816 169,987 360,238
Accumulated depreciation  Z&HHTE (19,193) (14,459) (2.829) (2,002) - (38,483)
Net book amount REFE 118,627 26,728 1,599 4,814 169,987 321,755
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15

138

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is included in the
following categories in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income:

15 YE - BERRE®)

M- BERRBTENG L2 EREE
St AA TS

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-HA=1t—HLLEE
2022 2021
—E-—F
RMB‘'000
ARET T

—E-=
RMB’000
AR®T T

Cost of sales $HE K A 6,856 6,648
Administrative expenses TR X 3,209 2,651
Total st 10,065 9,299

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the depreciation on
construction vehicles amounting to approximately RMB 175,000
(year ended 31 December 2021: nil) was capitalised on
qualifying assets.

As at 31 December 2022, buildings of the Group with net book
value of RMB3,300,000 (31 December 2021: RMB68,724,000)
and RMB51,147,000 (31 December 2021: nil) were pledged to
secure long-term and short-term bank borrowings of the Group,
respectively.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the
group provided guarantee to the borrowings of third parties
and pledged buildings of the Group with net book value of
RMB40,804,000 (31 December 2021: nil). Further details are set
out in Note 33.

BE-_ZE-_—_F+-A=t+—HILEE"
EEBEWTE N ARK1750007T (HE
—E-—F+ - A=+—HItFE:E)
EREEREEENL-

R —_F+_A=+—H ~EEE
R E A ARE3,300,0000 (—ZF = —
F+—-—A=+—H: AR#¥68,724,0007T)
M AR¥51,147,000t (Z T - —F+—
A=+—RH: 8)WEFEHRNERER
RNEE R RGHBITEROER-

AN B E2022F12A31H IEFE - A&
AR FE A A R 40,804,0007T (=
E-—F+-A=+t—H:B)NE=H
ERREFEFRHER E—TFEH
HBIEE33 ©
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2020

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

16 BREWE

R=2=FF+=-A=+—H

Buildings
BF

RMB’000
ARETIT

Cost AR 142,565
Accumulated depreciation 2tihE (8,588)
Net book amount BREFE 133,977
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_E-_—St+-A=+t—HLEE
Opening net book amount HRRIERE A 133,977
Depreciation (Note 8) e (BIsEs) (4,386)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 129,591
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-—F+=-H=+-—H
Cost B%N 142,565
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (12,974)
Net book amount REFE 129,591
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_Z_—_F+-HA=+—HILFE
Opening net book amount B AR DA 129,591
Depreciation (Note 8) & (i 8) (4,386)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 125,205
As at 31 December 2022 R=B-=—F+=-A=+—H
Cost B AR 142,565
Accumulated depreciation RitineE (17,360)
Net book amount BREFE 125,205
(@) As at 31 December 2022, investment properties of the (@ RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H80'K

Group with net book value of RMB71,398,000 (31

December 2021: RMB67,847,000) and RMB53,256,000

(31 December 2021: nil) were pledged to secure long- R #67,847,000m) K AR

term and short-term bank borrowings of the Group, 53,256,000t (— T -—F+ =8

respectively. =+t—H: E)NREMEE K
HEAREERIAKREHRITEK
HHELR o

SEEmFEASARET1,398,000
T(ZEZ—F+-A=+—H8: A
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HIFE

16

140

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties were approximately
RMB146,410,000 (2021: RMB153,273,000). The fair
value as at 31 December 2022 was estimated by the
management of the Group. The fair value as at 31
December 2022 was determined with reference to a
professional valuation by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, a
professional valuer. The Group's investment properties
were in industrial use and located at north of
Dadongzhuang Village, Shahe Town, Laizhou City, Yantai,
Shangdong Province, the PRC.

Valuation techniques

Income approach is adopted and takes into account the
current rents of the property interests and the reversionary
potentials of the tenancies, term yield and reversionary
yield are then applied respectively to derive the market
value of the property, there were no changes to the
valuation techniques for each of the two investment
properties during the years.

Information about fair value measurements of investment
properties using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) is
as follows:

Fair value (RMB’000) RHEANRETT)

Unobservable inputs TSRIER 228 A\ SR

— Term yield — A E R

— Reversion yield — EHRER

— Annually market rent — FEMmGHEE
(RMB/sg.m./annum) (ANREFH5KF)

16 BREW= (&)

(b)

RZE-_—_F+=—RA=+—H &
EEKEMENRFEONAARE
146,410,000t (ZE = —F: AR
#153,273,0000C) c A =T = —
+— A=+ HHAFEIBRASE
BEEEMFT - R_TE-_F+=
A=+—HMAFERAZREEZEME
EMSERTERARETHNEE
HEET - AEENKEMELST
X% URPRLERESZTH
PN T A $E KRR $E AT A AL o

fEEE M

ERBRAE Yt hMERZR
FHE mMERSHEBEONE
Eﬁ@ﬁ~4"ﬂ%ﬁ@$&$&@ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ?&$
SHYEROmE: FR MEARKRE
%%RQE’MME&VHFJE FIL

BREREATAIBREBARZE (5
ZRFENRENE R FENE
BRI :

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021

= —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
146,410 153,273

B%5.0% perannum B 5.0% per annum
S%55% perannum  H%5.5% per annum

11-22 11-22
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16 BREYE (&)
(0 Rental income relating to the lease of investment (0 HXEYEHEEHENHESUWAG
properties was included in the consolidated statements of ARG 2 ER K :

comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1T—HLEE

2022 2021
—E2_— - —F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR¥T ARET T
Revenue e
— rental income (Note 5(b)) — HE WA (HiFE5(b)) 14,507 14,507
The Group leases investment properties under operating AEERBLESHE RHEREME -
leases. The operating leases are estimated to have a lease KERENMAHARARRF -HE
period of 5 years. Details of the lease arrangement are set ZHEFTIBE M MTFEST ©

out in Note 31.

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BREE
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFIT
Software: B
As at the beginning of the year F7]
Cost [DEN 34 34
Accumulated amortisation BT (20) (13)
Net book amount BREFE 14 21
Opening net book amount A0 BRI B 14 21
Amortisation (Note 8) B8 (MI7E8) (7) (7)
Closing net book amount HA R BR B 7 14
As at the end of the year FR
Cost R 34 34
Accumulated amortisation BT 5 (27) (20)
Net book amount REAE 7 14
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y
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HIFE
17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17 BREE (&)
Amortisation of the intangible assets was included in BIZEE#HEN G 2 EKSRFG AT
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of S o
comprehensive income.
18 PREPAYMENT FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS 18 FRBEEFRNIA

As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2022 PAOVA

—=E_— —E-—14F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T AREET T

Prepayment for purchase of equipment and B = &% & /75 HF& 1+ 0B

vehicle 2,653 722
Prepayment for construction in progress EETEMEMNKIE 3,748 445
Total et 6,401 1,167

19 INVENTORIES 19 FE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

2022 2021

—E-= —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Raw materials R 382 938

Work-in-progress TE & 527 2,444

Finished goods, recycled products Rk - BAEEMR 17,573 19,229

Total et 18,482 22,611
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the cost RNEBE-_ESE-_—_FK_FT=-_—%F+_H
of inventories recognised in “cost of sales” amounted to =St+—HIEFEE BEREERN]ER
RMB32,656,000 and RMB41,509,000, respectively. MF &R A7 Bl & AR 32,656,0007T &

A K #41,509,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 20 REREINETMTHE
The Group has the following financial instruments: AEEEAATERIA:

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Assets at amortised cost REERATIRNEE
Trade and other receivables excluding B 5 R EAMEWEIE I E1E
non-financial assets (Notes 21 and 22) EEMEE) (21 %22) 108,067 56,910
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) He MR EEY (MFE24) 59,160 235,593
167,227 292,503
Liabilities at amortised cost REBERAYIERNE B
Trade payable (Note 27) EoAth AT 30IA (i sE27) 9,088 11,689
Other payables excluding non-financial Hit BN HIB(TEEESH
liabilities (Note 28) B &) (F1sE28) 56,766 5,769
Amounts due to related parties (Note 35(c)) & {<f B85 75 218 (BMf5E 35 () 205 =
Borrowings (Note 29) B & (MI5E29) 55,740 39,900
Lease liabilities (Note 14) HEaE(E14) 608 866
Other liabilities (Note 31) EmaE(fsE31) 106,931 96,790
229,338 155,014
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 B EWIE
As at 31 December
Rt+=RBA=+—H
2022 2021
—=-— —E_—1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFTT
Trade receivables Z Z W FIE
— related to provision of gold mine — BRHSTEEEEMEER
hazardous waste treatment services izl 57,508 40,140
— related to sales of recycled products — B ERAEmIEHE 16,821 16,304
74,329 56,444
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (2,856) (1,334)
71,473 55,110
(i) Ageing analysis of the trade receivables () EZEWRZKERRD N
The trade receivables represent receivable relating to B RWHIEREEREHSBEEEE
provision of gold mine hazardous waste treatment services ) Bz ¥ AR 745 AE B f) 8 U R TE K B g
and receivable relating to sales of recycled products. The ERAEMERNBKRIE- KT
credit terms grant to customers are generally from 30 to EFHMEEHBET A30E60H °
60 days.
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis of RZEZ—_FR-FT=_—F+=A
the trade receivables based on the invoice date is as =t+—H REZEHINTHES
follows: FEMWRIBRRER D ATAN T

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—H
2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETIT
1-90 days 1290H 22,076 33,856
91-180 days 91 £ 180 H 23,651 17,641
181-270 days 181 £ 270H 14,127 4,947
271-360 days 2712360 H 807 -
over 360 days i3 360 B 13,668 =
74,329 56,444
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of the trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit loss which was a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and retention
receivables as prescribed by IFRS 9. Details of the expected
loss rates based on the payment profile of sales are set
out in Note 3.1b(ii).

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables were as follows:

21 ESERAE (%)
(i) EZERFRERE

AEBRBEETIRBHEES
18 IR IR BBR B 75 R 5 2E R 595 4R
T BLET A B 5 W ERIE & E SR
BemsArHEHEBEEE -8
BIRIEEENMNRIBERE HNTEL
BB L & - FEIBE R M FES. 1b(i) ©

As at 31 December

R+=H=+—8H

2022 2021

—E2—_ —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARETTT

As at 1 January R—H—H 1,334 115
Loss allowance recognised in profitor RN B ERHNEEEE

loss during the year 1,522 1,219

As at year end RER 2,856 1,334

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximated
their fair values as at the statement of financial position
dates and were dominated in RMB.

B 5 U R 0 B (1 B 7
BoREABMHATEIRE WA
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

22 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

H{th fE W 1B R R R IE
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2022 2021

—E_— —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Other receivable from a third party (Note 6) ELth fEUL 28 = 75 708 (Ki5E6) 28,025 -
Prepayments for purchase of raw materials, R R EREETE FRIE « BHK

transportation cost and other expenses RN H AR 21,629 4,960
Value-added tax receivables BENEWFRIE 15,912 196
Performance bonds and deposits for bidding 12 /& 417 K FI{R & & 4,402 925
Others Hity 1,311 1,080

71,279 7,161

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximated their
fair values as at the statement of financial position dates and
were dominated in RMB.

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Debt investments at FVOCI

HL A 18 A R TR A0 B T (B ER X B S RO
FZEMHNAFERS XUARBE

BEAFEFARMZEKRENE
MEE
As at 31 December
Rt+=—B=+—H
2022 2021

—g== —z——%

—_ =

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T

BAFEF AR RE RS

BERRE
Current assets — bank acceptance notes  RENEE — RITE A ZE
At 1 January n—A—H 7,130 1,960
Additions NE - 5,170
Disposals HE (4,780) =
As at year end RER 2,350 7,130

The Group's financial assets at FVOCI comprised bank
acceptance notes, where the contractual cash flows are solely
principal and the objective of the Group’s business model is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets. Bank acceptance notes are classified as current
assets due to short maturity.

On disposal of financial assets at FVOCI, any related balance
within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

AEEZAFEFARMEZEEENS
MEEBRRITAALRRE HEANRER
TE2AABAAKEEBEIANR
ERMHEEREEMB T N EDER
BB R - RRTAEEBEOIH AR
MO BERRBEE-

HEZEFRAFEFAEMEERED
CREER BATEAAREZEYE
FEEAREAAEEREN DB ERM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE
24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 BERBASEEY
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H”
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET AREET T
Cash in hand and at bank FEKIRTRS 59,160 235,593
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the cash and bank balances RZEZ—_FRER_FT=-_—F+ = A
were denominated in the following currencies: =+—H RERBITHERATINERE ST
(EE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+-—H
2022 AOYA
—=E=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR¥ T AR®ET T
HKD BT 1,421 191,424
RMB AR 57,550 43,996
usD ETT 189 173
59,160 235,593
25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 25 BARKRGHEE
Number of shares Nominal value
BHEE [k
HK$
BIT
Authorised: EE
As at 12 January 2021 W_ZE——F—H+=H
(date of incorporation) (FEfACSZ B ER) 38,000,000 380,000
Increase in share capital (c) AR I 0 () 199,962,000,000  1,999,620,000
As at 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=-A=+—H 200,000,000,000  2,000,000,000
As at 1 January 2022 and RZEZZF—HF—AK
31 December 2022 —E--F+ZA=+—H 200,000,000,000  2,000,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued) 25 MRARIRGEE (&)

Number of
shares

B8 E

Share

Share capital premium Total

e 7 A #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT AR®TT ARETR

Issued: BT
Ordinary shares issued upon KRB —F—H+=
incorporation on 12 January B (M BE)
2021 (date of incorporation) () EAL LB ZE1THY
LAk (a) 1 —#1 - -
Issuance of shares during the FAR BTN (0)
Reorganisation (b) 999 —#2 345,858 345,858
New shares issued pursuant to the ARiE 2 BRI E I THR
global offering, net of - HBREER 5K
attributable transaction costs (d) ~ 74<(d) 250,000,000 2,049 194,398 196,447
Shares issued pursuant to REE ML BITET
capitalisation issuance (e) B 15 (e) 749,999,000 6,159 (6,159) -
As at 31 December 2021 RZZZ—F+ZA
ET—E 1,000,000,000 8,208 534,097 542,305
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—%#—HF—H 1,000,000,000 8,208 534,097 542,305
Dividend distribution (Note 13) i85 (FizE13) - - (16,132) (16,132)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-__F+-A
=T—H 1,000,000,000 8,208 517,965 526,173

#1 Being share capital issued of HK$1, equivalent to RMBO.8.

#2  Being share capital issued of HK$1,000, equivalent to RMB810.

The movements in share capital are set out below:

(@  The Company was incorporated on 12 January 2021 with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each.
Upon incorporation, one nil-paid share was allotted and
issued to the initial subscriber of the Company which was
transferred on the same date to a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Liu, the Controlling Shareholder of the Group.

#1

#2

REBTRAVET HERARKS
Jo e
REBEITIRA1,0008 T HERARE
8107T °

RAZ B BT -

(a

AKARIR-_ZT-_—F—A+_-HBHx=
fi 5 57 - & TE IR 72N /5380,0007% I -
7 £38,000,0000% & i% EI{E0.0 175
TCRIAR AR o FEM A SZ B - MR A Bl
AR ABL 2 R BT — R AR
HEH ZERHERRBEZETH
REEZERBRRIALEZEREN
_FEﬁZ\\Ej °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued)

(b)

On 15 April 2021, the then shareholders of HC
International, including Mr Liu, the Controlling
Shareholder of the Group, and other shareholders,
transferred their entire 100% equity interests in HC
International to the Company, in exchange for the
Company issuing 999 shares of the Company to Mr Liu
and other shareholders. The Company’s cost of investment
in the subsidiaries was recorded based on the fair values
of the subsidiaries as at the date of the transfer which was
estimated to be RMB345,858,000, and the corresponding
credit was recorded in share capital of HK$10 (equivalent
to approximately RMB9) and the remaining balance in
share premium account. Upon completion of the transfers,
the Company became beneficially and indirectly owned as
to 78.6% by Mr. Liu and 21.4% by other shareholders.

On 23 October 2021, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 (divided into
38,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01 each) to
HK$2,000,000,000 (divided into 200,000,000,000 shares
of par value HK$0.01 each) by the creation of an
additional 199,962,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01
each.

Upon listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
12 November 2021, the Company issued 250,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each at the offer price of HK$1.02 per
share and raised gross proceeds of HK$255,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB208,973,000). The face
value of the share capital was approximately
HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,049,000), and the share premium arising from the
issuance was approximately RMB206,924,000. Meanwhile
approximately RMB12,526,000 of share premium was
offset by the capitalisation of listing expenses.

Concurrent with the completion of the initial public
offering on 12 November 2021, the Group issued a total
of 749,999,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each
for allotment and issuance to the then shareholders of the
Company, credited as fully paid by utilisation of the
Company’s share premium account an amount of
approximately HK$7,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,159,000).

25 RARRMDGEE (&)

(b)

R-ZZE-—FMA+HA BEEH
BREE R R E (BB ANE E /%
BRERGCEREMBER) B BEAE
RE) 2 EB100% ARAEEEE T AR ]
LAFRER AR A 5] /) B 58 A R B AR ER
BT AR R A% 1 ° AN A Al FA B
B AR MR E K AR B AR R
EEAHMAFEZS BB A
R #345,858,0007T * 1A FE#BR 5810
BT (HEHARBIT) sE AR
i &4 Z8 B EE AR5 B AR - B iE 5T
% AR E KR S R E A
RO RERREEHEETS6% K&
21.4% °

2 —F+AZ+=H &XRQH
% 48 1% 58199,962,000,000% &F A% H
B0.01%8 T W A% 1+ #57% TE AR 2N &
380,000/ 7T (% £38,000,0004% &
BEEOCITE THEM)EMNE
2,000,000,0008 T (D &
200,000,000,000/% & J& I {H0.01/5
TCHIRR(RD) °

B —F+— A+ —BEBIM
R ET® AREIAFK.025
TR 5% £ (B %5 17250,000,000% & A%
HEE.OVE TR W EL TS
XA 48 %8255,000,0005% 7T (#8 % %
49 N R #208,973,0007T ) ° B 25
B #%) 42,500,000/ 7T (FHE R4 A
R #2,049,0007T) * M E1TE £
%19 &= 8 4 & AR 206,924,000
JCo BN #) AR #12,526,0007T Y
B REE A ETRAY &AL -

R-BE-_—F+—A+-_H=xKkaE
RARBENRE NEBEZEH
R #97,500,0008 T (HEROAR
#6,159,0007T ) &) AN 2 &) f% 1 )& B
Bk & H 3£ 97749,999,0000% & A%
{E0.018 T 0y B 15 + LA L g 8 K %
TFEROARQAKE WL ALE
B -

2022 F 3R / BAEB R ARALF 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

26 OTHER RESERVES 26 EHif#kE

Statutory
Capital surplus  Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total

BAME ZERSREE BEHE Mgt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT AREBTT ARBTT ARETRH

As at 1 January 2021 R=B=-%-A-H 30,219 12,701 - 42,920
Issuance of shares during the EHRETRN
Reorganisation (Note 25(b)) (BF=E25(b)) (345,858) = = (345,858)
Profit appropriation to statutory i A/ E2 8 20K F 45
reserves - 2,386 - 2,386
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-%+=8
Er=F (315,639) 15,087 - (300,552)
As at 1 January 2022 R=B=--%-A-H (315,639) 15,087 - (300,552)
Currency translation differences SN E =58 - - 1,349 1,349
As at 31 December 2022 R-BZZ=%+=8
Er=F (315,639) 15,087 1,349 (299,203)
(a) Capital reserve (a) BEXxfEE
Capital reserve represents the aggregate paid-in capital of BARBEERRDWENBATNE &
the subsidiaries acquired, offset by investment costs in BN A B R AR BB
subsidiaries of the Company during the Reorganisation. NEBIEE R A Y o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

26 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Statutory surplus reserves

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC shall make
appropriations from after-tax profit to non-distributable
reserve funds as determined by the boards of directors of
the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group, they are required to appropriate 10% of the
annual statutory net profits of the PRC subsidiaries, after
offsetting any prior years' losses as determined under the
PRC accounting standards, to the statutory reserves fund
before distributing the net profit. When the balance of
the statutory reserves fund reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries, any further appropriation
is at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory reserves
fund can be used to offset prior years' losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by issuing new shares
to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholding, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserves fund after such issue is not less than
25% of registered capital.

27 TRADE PAYABLES

26 Hftf#E (40

(b)

EERBRERE

RIEFBEBABERRER KAF
R BIRAME AR RZDEE
BB AREZEESEENSREHK
BRBMDBEENAI D IKFERES

RIEF AR AR AR UEA
SEFENBAR A ET2HA -
FEFBARIKEEEFERPH
ST ERETETNEREERREZ KA
FEDRAF 2 /1 BEFERE L
FE10% D BELTHBES -E
AEREBESHESRERPRENB
N A FE & AN K950% B o (T {a] 3 —
FH B TR AR R BB IRE kTR
HESTAREHEBTFENESRE
(nA) R ER AR FEE
12 B% 3R A B BRAE LL 51 [A) A% SR % AT
R EEEREESRBBEETT
BEHBREIBSIREMEALAD
25% °

27 EZENFRE

As at 31 December
BR+t=HA=+—H
2022 2021
—EFE - —F
RMB‘000
AR®ET T

—E-=
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Trade and bill payables B S RN FIERENRE

— related to transportation costs — EiFE g X AN FE 6,547 6,602
— related to raw materials — BEFEMEHE 2,541 5,087
9,088 11,689
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

27 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 27 BEZEMNAREE)
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date BEZEZAHNE ZENFERR DT
is as follows: U

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2022 2021
—=-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
1-30 days 12 30H 8,994 2,804
31-60 days 31£60H 69 1,711
61-90 days 61%£90H - 1,524
91-180 days 91 %180 H 12 4,069
Over 180 days B3E 180 H 13 1,581
9,088 11,689

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximated their fair B 5 FE S 3R IE B BR T B 281 H A B ik
values as at the statement of financial position dates and were ZBEMNATEESE WAARKEE-

dominated in RMB.

28 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28 BEMESKRERETER
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—A”
2022 2021

== == %=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETT

Payables for purchase of property, plant and BEE % « B/E MR &R ER

equipment RIB 30,796 2,800
Other payables to third parties (Note 6) Hitb e 28 =5 708 (MisE6) 23,224 =
Other taxes payable H b S IR 16,869 15,627
Employee benefits payables B BBAENFKIEA 4,018 3,634
Amount due to a related party (Note 35(c)) [T — it 5 2B

(BzE35 () 205 -
Others Hth 2,746 2,969
Total Bt 77,858 25,030
The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals HMEMNREBELETEANEDERE
approximated their fair values as at the statement of financial REFEARR = BRI A EEE WA A
position dates and were denominated in RMB. REEEH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

29 BORROWINGS 29

4t
B TA

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—A~
2022 2021
B —F
RMB’000
AREET T

—E__F
RMB’000
AR¥ T

Non-current: JERE
Long term bank borrowings, secured and ~ KHJIRITER - GHEE M

guaranteed BER - 37,780
Current: B
Short term bank borrowings, secured and ~ f2ERSRTTER - B EMA KL

guaranteed BER 27,900 =
Current portion of long-term bank REISRITEFRENEEL D -

borrowings, secured and guaranteed BEARBER 27,840 2,120
Total borrowings BB 55,740 39,900

(a)

The Group's long-term and short-term bank borrowings as
at 31 December 2022 were secured by the Group's land
use rights (Note 14(i)), property, plant and equipment
(Note 15) and investment properties (Note 16).

For the years ended 31 December 2022, the weighted
average effective interest rate of the bank borrowings was
3.94% (2021: 4.05%).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current bank
borrowings approximated their fair values as at the
statement of financial position date due to their short
term maturity.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current bank
borrowings approximated their fair values as at the
statement of financial position date as they were carried
at fixed interest rates and the discounting impact was not
material.

RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H' &
SENRAREHEITERUASE
B (s AR (FTEE140)) ~ 3
= & 2% i (MiaE15) A RIRE Y%
(HMizE16) fEHK I -

BHE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—H8H1L
FERTEROMEFEHEREF
F o

K A3.94% (==
4.05% ) °

BRAEBEBHRITIERN BB
B AR EEMFRRAEKA
MR A FEBEE -

R 7R 62 [ SR B B SR 17 5 A B E
MEFE BARELITER ¥
HEREEEPHIRNEK B AR F
[=RiEE=K
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 B (&)
(d) The Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were d AXEBR-_ZET-_—F+-_A=+—
repayable as follows: BEEREZRA N EE:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2022 AOVA

—=E_— —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETTT

Within 1 year 1F A 55,740 2,120
1-2 years 1226F - 27,880
2-3 years 2E3%F - 9,900
Total T 55,740 39,900
() As at 31 December 2022, the Group had undrawn e MNZE-_—_F+-—A=+—8B'«
borrowing facilities amounting to RMB52,120,000 (31 EEERARIMERAREARE
December 2021: RMB72,880,000). All the bank 52,120,000t (ZZE=—F+=A
borrowing facilities expire beyond one year. =+—H: AR%¥?72,880,0007T) °

PIARITERBER —FREH-

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 EZEFTEH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BIEMEHEERABNOITAT:
follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H

2022 2021
=== =B —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AREETIT

Deferred income tax assets: (a) BIEFTEREE © (a)
— to be recovered within 12 months — #5128 B AUk E 1,013 99
— to be recovered after 12 months — #1218 B 1& Wl 720 =
1,733 99

Deferred income tax liabilities: (b) FIEFTSRAEE © (b)
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 1218 A AUk E - (1,800)
— to be recovered after 12 months — #&r 1218 A& Yl (3,913) (1,166)
(3,913) (2,966)
Deferred income tax liabilities — net FIEFTSH B EF5E (2,180) (2,867)

154 HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRNE

A
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 JEZEFRSBL (40)
The gross movement of deferred income tax liabilities — net is BEFTEMAEFENEREEFH T

as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BEZE+t=-BA=+—HLEE

2022 AOYA
—=:=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
At the beginning of year F9) (2,867) 639
Credit/(charged) to consolidated statements 4R& 2 EWERETA
of comprehensive income (Note 11) (F0BR) (BIEE11) 687 (3,506)
At the end of year FR (2,180) (2,867)
(a) Deferred income tax assets () EXZEMBHEE
As at 31 December
B+=H=+—H
2022 AOYA
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
The balance comprises temporary EHRBRENTSEEGENE
differences attributable to: RFMEER
Depreciation difference of property, M BEREHBTEER
plant and equipment 70 (176)
Impairment of trade receivables B Z IR E 614 44
Accrued payroll JE &1 357 B 329 231
Deductible tax loss AT IEEE 720 =
Total HEt 1,733 99
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(a) Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets were as

30 EEMRBH (&)
(a) EEZEMESHEE (8)
BEFEREEZHNT

follows:
Depreciation
difference
of property, Impairment
plant and of trade Accrued  Deductible
equipment  receivables payroll tax loss Total
nx - BER E5ENK CIE:#i1
REMEER MR E FEat & M REER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R=E=-—%—F-H 521 13 209 = 743
Credited/(charged) the RirE2ENER
consolidated statements 5T A/ (F1%)
of comprehensive income (697) 31 22 = (644)
At 31 December 2021 R-B_—%+_H
=t—H (176) 44 231 - 99
Credited the consolidated ~ AR A 2 EUERETA
statements of
comprehensive income 246 570 98 720 1,634
Asat31December 2022 R=ZT==F+=R
=1+—H 70 614 329 720 1,733

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
possible.

The cumulative losses of the Group with and without
expiry dates are as follow:

EIEFTIS T E E Ty 3L ] BB R KR
RPCR AN ERARARBERERT
EENRIRERER -

ANEE W EE W B R EED
T

As at 31 December

W+=B=+—H

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Year of expiration [E M EE
— 2025 — —T_RHEF - 36
— 2026 — —TRF 2,103 2,411
— 2027 — & 1,378 =
No expiry date Y Ep =R 8,654 7,410
Total @t 12,135 9,857
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
(a) Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

The tax losses incurred by subsidiaries in Hong Kong that
are not likely to generate taxable income in the
foreseeable future, which can be carried forward
perpetually.

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

The balance comprises temporary
differences attributable to:
Accelerated depreciation of property,

PR

30 EEZEFRE
(a) EIEFIEBEE (8)

B (®)

B AR (R T8 R AR R KA 8
EERRBWA)IEETE BB A K

AREEHHIAE R

(b) EEFREHAR

BRBERENTEREBGENE

W - BE RREEENTE

As at 31 December
®t=A=+-8
2022

RMB'000

ARBT R

2021

—E-—%F

RMB’000

ARETT

plant and equipment (2,113) (1,166)
Accrued withholding tax JEETTEFORR (1,800) (1,800)
Total BET (3,913) (2,966)

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities were as
follows:

BEFFSREBEZEFWT

Accelerated
depreciation

of property, Accrued
plant and withholding
equipment tax Total
RGERITE  ESHAOR st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT AR®TE
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—F—H—H (104) - (104)
Charged to the consolidated WiRE 2ERERETA
statements of comprehensive
income (1,062) (1,800) (2,862)
At 31 December 2021 R—ZF—_—%+=A
=+—H (1,166) (1,800) (2,966)
Charged to the consolidated NSRS e T N
statements of comprehensive
income (947) - (947)
As at 31 December 2022 R-—ZE-_—F+=A8
=+—A (2,113) (1,800) (3.913)
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31 OTHER LIABILITIES 31 HEE
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—A”
2022 2021

—E-C —EF—F

=

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T ARETT

Retention payable for construction projects (a) FZZ218 B WY FEHREE £ (a)

Non-current JEBNER 5,639 =
Warehouse lease arrangements (b) EEMAELHE ()
(i) Advances from lessee (i) < FE A Z R
— Current portion — BIEAER 12,379 15,167
— Non-current portion — JERNEAER > - 11,719
Sub-total /NEE 12,379 26,886
(ii) Payables to LZ Assets (ii) FE ST 2N B EE 1 E
Current BNHR
— First warehouse — F—MHeE 9,705 =
— Second warehouse — B _fEaE 11,773 =
Non-current JEENER
— First warehouse — F—MHEE 36,066 43,737
— Second warehouse — B -_REE 43,748 53,053
Sub-total NEF 101,292 96,790
Total B=t 113,671 123,676
Grand total @t 119,310 123,676
Presented on the statement of financial R BRARES A
position as:
Other liabilities — current portion Hit & i — BIEIE o 33,857 15,167
Other liabilities — non-current portion Hiv&E — JERNERE 85,453 108,509
119,310 123,676
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31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Retention payable for construction projects

According to the construction contracts with the
contractors of the Group’s buildings under property, plant
and equipment, 5% or 10% of the total payables for
construction cost was set aside as retention fund with a
warranty period of 1 or 2 years from the date of
inspection for certification of completion of the buildings.

Warehouse lease arrangements

In October 2018 and December 2018, HC Environmental
entered into two gold mine hazardous waste storage
warehouse lease agreements with Laizhou City State-
owned Assets Management Company Limited (&N 7
EEERKLHBR AT ,"LZ Assets”), a state-owned
enterprise, for the storage of cyanide tailings hazardous
waste from a State-owned enterprise. Pursuant to the
lease agreements, LZ Assets advanced RMB72 million in
the fourth quarter of 2018 and RMB88 million in the first
half year of 2019, totalling RMB160 million, to HC
Environmental for leases of two warehouses at an annual
rental of RMB3.6 million from 1 November 2018 for the
first warehouse, and RMB4.4 million from 1 January 2019
for the second warehouse, totalling RMB8 million per
annum (inclusive of value added tax on rental income), for
a twenty years term.

Pursuant to the lease agreements, (i) the minimum term
of the lease period shall be five years from the respective
lease commencement dates, unless the cyanide tailings
hazardous waste in the warehouses is put for tender for
detoxing treatment during the five year term, and in the
event that HC Environment won the tender, the lease
term would terminate and the future treatment fee would
then be deducted from the remaining amount of the
advanced payments made by LZ Assets, after deduction of
rental income up to the date of termination; (i) from the
sixth year, either LZ Assets or HC Environmental has the
right to terminate the lease arrangement by paying an
amount equivalent to one year rental, being RMB8 million,
as compensation to the other party, and HC
Environmental will be required to repay the remaining
balance of the advances to LZ Assets within three years,
being 20% for the first year, 30% for the second year and
full repayment in the third year, from the receipt of the
notice of termination of the lease agreements.

31 EMEE (®)

(a)

(b)

BEEAENRES

REAEEEABBRITNDE
BEMERBETEERRAR &
J& ) 52 SE K AN AR BR Y5 % 2K 10% F
RREBE REHMAFEERTRIK
BHEE Rt A2 -

AEERERH

RZE—NF+AR-_ZT—NF
=B EHIRF R A XN
TMEEEELEBRAR ([HEME
ENFYMOeBEEEEMRER
EnE UREFEBECENESLE
BEEREY -BEHASHZ FMNE
ER_ZE-—N\FENEER_FT
—NF E¥FDRIEBHIRERRN
ARENZBEETEARKISE &
T A ARBIcORE T AR
EMMAEE F—MWEENEEH
—E-N\F+—H—BEst 48
ARBIEE L KE_HEEN
HedhR=—FT—hF—A— BT
FRAREAIIBET AEEA
REsHET (BEHSWANIEE
) A tF-

REAERHZ (VHBAZEE RS
AF - BEEMHELMARB R
BRIEERFHAN BEANSTLE
BEEBRMELHETHRSERER
2 BNREWHREPIE  HEEE
b TR R BR IR B H 18 A5 1 HM
BEEFLNRBZRGE (HNBREER
IFBEES U AR) B R (i)
BENFR FINEEXEMIRR
BEXIHEERZE HEARE T X
HHEER—FHHS BDARKSH
B0 EAFEE MEBMREEER
WEIR I EHHEREBANE=FRN "
EERAFBETHRMNEE BEF
B20% - FE _FHE0% MNE=ZFF

ER(EIE -
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31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

160

(b) Warehouse lease arrangements (Continued)

The Group considers there is a likelihood that LZ Assets
will exercise the right to terminate the lease agreements
upon the expiry of the five years committed lease term, by
then the Group would have an obligation to pay back LZ
Assets the remaining balances of the advanced payments
from LZ Assets, being RMB50.4 million and RMB61.6
million, totalling RMB112 million, representing the total
advances of RMB160 million less five years’ rental income
of RMB40 million and compensation of RMB8 million
upon the expiry of the five years lease terms in October
and December 2023 for the two warehouses by
instalments as mentioned above, respectively. Accordingly,
on initial recognition of the two warehouse lease
arrangements, the Group recorded “Other liabilities —
payables to LZ Assets” of RMB37.9 million and RMB46.3
million, respectively, totalling RMB84.2 million, being the
present value by discounting the obligations to pay back
LZ Assets of RMB50.4 million and RMB61.6 million,
totalling RMB112 million, by October and December 2023
and by instalments as mentioned above, respectively. The
discount rate applied in deriving the present value of the
amounts payable to LZ Assets was the market rate
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The difference between the advances received of RMB72
million for the first warehouse and RMB88 million for the
second warehouse, totalling RMB160 million, and the
recorded other liabilities — payables to LZ Assets of
RMB37.9 million and RMB46.3 million, totalling RMB84.2
million, amounted to RMB34.1 million and RMB41.7
million, totalling RMB75.8 million, were recognised as
“Advances from lessee” at initial recognition of the two
warehouse lease arrangements, respectively. The advances
from lessee of RMB75.8 million is amortised and
recognised as revenue — rental income evenly over the
five years committed lease period, being RMB 14,507,000
per annum, net of relevant taxes (Note 5(b)).

Interest expenses from other liabilities — payables to LZ
Assets are recognised using the aforementioned discount
rate. The amount of interest expenses relating to the two
warehouse lease arrangements during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 were RMB4,502,000 and
RMB4,301,000, respectively (Note 10).

31

HiEE (5
(b) REHEERH (&)

AEBERAEMNEERAFAFMH
HfEm& B TERIEAER
FREF MAMESENRFHE
HARMN-—_E-_=Ft+AKRt+=A
[EmE ANEBEEERIEMEE
A Bt BAEERMNEENB TR H
H(BDARBS04AEB TR AR
61.6BEEIL)ATARKII2EE
Jo B8 EE A RK1608 E LR
ERAFHEBRAAREIOTE T
WESARESHEE T AL £
FTHEAMBRERELHR K&
B [HBE — BEIINEE
HIEIAREIVIIAETEARE
46 3BT A HARKSI2EE
TR BER-_ZTE-_=F+AK
+ = BRI Lt BN & E
BEARKSOAEE T AR
61.6E8L (AEXARKI12BEEL)
WEEHWRE FEENSEINEE
HIEHRERAEANME X AR
EEMREUSLR T AR ESNTS
FZ o

F—HEEMNERBRRARKE2H
ETRFE_BEENERBRAR
MeSE BT (AT ARK1608 B
To)EBRENEMEE — B
MEERBEAREI7IAETMA
R¥463B8 BT (AT ARYS84.2E
En)2HNEZESRIAAREK34L
BELRARBMNIEE L A5t
AR®ISSEE L ERVIRTER
MBEREHERHRERIEIRE
A AR - REAEANBRRK
ARBISSEETERAFAFEE
HAFH#EEIER A NS —
WA - BlEF AR 14,507,0007T
(BMEETIE) (KEEs(b))

REEMEE — EBAHEMNEER
TERYFI) B 5 S (5 R 3l B 3R SR AR o
BE_ ST -—F+=
A=+—BLtFE EmEBEAEMR
ETHEBNAN BRI SES A
ARBA4,502,0007T & AR
4,301,0007T (FfEE10) ©
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31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued) 31 Hitb&E (&)
(b) Warehouse lease arrangements (Continued) (b) EEHEZRH (&)
The five-year lease term for the first and second E-—RE_RENOAFHEIES 5
warehouses will expire in October 2023 and December RZEZ=FF+ARZZTE=_=F
2023, respectively. Accordingly, 20% of the other liabilities T AER-Bit BIEBHEHESN
— payables to LZ Assets will be required to repay to LZ R 20% BY B fth B (F (JE 2N
Assets upon expiry of the five-year lease term within year BEMNRE)RER-Z_=ZFR
2023, according to terms of the lease agreements. hFERBERREERMEE-
Accordingly, RMB12,379,000 of other liabilities — - R=ZFB==F+=-RA=+—8H"
payables to LZ Assets was reclassed to current liabilities as AR#12,379,000t B E M B & (FE
at 31 December 2022. NEMNEENREBE)EEHH>HZE
mBBE-
32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32 REREEH
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EEMBRS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E_— —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT

Profit before income tax R BTS¢ A& A1 103,763 117,144
Adjustments for AT SIBEL TR
— Amortisation of right-of-use assets ~ — { FR4E & AE#A &

(Note 14) (M5t 14) 2,300 833
— Depreciation of property, plantand ~ — #7% - = LEETE

equipment (Note 15) (fFEE15) 10,065 9,299
— Depreciation of investment properties — & &M% E (MiE16)

(Note 16) 4,386 4,386
— Amortisation of intangible assets — EREEEN (ME17)

(Note 17) 7 7
— Loss on disposal of property, plant — HEWE - BE NEE

and equipment and others (Note 7) N E A EsE (fEE7) 38 500
— Accrual of impairment on financial — SR EERITRE

assets 1,522 1,219
— Finance costs — net (Note 10) — BB — JFRE

(MtzE10) 5,037 6,021

Changes in working capital: EEESEE)
— Inventories — 78 4,129 1,385
— Contract liabilities —&AHEE (5.688) (2,562)
— Advances from lessee — AT AR (14,507) (14,507)
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R HEAM BT RIA 22,195 (2,100)
— Trade and other receivables and — B 5 RE A EWGIAIA

prepayments RIBERFIE (77,224) (38,450)
Cash generated from operating activities #&&EEF5HE & 56,023 83,175
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HIFE
32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 32 REREER (&)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant and (b) HEVE BERREREME
equipment and other assets ERBHIE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1t—HLFE
2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Net book value of property, plant and Y% - B R SRS E

equipment (Note 15) (FFEE15) 2,151 1,788
Net book value of right-of-use assets ERAEEERDFE

(Note 14) (FF3E14) - 432
Losses on disposal of property, plantand &% « BiE L&E M

equipment and others (Note 7) EfbEsiE (BsE7) (38) (500)
Non-cash transaction IRERH - (2)
Proceeds from the disposal HE TS 08 2,113 1,718

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (00 MEIBFELEEYHE

financing activities

Bank Amount due
borrowings to the
and interest Lease  Controlling  Payable to
payable liabilities  Shareholder LZ Assets Total

BTEHRR EAZR  EAEN
EMFE  HERR  BRWE  KERHE EH
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTT AREBTT AREBTT AREBTR

Total debt as at 1 January 2021 ~ R-Z=—F—f—

HMEEHR 42,000 1,585 1,467 92,489 137,541

Cash flows arising from financing ~ BEEEEL RS
activities mE (2,100) (661) (1,467) - (4,228)

Cash flows arising from operating & EHELHE S
activities b= (1,680) = = = (1,680)
Termination of leasing contract & ILHAEAH = (726) = = (726)
New leases e = 642 = = 642
Amortisation of borrowing costs B Ak A EE 1,680 26 = 4,301 6,007

Total debt as at 31 December 2021 R=E=—4%+=H

= = 0F L 39,900 866 - 96,790 137,556
Cash flows arising from financing ~ B & EBEERE S
activities ik 15,840 (331) - - 15,509
Cash flows arising from operating & &EBEERNERE
activities e (2123) - - - (2123)
Exchange differences ERER - 45 - - 45
Amortisation of borrowing costs £ E AR 2,123 28 - 4,502 6,653

Total debt as at 31 December 2022 W=ZE=—%F+-f
=t+—AMEER 55,740 608 - 101,292 157,640
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

33 CONTINGENCIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one of the Group’s
subsidiary provided guarantees to the banking facilities of one
third party amounting to RMB6 million which was repaid to the
bank in March 2023 and another third party amounting to
RMB10 million. The guarantees were supported by the pledge
of the Group's property and land use rights (Notes 15 and 14)
to the banks. As at 31 December 2022, the Group assessed the
provisions based on the credit history of the third parties and
the current market condition. No significant provision is noticed.

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Contracted but not recognised as liabilities

— Commitments for construction and
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

RE AR

33 HAREE

BE-_ZE-_—F+=-A=1+—HILEE"
ANEB—FHKHBRRB —RE=ZHHE
TREARBEETL (RZTE==F=
AEETRIT) RS —RFE=ZAHEITRH
BEARBI0EBILIREER - ZSERA
MERTTH AN E B Y3 K& b 155 A (Bt
HSRIRESF R —F+=
A=Z+—R AEEREE=ZHFNEERD
BN BRI TR R A RS o REIREMEKR
s

34 BAERAE

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+-—H
2022
—=:=-=
RMB’000
ARET T

2021

—E-—4F
RMB’000
ARETTT

BRI ERERREE
— RERBBYE - BB MK

9,259 =

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control, common
significant influence or joint control.

The Controlling Shareholder, members of key management and
their close family members of the Group are also considered as
related parties. In the opinion of the Directors, the related party
transactions were carried out in normal course of business and
at terms negotiated between the Group and the respective
related parties.

35 BEARS

BN BRNERXEEESNS T %
EELUBRELERARGE S - H&E
BEAFE RSB WX KFAE
B HKRABAZENRBAES] BZT
TS 6 Rt

AEBZERRR FTEEEABREER
REXREBTESEB T -EERS BB
ARHDIR—BREBBIETRIRAEE
BL5 BARREE T E R RO R SKETT ©

2022 53 | BMARRMBZARAF 163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 BEEARS (&)
(a) Related parties of the Group () AEEBEBHA
Name of related parties Relationship
S 2 B %
Mr. Liu Zeming (21)28%) The Controlling Shareholder, Chairman and executive director
et ZERIER EFERAITES
China United Cement Yantai Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
EEFRKEAR AR AR AR B A%
Yantai Aohua Real Estate Co., Ltd. Significantly influenced by the Controlling Shareholder
EEMREEXFR AT RERKRREATE
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRIt E 456 B IS Mk E A E0 9 P i
statements, the Group had the following transactions and BENAEEREE=_ZT ==
balances with its related parties during the years ended 31 +Z A=+ RILFEEBR A
December 2022. AT 5 R
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) BEAXRS

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T-HLEE

2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETIT
Increase in amount due to the JE {422 A% 3% SR FRIB S N
Controlling Shareholder - 9,527
Disposal of motor vehicles HERE
Yantai Aohua Real Estate Co., Ltd. BETMREEXRR QA 1,655 =
Purchases of goods and services 88 B on MR
China United Cement Yantai Co., Ltd. EEFRBKEERA R 874 =
Increase in amounts due from the JE 7R A% % SR SR IR N
Controlling Shareholder 2,891 13,550
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

(i) Amounts due to related parties:
China United Cement Yantai Co., Ltd.

(i) FE1T BERE 5 500 -
EERRNORER AT

(c)

35 BEBAERS (&)

BB 7 AL eA
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+-—H
2022 2021

— g — — —F —
—E-C —_zF—-

RMB’000
AR®T T

RMB’000
AR

205 =

The amount due to related parties as at 31 December
2022 was unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

(d) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive) and executive officers. The compensation paid
or payable to key management for employee services is as
follows:

(d)

R-EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—HFEH
BB AR IBAEIRE £ RAE
BERKIEE o

FTEEEEHMN

TEEEERERESR (MTRIEH
TIREBABR -ENSENETEE
ERENREERGHABEHMNT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEEE
2022 PAOYA
—E-—4F
RMB‘000
AR®ETIT

—s=-=
RMB’000
AR¥ T

Salaries and bonus e RIEAL 2,925 2,484
Other benefits H b g R 487 422
3,412 2,906

165 ’
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

36 SUBSIDIARIES

Company name

rAEH

Directly hold:

EERR:

Hongcheng International
Investment Limited
("HC International”)

BEARRARRAR
(MEABEE])

Indirectly hold:
E3E
Hongkong Hongcheng
Environmental Protection
Development Group Co.,
Ltd. ("HC Hong Kong")
EEBRERAEEEER
AR([EAEEE])
Shandong Jinjia
Environmental Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Jinjia"“)
RS ERRERAT
NS
Shandong Hongcheng
Mining (Group) Co.,Ltd.
("HC Mining")

WRERER (RE)BRA
A(EREx])

166

Date of
incorporation

a3z B 5

30 March 2020

kS0

=A=tH

16 April 2020

2
mA+~A
8 June 2020

%R

~ANE
28 April 2011

—2—F
mA=+/\B

Country/Place of
incorporation, legal

status and the place as at 31

of principle activity

ARAIER/
Wi ERRE
REREBHH

BV
RBEARES

Hong Kong, limited

liability company

&R BRAT

PRC, limited liability
company

B ARAT

PRC, limited liability
company

B ARAT

36

Paid in capital

December 2022
RN-E-C
t=A=t-A
WA RRA
2022

—F——

—F——

USD1 100%

USD6,000,000 100%
6,000,0005% 7T

USD25,687,021 100%

25,687,021 7T

RMB10,000,000 100%

N
10,000,0007C

HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

o) NG

Principal activities
31 December

R+=A=t-H
FENERESE TEED

2021

f£-g=-%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding

RERR

Production of sulfuric acid, etc. (i)

ERRS - (i)

Provision of gold mine
hazardous waste treatment
services and recycling gold
mine hazardous waste into
resources with economic
value for sale.

REESBEERNERRER
B EBAEEN AELE
BENERUEHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

36 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Date of

Company name incorporation

ALk AL A 5

Country/Place of

incorporation, legal
status and the place
of principle activity

ARRIER/

WH - EEMRE
RERXBUH

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

36 BT (&)

Paid in capita
as at 31
December 2022
R-E-C
+ZA=+-H
WARRA

Principal activities
31 December  Principal activities
Rt=A=t+-H

FiEtEREE EED
2022 2021
e i

—_F = -

Laizhou Hongcheng Mining 12 February PRC, limited liability ~ RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of gold mine
Environmental Protection 2014 company hazardous waste treatment
Development Co., Ltd. services and recycling gold
("HC Environmental ") mine hazardous waste into

resources with economic
value for sale.

FNTEHBEXRRAEE —2-MmE  HE FRAA ARE REUESRAZENERRER
RO (DEHER]) “A+ZH 20,000,0007C RUEBEREENRALE

BENERULHE -

Shandong Hongcheng 1 January 2019 PRC, limited liability ~ RMBA4,600,000 100% 100%  Provision of metal waste (ii)
Resources Comprehensive company processing services,

Utilization Co., Ltd. (“HC processing and sales of iron
Resources”) powder, building materials,
metal products, etc.

LEEAERGANAEL —T-NEF 8 EBAF AEH# RESBEDMIRE 0T (i)
A ([ BEER]) —A—H 4,600,0007T RSEEN Bt LeE

mE o

Laizhou Hongcheng Gold 11June 2020 PRC, private RMB200,000 100% 100%  Research and development
Tailings and Cyanidation non-enterprise
Comprehensive Utilization institution
Research and Development
Center

FMEAESRBRANE —Z2-TF B REEEE ARK200000T ik
e MARMHER L ~AT—H Bfy

0) In 2022, the paid in capital of Shandong Jinjia was increased from () RZZBEZ—F IELEZ0NHIRAH

USD13,973,524 to USD 25,687,021.

(i) In 2022, the paid in capital of HC Resources was increased from

RMB4,000,000 to RMB4,600,000.

(ii)

13,973,524 JTiE N1 225,687,021 T

KRB —F EBEARERNERELRHR
ARM4,000,000cEME AR
4,600,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

37 THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37 ZAARIZHBMRARREEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(a) The statement of financial position of the (a) A E)HBARR T
Company

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2022 2021
—EgE-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARET T ARETIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Right-of-use assets HREERE 321 628
Investment in subsidiaries (Note 25(b)) AMI B A Al Z%E
(B &E 25(b)) 345,858 345,858
346,179 346,486
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments £ {th JE U 118 K FB A~ 7108 403 372
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGIE Q] 166,814 90,712
Cash and cash equivalents Re K\ EEY 1,160 93,674
168,377 184,758
Total assets EEHAE 514,556 531,244
EQUITY &
Share capital &N 8,208 8,208
Share premium &% B 37(b) 517,965 534,097
Other reserves H b {# 37(b) 1,248 =
Accumulated losses RFtEE (21,303) (19,462)
Total equity A 506,118 522,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE

37 THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37 ARAI2HMEBERRRRBEEES

RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
(a) The statement of financial position of the (@) AABBBEMRRE (E)

Company (Continued)

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—8
2022 AOYA
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR%ET R ARETTT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HMEBAE - 320
Current liabilities nREBE
Other payables and accruals H At T FRIB R AT B 363 145
Amounts due to subsidiaries FER I A Rl5RIE 7.724 7,644
Lease liabilities HEAE 351 292
8,438 8,081
Total liabilities =Rt 8,438 8,401
Total equity and liabilities ERRAGHE 514,556 531,244
The statement of financial position of the Company was RABMBRARERZZTZ=F
approved by the board of directors of the Company on 31 ZA=+T—BHERRFESSHAE
March 2023 and was signed on its behalf. WHIATREKRES-
Mr. Liu Zeming Mr. Zhan Yirong
ZIEH KL BoREE
Chairman Director
TE 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE

37 THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37 ZAARIZHBMRARREEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) AT REES

Share  Translation
premium reserve Total

R 425 18 BERE Mt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTIT ARBTT ARBTT

At 12 January 2021 (date of R=E——F—A+=

incorporation) B (A B E) = = =
Issuance of shares during the EHERETRAG
Reorganisation (Note 25(b)) (F3E25(0)) 345,858 - 345,858
New shares issued pursuantto 1R 2 EREEE 21T %
the global offering, net of 7 HREGRZIK
attributable transaction costs 7 (B 5E 25(d))
(Note 25(d)) 194,398 - 194,398
Shares issued pursuant to RIBE R BITETR
capitalisation issuance 12 (3£ 25(e))
(Note 25(e)) (6,159) - (6,159)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—F+=H
=+—H 534,097 - 534,097
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-_—_F—H—H 534,097 - 534,097
Dividend distribution B R (16,132) - (16,132)
Currency translation differences  §NE a5 = 58 - 1,248 1,248
At 31 December 2022 RZTB__F+_A
=+—H 517,965 1,248 519,213
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mEMBRRNE

A
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-—ZT - —F+_A=+—HIFE
38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38 ESEMRER
(a) Remuneration of directors (a) EEM2
The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/ REERBEE-_T=-_—_F+=A
payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December =+—BLEFEEM ERAQF
2022 are set out as follows BEENFMIIEHLT

Basic Other
Fees salaries Pensions benefits Total

e EEXHe Exs HitEA st

Name of Directors RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000  RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Year ended BE-E-_—_£+=
31 December 2022 A=+—HLFE
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Liu 2k E - 300 38 41 379
Mr. Zhan Yirong B8N E - 308 38 41 387
Mr. Sheng Haiyan BRGHEST A - 406 38 a1 485
Independent non- BUIHITEE
executive directors
Mr. Liu Zhongwei g ks - 124 - - 124
Mr. Zhang Shijun RREBLAE - 103 - - 103
Ms. Liu Ye DeE i+ - 103 - - 103
- 1,344 114 123 1,581
Basic Other
Fees salaries Pensions benefits Total
we HAEAFe B HMERN @t
Name of Directors RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000  RMB'000
AREBTIT ARETTT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
Year ended BE-_Z-_—F+=
31 December 2021 A=t—BLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu 2k E - 279 33 38 350
Mr. Zhan Yirong B REAE - 266 29 31 326
Mr. Sheng Haiyan DYE - 339 33 38 410
Independent non- BHNTEE
executive directors
Mr. Liu Zhongwei 2l A4 - 22 - - 22
Mr. Zhang Shijun RAELELE - 19 - - 19
Ms. Liu Ye DeE i 4 = 19 = = 19

= 944 95 107 1,146
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ T _—F+_A=+—HIEFE
38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38 EETARER (B)

(Continued)

(b) E=WHMER

(b) Directors’ other benefits

172

There were no retirement benefits paid to or receivable by
any Directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertakings during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

There were no termination benefits paid to or receivable
by any Director during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

No payment was made to the former employer of
Directors for making available the services of them as a
Director of the Company during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Other than those disclosed in Note 35(b), there were no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into
between the Group and the directors and in favour of the
directors during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Other than those as disclosed in Note 35, there were no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

REBEEZT__FRER_FT=_—%F
+—A=+—BLFE BMELMH
BEERAQRKEWNB AR ELEL
B TR IR A H th AR 7% T & S AN sk AR UK
RRAEF)

REBEE_ZT-_—_FR_FT=-_—F
+-_A=+—HItFE HERT
fAIE = X 5 sk H e R A BBt )

REBEE_ZE-_—_FRk_ZF=-—
+ZA=+—HLEFE BEFHIN
ARRESEMREREMENE
EREERKIE

BR B 3E35(0) FTIREE & IN REE =
T —_ER-E=-—F+=A
=+ —ALEFE KAEBEHES
BB VAEEAXTANER
EERREMZ S -

B BT 5E35FT HR BE & AN M FE R
BHE_ S -_—_F#F-_F-—F+=
A=T—BLLEFEEMER HE
FREREBEKE@A - KNAQF
DERARNREETHEIEEES
BEAEGENEARS THEREL-
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DEFINITIONS
BE

In this annual report, unless the context requires otherwise, the RAFRF BIEXFEREAHIE U THAER
following terms have the meanings set out below, and words in plural B FXFrEiEE  MESFANAEERSE

shall include the singular and vice versa, as applicable:

"AGM"
(A RBF RS ]

" Articles of Association”or

" Articles”

[EF24MA)] =k [488)]
" Audit Committee”
[BZZEe]

“Board”

=

"BVI”
[(REBEBARES]

"CIT Law”

[EMAFRA]

“Companies Act”

[REDE]

“Company” or “our
Company”

RAVNCIE

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ B R

“Corporate Governance
Code”
(&R

"Director(s)"”
==

g Rz IR (WER) -

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

ARBEERRBFRE

the second amended and restated articles of association of our Company,
adopted at a general meeting held on 24 June 2022
ARABEZREETRBIMERERAR RS- —_F XA _+HEAE
f?%ﬂx%i@iﬁé%ﬁm

the audit committee of the Board

EEeERZES

the board of Directors

Ex¢

the British Virgin Islands
REBEARES

PRC Corporate Income Tax Law {(FFZEAREMBEIBZEFTSHIE) ) issued by
the NPC on 16 March 2007, and subsequently amended on 24 February 2017
and 29 December 2018

EEARRZZEZLF=A+ ARG HER_Z—+tF_AZ+HAR
—E-N\F+AZTABEN (hEARKNMBREMRETIE)

the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands
HEHERRE (KIER])

HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED (57 IR 1R
B B 2 7)), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2265)

BHERREFARAR —HARHASHSEMKINBRAG  EEEHITR
M AEE R AT MR T (IR 5% - 2265)

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and unless the context
requires otherwise, refers to Mr. Liu and Zeming International Investment Co., Ltd
AEALTRAUETZANRE BRIEXESAMIE EE %KL NZeming

International Investment Co., Ltd

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

FHRAMEATR B EE R TRIRECEERARE

the director(s) of the Company

RRAREE
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DEFINITIONS
B=

l'l Y

“Hazardous Waste Business
License”

[ el BE YD AE L 5T Al §&

"HC Environmental”

[ B SIR IR ]

“HC Mining”

[ MG ETEE

"HC Resources”

[HEAE IR

"HKD"
[&7T]
“"HKICPA”

[BAEEAE

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar”

(BB BPELDRE]

“IFRSs”
[EBIBR B 5 ¥R &5 22 Al

“Listing”
=

the permit for operation of hazardous wastes within the territory of the PRC
under the Measures for the Administration of Permit for Operation of Hazardous
Wastes (fERREEYIACE A B EBIVE)

BIE (EREDKEFAIZERIVE)  EPBEIRANKEEREDHETT &

Laizhou Hongcheng Mining Environmental Protection Development Co., Ltd. (3%
PN T B SR T S IR R B BB TR A F1), a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC on 12 February 2014 and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of our Company

FNTEHEXFRRAZLBRAR — AR _E-—OF_A+_HRES
ERKWNBRAR ARRAGNEEREWNE AR

Shandong Hongcheng Mining (Group) Co., Ltd. (LI E#EIEE (£E )R A F)
(formerly known as Shandong Hongcheng Mining Co., Ltd. (LIS BB E G R
/A @]) and Shandong Hongcheng Mining Co., Ltd. (LU FEFIBEBRAR])), a
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 28 April 2011
and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of our Company

IWEBAREE (RSB BRAF (AIBILURBHEEBR QG RILIRBAESE
ERAGR) —HRZE——FHAZ+ N NBREFBEZENLNBR AR
RADNFNREEZEWEB R A

Shandong Hongcheng Resources Comprehensive Utilisation Co., Ltd. (1L 5 & &
ZRZAFBABR AT, a limited liability company established under the laws
of the PRC on 10 January 2019 and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of our
Company

WEBEEAERGENMABBRAR —FARZZE-—NAF-ATBREBEREDERE
R BERAR AEXAGNEEZEZENB AR

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BIEREN BERNEAERER

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BRGNS

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
hEARAMBEEEFITHRE

Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of our Company

SERBAFETARAR ARAANEERNBFPELSR

International Financial Reporting Standards
B 5% Bt 75 i o E B

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board
B ER T
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“Listing Date”
[ FHEH

“Listing Rules”

[ TR 8]
"LZ Assets”
[N E E ]

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Memorandum of

Association”

XV Nl

“Model Code”
[R %57 Al
“Mr. Liu”

[ 554

“New Production Facility”

[ 37 4 B A e

“Nomination Committee”

(R Eg

“"PRC” and “China”
[ F

“Prospectus”

[ ERE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FHEEE]

"“Reporting Period”
(¥R

12 November 2021, on which the Shares are listed and from which dealings
therein are permitted to take place on the Main Board

“E-Ft-ATZR RO LTWESMEREZARAIREREERND

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B3 PrRg 7 E AR Al

Laizhou City State-owned Assets Management Company Limited (2N T BB &
B ARAR)
RN TEE EEGEERA

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange
which is independent from and operated in parallel with GEM of the Stock
Exchange

BT BN RENS (T EEREMS) B0 AT GEM I 82 E 3 51 &

f

the amended and restated memorandum of association of our Company
adopted on 23 October 2021, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

RABHKETREFNEBERAM R_E_—FTAT=ZBERHK &
PEHERT - TR AR A 75 B2k

the Model Code of Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

FHRAIME0PE EHEITAERETESRHNFRETH

Mr. Liu Zeming (%12 $%), chairman of our Board, an executive Director and a
Controlling Shareholder

FEH#ELE EFTQIFE AITESREBRRR

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Prospectus

EEAREREME T ZRE

the nomination committee of the Board

ExeR%%EY

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR AN

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 October 2021
ARRAMA-Z-_—FTA-ZTILENBRER

the remuneration committee of the Board
ExgrEEae

the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLFE
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“RMB”
AR

"SFO"

(787 Mg 5D
"Share(s)"

MR ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ %R

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 52 P

“Transaction”

“VAT"
[HE1EH

uwen' "US", uouru’ ”Group"

and “our Group”

(A9 R (A KHE]

“Yinhai Chemical Industrial
Park”

[REETIEXE]
“sgq.m.”

[F75K]

T

[% |

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR® FEEEEEHY

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented and modified from time to time

FEEPIFSTE CEHFRBMEHERD) - B TRIER]  #xERER

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of
HK$0.01 each
ARNBRAF EFREBEC.ONEILH L B

holder(s) of the Share(s)
BFE A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARGMBRRAT

the acquisition of the land use rights of three parcels of lands located in Yinhai
Chemical Industrial Park with an aggregate gross site area of approximately
533,300 sqg.m., properties including premises and warehouses with building area
of approximately 89,273 sq.m., and other infrastructures and machines through
an auction
BRAMETRBUARECIEZEAGMEES £49533,300F 5 keV =
B tihe) T E AR MREmMES HA89,273 F AR EE (BREMER
BB ) AR Bt B2 N e 2s

value-added tax
AR

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZN/NS DN ENLG ) FNC]

an industrial park of the Yinhai Chemical Industrial Park ($R/81t TE ¥ &)
project, a property development project in Laizhou City, Shandong province, the
PRC, which was the Laizhou government’s plan in integrating various companies
engaging in chemical manufacturing, new energy and other related industrial
businesses

FMNBFA BB SRR ECREREE TR REMMBEEIEEZBO QA
AR EILRERMNT RN EZEREB R TEXEER AN —EE
EE

square metre(s)

per cent

Bt
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HONGCHENG ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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